
Annual Report 2006/07   

 

 



Annual Report 2006/07   

 
Responsible Minister: 
 Minister for Health  
 The Hon Jim McGinty BA, B Juris (Hons), 
 LLB, JP, MLA 
 
 
Accountable Authority: 
 Western Australian Health Promotion 
 Foundation Board 
 
 
Board of Management Chairperson: 
 July 2006 – November 2006  

Mr Luc Longley 
 
December 2006 – June 2007 
Ms Jenn Morris OAM 

 
 
Executive Director: 
 Mr Neil Guard 
 
 
Access:  
 3rd Floor, 46 Parliament Place 
 West Perth 
 PO Box 1284 
 West Perth 6872 
 
 
CONTACT 
 
 
Phone:  
 (08) 9476 7000 
 
 
Fax: 
 (08) 9324 1145 
 
 
Country Callers: 
 1800 198 450 
 
 
Email: 
 healthway@healthway.wa.gov.au 
 
 
Website: 
 www.healthway.wa.gov.au 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

30 JUNE 2007 
 
 
Hon Minister for Health 
 
 
In accordance with Section 66 of the Financial 
Administration and Audit Act 1985, we hereby submit 
for your information and presentation to the 
Parliament of Western Australia, the Annual Report of 
the Western Australian Health Promotion Foundation 
(Healthway) for the financial year ended 30 June 
2007. 
 
The Annual Report has been prepared in accordance 
with the provisions of the Financial Administration and 
Audit Act 1985 and other legislative requirements. 
 
The Western Australian Health Promotion Foundation 
is constituted under the authority of the Tobacco 
Products Control Act 2006. 
 

         
 
Jenn Morris OAM 
Chairperson 
 

 
Maurice Swanson 
Deputy Chairperson 
 
 
Date:  30 August 2007

 
This report is available in alternative formats on request 



 

Annual Report 2006/07   

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
RELEVANCE OF HEALTH PROMOTION ............................................................................................... 1 
HEALTHWAY ......................................................................................................................................... 3 

Our Vision........................................................................................................................................... 3 
Our Mission......................................................................................................................................... 3 
Our Clients.......................................................................................................................................... 3 
Who We Are ....................................................................................................................................... 3 
What We Do ....................................................................................................................................... 4 

KEY STRATEGIC DIRECTIONS............................................................................................................. 5 
PERFORMANCE SUMMARY AND 2006/07 HIGHLIGHTS ..................................................................... 6 
HEALTHWAY BOARD MEMBERS.........................................................................................................10 
CHAIRPERSON’S REPORT..................................................................................................................14 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT.....................................................................................................17 
HEALTHWAY PROGRAMS AND PROGRAM STRUCTURE..................................................................19 
MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE...............................................................................................................20 
HEALTHWAY CORPORATE STRUCTURE ...........................................................................................21 
HEALTHWAY KEY STRATEGIC DIRECTIONS – Review of Progress ...................................................22 

Strategic Direction 1 – Focusing on the greatest priority areas for health promotion............................22 
Strategic Direction 2 – Getting to the right people ...............................................................................28 
Strategic Direction 3 – Finding and using the right strategies ..............................................................35 
Strategic Direction 4 – Working in partnership with others ..................................................................40 
Strategic Direction 5 – Sustaining the impact......................................................................................45 

HEALTHWAY PROGRAMS – The Year in Review .................................................................................49 
Health Promotion Program .................................................................................................................49 
Health Promotion Research Program .................................................................................................51 

Promoting Health Through Sponsorship .................................................................................................53 
Sport Sponsorship Program ...............................................................................................................56 
Arts Sponsorship Program .................................................................................................................58 
Racing Sponsorship Program.............................................................................................................59 

THE YEAR AHEAD – PLANNED ACHIEVEMENTS ...............................................................................61 
COMPLIANCE REPORTING – Better Planning: Better Services – Strategic Framework ........................63 
CORPORATE SERVICES .....................................................................................................................69 
CERTIFICATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ..................................................................................74 
INCOME STATEMENT ..........................................................................................................................75 
CERTIFICATION OF PERFORMANCE INDICATORS ...........................................................................97 
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS.............................................................................................................98 
REFERENCES ....................................................................................................................................105 
HEALTH PROMOTION PROJECTS APPROVED FOR FUNDING IN 2006/07 .....................................106 
HEALTH PROMOTION RESEARCH PROJECTS APPROVED FOR FUNDING IN 2006/07 .................109 
SPORT SPONSORSHIP PROJECTS APPROVED FOR FUNDING IN 2006/07...................................111 
ARTS SPONSORSHIP PROJECTS APPROVED FOR FUNDING IN 2006/07......................................131 
RACING SPONSORSHIP PROJECTS APPROVED FOR FUNDING IN 2006/07 .................................141 



 

Annual Report 2006/07  
1 

RELEVANCE OF HEALTH PROMOTION 
 
TOBACCO 
 

• Smoking is the leading cause of disease and disability globally.1 
• Tobacco kills approximately 19,000 Australians each year.2 
• In Western Australia, tobacco is responsible for more than 1,500 deaths per year.3 
• Tobacco was responsible for 18% of all male deaths and 10% of all female deaths in 

Western Australia in 2001.4 
• In 2004, 15.5% of Western Australians aged 14 years and over smoked daily.  This is 

significantly lower than the national rate of 17.4%. 5 
• In 2004 in Western Australia, 17% of males and 14% of females aged 14 years and over 

were daily smokers.5 
• In 2005, 32% of 12 to 17 year olds in Western Australia had smoked at least part of a 

cigarette in their lifetime, 18% had smoked in the previous year, 9% in the previous four 
weeks and 6% had smoked in the week before the survey.6 

• The proportion of 12 to 15 year old current smokers has dropped significantly between 
1999 and 2005 from 16% to 5%.  The proportion of 16 - 17 year old current smokers has 
also dropped in the same period from 27% to 10%.6 

• Smoking remains high among disadvantaged populations including Indigenous people, in 
whom the prevalence is estimated to be 50%.  

• Out of 14 attributable risk factors, tobacco was responsible for the greatest disease burden 
in Australia in 2003, at 7.8%.7  

 

PHYSICAL ACTIVITY AND NUTRITION 
 

• In Australia, 53% of Australians were overweight in 2004/05, and of these over one third 
(35%) were classified as obese. 8 

• In Western Australia, three in five men (59.9%) and two in five women (43.4%) aged 16 
years or older are overweight or obese.9 

• The prevalence of overweight and obesity in Australian children has doubled in the last 
decade.10 

• In Western Australia, approximately one quarter of boys (28.3%) and girls (24%) aged 5 to 
15 years are overweight or obese.11 

• In 2003, one in four boys and one in three girls at secondary school level reported doing no 
physical activity in a typical week.  At primary school level, approximately one in seven 
students reported doing no sport, exercise or dance activities in a typical week.11 

• Just under 50% of all girls and 33% of all boys reported spending more than 10 hours per 
week on sedentary behaviours.12 

• Achieving a 5% increase in the proportion of Western Australians who do sufficient physical 
activity to gain a health benefit would result in an estimated potential saving in health costs 
of $144 million per year.12             

• In Australia, two serves of fruit and five serves of vegetables are recommended to 
contribute to good health, help protect against disease and maintain a healthy body weight.  
However, one in 10 Western Australian children do not eat fruit daily and one in 15 do not 
eat vegetables daily.9 

• Among Western Australians aged 16 years and over, one quarter of men (23.4%) and one 
sixth of women (16.5%) do not eat fruit each day.  18% do not eat the recommended 
serves of vegetables each day.9 
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MENTAL HEALTH 
 

• Mental health problems have significant implications in a broad range of health areas, for 
example drug and alcohol misuse, unresolved anger and violent behaviour.13 

• The World Health Organisation estimates that by 2020, depression will be the largest health 
problem globally.14 

• Total recurrent spending on mental health services in Australia represented some 6.6% of 
national expenditure on health services in 2003, and the spending on mental health 
services increased by 73% between 1993 and 2003.15 

• In Western Australia, mental health disorders are currently the leading cause of Disability 
Adjusted Life Years (DALYs) for males and will be the leading cause of ill-health in females 
by year 2016.16 

• Suicide is the third highest cause of DALYs in Western Australia.16 
• A 2005 survey of 2,200 residents in rural and metropolitan Western Australia indicates that 

one in four people have already visited a counsellor, a psychologist or a GP regarding a 
mental health problem.17 

• Mental disorders in Australia accounted for annual expenditure of $4.8 billion in 2000/01. 
This is 7.9% of total allocated health expenditure.18 

• Health costs and loss of earnings related to suicide and suicide attempts in 1989/90 equal 
$920 million.19 

• Depression, social isolation and lack of social support have all been confirmed as risk 
factors for coronary heart disease.20 

• Promoting positive mental health improves health and wellbeing in the present and can 
reduce the burden of disease in the future.21 

 
INDIGENOUS HEALTH 
 

• The life expectancy of Indigenous Australians is 20 years less than other Australians.22 
• In 2004/05, 50% of Indigenous Australians were daily smokers compared to the national 

rate of 17% for non-Indigenous Australians.23   
• Over one third (35%) of young Indigenous people aged 12 to 17 years smoke regularly 

compared to only 6% of all young people in Western Australia in the same age group.25 & 6 
• Most Aboriginal children do not eat anywhere near the recommended daily consumption of 

vegetables, with only 39% of those aged 12 to 17 years in the metropolitan area reaching 
the recommended intakes and 24.5% in extremely isolated areas.25 

• Rates of chronic diseases such as diabetes and coronary heart disease are considerably 
higher among Indigenous people than other Australians.25 

• Peri-natal deaths were three times more prevalent among Indigenous mothers than non-
Indigenous mothers in 2002.26 

• In 2002, an estimated 39% of Indigenous Australians aged 15 years and over had a 
disability or long term health condition.27 

• Suicide rates among Indigenous males are double that for non-Indigenous males.26 
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HEALTHWAY 
 
 

OUR VISION 
 
 A Healthy WA 
 
 

OUR MISSION 
 
 To improve the health of Western Australians by working through partnerships and 

supporting targeted programs, which: 
 
 - promote and facilitate healthy lifestyles, policies and environments. 
 
 - build the capacity of individuals, groups and communities to be healthier. 
 
 

OUR CLIENTS 
 
 While Healthway seeks to access the wider West Australian community through the 

activities supported, priority groups include young people, children and families, 
Indigenous people and others in whom health inequalities exist. 

 
 

WHO WE ARE 
 
 Healthway (the Western Australian Health Promotion Foundation) was established in 

1991 under Section 15 of the Tobacco Control Act 1990 as an independent statutory 
body reporting to the Minister for Health.  Healthway now functions under Part 5 of 
the Tobacco Products Control Act 2006. 

 
 As well as funding activities relating to the promotion of good health, particularly 

among the young, Healthway’s priority during its first five years was the replacement 
of tobacco advertising and sponsorship. 

 
 Responsibility for the overall management of Healthway, including decisions about 

funding, is held by a Board whose members have knowledge of and experience in 
one or more of the functions of the Foundation.  These members are nominated by 
health, youth, sport, arts and country organisations from government and non 
government sectors.  A number of expert committees have been established with a 
range of responsibilities, including making recommendations to the Board 
concerning the allocation of grants and sponsorships. 
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WHAT WE DO 
 
 Healthway provides grants to health and research organisations, as well as 

sponsorships to sport, arts, racing and community groups which encourage healthy 
lifestyles and advance health promotion programs. 
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KEY STRATEGIC DIRECTIONS 
 

 
 Focusing on the greatest priorities for health promotion 
 
  Key Strategies 

 
■ Instigate and facilitate new programs and initiatives to address high priority areas 
■ Increase focus on priority areas through sponsorships 
■ Raise the profile of the new priority areas of nutrition and social determinants of 

health 
■ Extend the development of health policies and creation of healthier environments 
■ Increase links across program and priority areas 

 
Getting to the right people 
 
 Key Strategies 
 
■ Improve systems for targeting priority population groups 
■ Increase the targeting and accessibility of funding to priority population groups 
■ Increase focus on priority population groups among currently funded organisations 
■ Initiate and facilitate new initiatives to reach priority population groups 

 
Finding and using the right strategies 
 
 Key Strategies 
 
■ Support the transfer of successful strategies 
■ Build the evidence-base for what works with priority population groups and priority 

areas for health promotion 
■ Support adaptation of effective initiatives and programs for priority population groups 

and settings 
■ Explore innovative opportunities to promote health 

 
Working in partnership with others 
 
 Key Strategies 
 
■ Promote the sharing of information, knowledge and skills to improve health 
■ Pursue collaborative approaches 
■ Act as a catalyst for health promotion change 

 
Sustaining the impact 
 
 Key Strategies 
 
■ Increase emphasis on reducing barriers, to enable healthy lifestyles and 

environments 
■ Foster health promotion leadership and skills development in WA 
■ Increase sustainability of strategies and programs to improve health 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 
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PERFORMANCE SUMMARY AND 2006/07 HIGHLIGHTS 
 
Funds available for distribution during 2006/07 totalled approximately $19.7 million, comprising 
of an appropriation from the State Government Consolidated Fund, trust account interest 
earnings, accumulated reserve funds and other revenue.  Other revenue included returned 
funds from projects approved in previous years and additional funds received from the Disability 
Services Commission under a Memorandum of Understanding for Healthway to administer a 
grants program targeting increased physical activity for people with disabilities, on behalf of the 
Commission. 
 
Of the available funds, $17.864 million (90.5%) was committed in grants, sponsorships, support 
sponsorships and project/program evaluation, in accordance with the requirements of the 
Tobacco Products Control Act 2006.   
 

Distribution of Funds by Program
2006/07

9.5%

19.0%

11.5%

15.0%

30.0%

4.5%

9.0%
1.5%

Corporate

Health

Research

Arts

Sport

Racing

Support Sponsorships

Evaluation

 
During 2006/07, Healthway received 992 new applications for grants or sponsorships.  Of these, 
716 (72%) were approved for support, 164 applications were rejected (17%) and a further 12 
withdrawn (1%).  Decisions are pending with respect to the remaining 100 applications (10%) 
and will be made at the first Board meeting in the new financial year.  
 
Including multi-year projects approved in previous years, overall 851 projects received grant or 
sponsorship support from Healthway during 2006/07. 
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Grants/Sponsorships - 
Distribution of Health Issue 

2006/07
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OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS  
 
One of the most significant developments during the year was the implementation of the new 
Tobacco Products Control Act 2006 in July 2006.  The new Act replaced the Tobacco Control 
Act 1990 under which Healthway had been operating for the past 15 years.  Two sets of 
regulations were subsequently gazetted during the year; the first included strengthened 
regulations relating to the sale and supply of tobacco products and smoking in enclosed public 
places, and the second strengthened licensing arrangements to sell tobacco products.  
Healthway now functions under Part 5 of the Tobacco Products Control Act 2006. 
 
During 2006/07, Healthway: 
 
• Completed its second Leadership Development in Health Promotion Program.  In this 

program, the eligibility criteria were extended to provide opportunities for people from 
partner sport, arts and racing organisations working with Healthway.  18 participants 
successfully completed the program out of 22 who were recruited.  Of these, 13 were health 
promotion professionals, and out of the nine participants recruited from sport, arts and 
racing organisations, five completed the program.  An evaluation of the program was also 
completed and a range of improvements identified and incorporated in the planning for a 
third program, to commence in 2007/08. 

 
• Completed a comprehensive external review of Healthway’s Health Promotion Research 

Program.  The review identified that the program continues to be held in very high regard 
amongst stakeholders and made nine key recommendations, several of which specifically 
relate to: 
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• Enhancing Healthway’s role in communication and translation of research into 
practice, and the opportunity to position Healthway as a leader in this area; 

• Improving the dissemination of the outputs and achievements from the research 
program; 

• Increasing Healthway’s emphasis on priority-driven research; and 
• Identifying further opportunities for Healthway to support health promotion research 

relevant to Aboriginal people. 
 

Implementation of these recommendations will be progressed in 2007/08. 
 
• Completed a scoping review of Healthway’s role in addressing the Social Determinants of 

Health and as a result introduced a special initiative offering research grants of up to 
$50,000 each for exploratory research studies in the social determinants of health and 
health promotion.  Four applications were received and three were approved for funding 
during the year. 

 
• Completed a review of the Nutrition Advocacy needs in Western Australia and agreed to 

invite a health promotion grant application for Healthway to support the establishment of an 
appropriate public health advocacy coalition that would focus on advocating for change on 
nutrition, overweight and obesity and other health promotion priorities. 

 
• Increased the focus on good nutrition and healthier eating across the Healthway 

sponsorship programs.  As a special initiative, in December 2006, the Healthway Board 
approved grant funding of $30,000 to engage the WA School Canteen Association 
(WASCA) in a pilot project supporting the operators of canteens/kiosks at two sport and two 
racing venues in a healthy overhaul of the food provided through these operations.  It is 
hoped that this will lead to a wider implementation of canteen/catering reform initiatives in 
2007/08. 

 
• Implemented a range of recommendations from the reviews of the Sport and Arts 

Sponsorship Programs, completed in 2005/06.  New initiatives included: 
 

• Working in collaboration with Sports Medicine Australia in the administration of the 
Healthy Club Sponsorship Program, which attracted a 25% increase in the number 
of applications received during 2006/07; 

• The introduction of a revised application form and assessment process for lower 
value sponsorship applications in the Sport Sponsorship Program; and 

• The introduction of a new arts sponsorship scheme to promote health in schools 
through the arts. 

 
• Developed and implemented a new Health Promoting Schools Grants scheme and a new 

Local Government Grants scheme to increase the engagement of these two settings in 
health promotion activity. 

 
• Administered the first round of a new grants program on behalf of the Disability Services 

Commission, to increase opportunities for people with a disability to participate in community 
physical activity.  The first round of the grants program, ‘Expanding Physical Activity 
Opportunities for People with Disabilities’ led to the approval of grants totalling almost 
$190,000 towards seven innovative projects, two of which will be in regional WA.  

 
• Conducted a ceremony at the Perth Concert Hall for the seventh Healthway Excellence in 

Health Promotion Awards to recognise the outstanding achievements of health, research, 
sport, arts and racing organisations in promoting health and healthy environments in 
Western Australia.  A total of 45 organisations from across the State were finalists in the 
various award categories.  The occasion also provided an opportunity to celebrate 
Healthway’s 15th birthday. 
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• Finalised a review of past Healthway funded Indigenous health promotion projects in the 
areas of nutrition and physical activity, in conjunction with the Health Promotion Evaluation 
Unit at The University of Western Australia.  Guidelines and a cross section of case studies 
are in production for dissemination during 2007/08. 

 
• Achieved the Board objective of smoke free spectator and viewing areas at all larger 

Healthway sponsored events by the end of 2006.  Significant achievements in the year 
included: 

 
• Implementation of smoke free policies throughout Gloucester Park for the 2006 

Telstra Rally Australia; 
• Members Equity Stadium becoming a smoke free venue through sponsorship of Allia 

Venue Management Pty Ltd; 
• A totally smoke free Scarborough Beach (and surrounding areas, including the 

amphitheatre) for the duration of the Australian Surf Life Saving Championships; 
• Implementation by the WA Trotting Association of a totally smoke free viewing and 

spectator area policy at Gloucester Park from September 2006; and 
• Implementation by Perth Racing of a similar smoke free viewing and spectator area 

policy at both Ascot and Belmont Racecourses from 1 January 2007. 
 
• Continued to focus on smoking as the highest priority health issue, with grant funding 

approved for several significant projects, including:  
 

• A WA Tobacco Document Searching Program 2006 – 2009: which will focus on 
tobacco industry documents relevant to Western Australia, with the aim of providing 
new information that will contribute to tobacco action and health promotion in the 
State; 

• Beyond the Big Smoke: a three year project which will implement educational and 
organisational strategies to reduce tobacco smoking in Aboriginal Community 
Controlled Health Organisations throughout Western Australia; and 

• Renewed funding for the highly successful Smarter than Smoking project, which will 
have a stronger focus on reaching disadvantaged young people in the current phase. 

 
• Introduced a new e-newsletter in February 2007 to improve the communication of campaign 

updates, new grant or sponsorship funding opportunities and relevant Healthway Board 
policies and decisions to a range of Healthway stakeholder groups.  The e-newsletter now 
has around 850 subscribers.  
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HEALTHWAY BOARD MEMBERS 
 
The Healthway Board is established under Section 61 of the Tobacco Products Control Act 
2006.  Pursuant to S61(1), the Board consists of 11 members, comprising a Chairperson and 10 
nominees of stakeholder groups.  The Board represents a mix of government and non-
government organisations. 
 
The Board is the accountable authority of Healthway.  It sets strategic direction and goals and 
makes all decisions relating to the allocation of funding for grants and sponsorships. 
 
As the governing body of Healthway, the Board also has responsibility for: 
 
• co-ordination of planning, policy and the decision making framework; 
 
• compliance with Corporate Governance standards; and 
 
• striving for organisational best practice and customer service. 
 
The Board generally meets every 8-9 weeks and at 30 June 2007 comprised: 
 

Jenn Morris OAM – Chairperson Deputy – Maurice Swanson 
 

 

 

 In December 2006, Ms Jenn Morris OAM was appointed Chairperson of the 
Healthway Board for a period of three years, following nomination by the Premier.  
A dual Olympic gold medallist, Ms Morris represented Australia in hockey from 
1991 to 2000, playing 150 games for her country and scoring 86 goals.   
 
After retiring from international sport Ms Morris now works as a management 
consultant with leading professional services firm Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and is 
currently studying a Masters Degree in Business Administration.  Ms Morris is also 
a board member of the Western Australian Institute of Sport. 
 
 

 
 

Maurice Swanson – Deputy Chairperson Deputy – Peter Le Souef 
 

 

 In October 2000, the Australian Council on Smoking and Health nominated Mr 
Swanson for appointment to the Board for a period of three years and he was re-
appointed in October 2003.  Mr Swanson’s term was extended for a further year in 
October 2006.  Since 1998, Mr Swanson has held the position of Chief Executive 
of the National Heart Foundation (WA Division) and he has over 20 years 
experience in health promotion and public health with previous positions including 
Director, Health Promotion Services in the Department of Health WA.  His main 
areas of interest are tobacco control and the prevention of cardiovascular disease.  
Mr Swanson has been a member of  the Australian Council on Smoking and Health 
since 1983 and currently holds the position as Secretary of the Executive. 
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Rosanna Capolingua       Deputy – Paul Boyatzis 
 

 

 Dr Rosanna Capolingua was nominated to the Healthway Board by the Australian 
Medical Association of WA in October 2000 and her membership was renewed in 
2003.  Dr Capolingua was President of the AMA(WA) from 1998-2000 and in May 
this year was appointed Federal President of the AMA. She is chair of the AMA’s 
Ethics and Medico Legal Committee and sits on the boards of Mercycare, the 
Raine Foundation and the University of Notre Dame.  Dr Capolingua is Principal of 
the Floreat Medical Centre and Director – GP Liaison at St John of God Health 
Care, Subiaco.   
 
 

 
 

Beth Hands Deputy – Andrew Watt 
 

 

 Associate Professor Beth Hands was appointed to the Board in December 2004 
following a nomination from the Australian Council for Health, Physical Education 
and Recreation for a three year term.  A/Prof Hands is currently the Associate 
Dean, Health and Physical Education, School of Health Sciences at the University 
of Notre Dame Australia, and President of ACHPER WA.  As well as having strong 
links with the teaching profession, A/Prof Hands is involved in a number of 
significant research projects focusing on physical activity, fitness and motor 
development in typically developing children and adolescents, and those with 
disabilities. 

 
 
 

Ronnie Hurst Deputy – Colin Brown 
 

 

 Mr Hurst was appointed to the Healthway Board in 2004 as the representative of 
the Department of Sport and Recreation where he holds the position of Director 
Program and Services.  In this role, Mr Hurst is responsible for promoting the value 
of sport and recreation in Western Australia; increasing opportunities for 
participation in sport and recreation by a cross section of the community; and 
managing grant funding programs which aim to enhance the development of sport 
and recreation in Western Australia. 
  
Mr Hurst has over 25 years experience in policy, facility and program development 
in sport and recreation both in Western Australia and overseas. He is also a 
member of the Western Australia Sports Centre Trust and serves on a variety of 
community based voluntary organisations.  
 

 
 
 

Natalie Jenkins Deputy – Paul Bodlovich 
 

 

 Ms Jenkins joined the Healthway Board in November 2006 for a three year term, 
after nomination by the WA Arts Federation Inc.  Before establishing her own 
business providing project management and consultancy for the arts, cultural and 
community sectors, Ms Jenkins was General Manager of the Perth Theatre 
Company from February 2000 to May 2005. 
 
Ms Jenkins has extensive experience of government boards and committees, 
both at state and federal level.  She was a member of the Commonwealth 
Government's Playing Australia/Festivals Australia Committee from 1996 to 2004 
and sat on the Tasmanian Arts Advisory Board for four years.  Ms Jenkins is 
currently Chairperson of GAIN Inc (Gynaecological Awareness Information 
Network) and a member of  the Performing Arts Centre Society (PACS) Board. 
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Fiona Lander Deputy – Judy Tennant 
 

 

 Fiona Lander joined the Board in May 2006. She is the Acting Executive 
Director of the Office for Children and Youth, a small Government agency 
administratively linked to the Department for Communities and responsible for 
developing and implementing programs and policies that meet the needs of 
children and young people aged 0 - 25 years. 
 
Fiona has extensive State and Commonwealth experience in the human service 
sector, and is a strong advocate for social change. 
 
 

 
Kay Lane Deputy – Rob Thompson 

 

 

 Ms Kay Lane was appointed to the Board in February 2006 following nomination 
from the WA Sports Federation.  Ms Lane is currently the Deputy Chair of the 
WA Sports Federation and a Board Member of Badminton WA. Ms Lane was 
previously the Vice-President of Women’s Golf Australia and the President of 
Women’s Golf WA.  During her time at Women’s Golf WA, Ms Lane initiated a 
successful junior program in WA to introduce girls to golf, together with a 
support structure to club and elite level.  In addition to golf, Ms Lane has also 
been involved in netball, tennis, squash and swimming. 
 
Ms Lane provides an essential link between Healthway and the WA Sports 
Federation and the Board is fortunate to be able to access her expertise and 
experience in relation to the sporting industry in WA. 
 

 
Barbara Macnish Deputy – Jeremy Smith 
 

 

 Ms Barbara Macnish was appointed to the Board in December 2005 as the 
representative of the Department of Culture and the Arts where she holds the 
position of Executive Director Portfolio Coordination.  In this role, Ms Macnish is 
responsible for the implementation of a cultural tourism strategy, corporate 
governance and organisational performance issues, media, marketing and 
events management and audit and risk management, as well as coordinating 
issues affecting the WA Government’s culture and arts portfolio that comprises 
the Art Gallery, State Library, WA Museum, ScreenWest, Perth Theatre Trust, 
the State Records Office and the Department. 
  
Ms Macnish provides a valuable contribution to Healthway by keeping the 
Board informed of cultural issues and developments in WA, as well as providing 
a strong link to Western Australia’s arts community.  She is also on the Boards 
of the Resource Unit for Children with Special Needs, the Perth Area 
Consultative Committee and the Western Australian Sports Centre Trust. 
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Louise Paterson Deputy –  Walter Barratt 
 

 

 Cr Louise Paterson was appointed to the Board in February 2006 following 
nomination by the WA Local Government Association, representing the interests 
of country sport.  Cr Paterson is currently a serving councillor with the Shire of 
Esperance and was previously the Goldfields South-East Regional Coordinator 
for the Australian Sports Commission.  Cr Paterson is also the current President 
of the Esperance District Recreation Association, the peak representative sport 
and recreation organisation in the South East of WA. 
 
Cr Paterson brings to the Board an intricate understanding of local government 
and the issues facing sport and recreation in regional WA.  Cr Paterson currently 
runs her own consultancy business providing a range of services including public 
relations, grant and submission writing and project development and management 
to private, government and non-profit organisations.  

 
 

Simon Towler Deputy – Susan Leivers 
 

 

 Healthway Board membership includes the appointment of the person holding the 
office of the Commissioner for Health or the nominee of that person.  Accordingly, 
Dr Simon Towler was appointed to the Board in February 2006.  Dr Towler holds 
the position of Executive Director, Health Policy and Clinical Reform within WA 
Health.  Since taking up this role, Dr Towler has guided the establishment of 
clinical networks to develop strategic health policy and assist in planning for the 
delivery of health services across Western Australia.   
  
Dr Towler has been actively involved with the Reid review and the Health 
Administrative Review Committee.  Dr Towler continues to contribute to the 
Clinical Senate, and various other clinical reference groups. His past roles also 
include being President of the Australian Medical Association (WA Branch).  Dr 
Towler brings to the Board a vast range of knowledge and experience in relation to 
health issues in Western Austral ia. 

 
 

Attendance at Healthway Board Meetings 2006/07 – by Board Member or Deputy 
 No. of scheduled 

meetings 2006/07 
Actual Meetings Attended 

Member            Deputy 
Ms Jenn Morris OAM (since December 2006) 4 4  
Mr Maurice Swanson 7 7  
Dr Rosanna Capolingua 7 7  
Mr Ronnie Hurst  7 6  
Assoc Professor Beth Hands  7 6 1 
Ms Natalie Jenkins (since November 2006) 5 5  
Ms Kay Lane  7 6 1 
Ms Fiona Lander  7 5 1 
Ms Barbara Macnish  7 6 1 
Cr Louise Paterson  7 6  
Dr Simon Towler  7 2 4 
Mr Luc Longley (until November 2006) 3 3  
Ms Carol Innes (until October 2006) 2 1 1 
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CHAIRPERSON’S REPORT 
 
 

 
 
I am pleased and proud to be making my first 
Annual Report as the Healthway Chair. 
 
When I was first approached last year by Health 
Minister Jim McGinty about taking on the role of 
Heathway’s Chair, I was immediately interested, 
not only because I care very much about 
community health and healthy lifestyles but also 
because in recent years I have become 
increasingly concerned about the incredible 
impact the issues of unhealthy eating, 
increasingly inactive lifestyles, overweight and 
obesity are having on our community, and in 
particular our children. 
 
The problems will only get worse unless we start 
doing something about them now and I thought 
that channeling my energies through Heathway 
was the ideal way I could make a contribution.  
 
So, here I am as your Chair and during the short 
period since I took over from Luc Longley, in 
December 2006, I have been even more 
impressed with what Heathway has done and is 
doing than I was before I became involved. 
 
Tobacco Control 
Heathway has made a huge contribution 
towards reducing smoking in Western Australia.  
Even over the last year, there have been some 
landmark achievements in the sponsorship 
programs which have led to the establishment of 
more, permanent smoke free areas at sport, arts 
and racing venues.  A number of the 
sponsorships have pushed new and exciting 
boundaries. 
 
For example, after the successful 
implementation of a totally smoke free 
Gloucester Park for the final Telstra Rally in 
Western Australia, the sponsorship of the 
Aussies, the Australian Surf Lifesaving 
Championships, at Scarborough Beach in March 
2007, saw the new Amphitheatre and the beach 
from the Esplanade to the water’s edge declared 
totally smoke free for the duration of the week 
long championships. 
 

This was a resounding success and I am 
delighted to report that Healthway is continuing 
discussions with the City of Stirling, the local 
authority responsible for Scarborough Beach, 
about the potential to make these areas  
permanently smoke free.  
 
In the meantime, it’s great to note that the City of 
Joondalup has declared all its local beaches 
smoke free and the City of Fremantle has 
approved  new regulations to ban smoking in 
alfresco dining areas, including along its famous 
‘cappuccino strip’. 
 
There is no doubt that these new developments, 
and others to come, result from a 
comprehensive approach to tobacco control in 
WA.  Healthway is pleased to have played a 
significant role in this approach, with its 
sponsorship programs helping to influence 
environmental changes that have made smoke 
free public places the norm.  These 
developments have also been assisted by State 
Government legislation, the most recent being 
the Tobacco Products Control Bill 2006, 
campaigns, programs and advocacy by a range 
of supportive health agencies. 
 
Overweight and Obesity 
Looking forward, I have no doubt that Healthway 
can and will play a similar pivotal role in tackling 
the issues of overweight and obesity. 
 
I am passionate about this issue and also have 
no doubt that this emerging “pandemic” requires 
a comprehensive approach similar to the 
approach that has been very successful in 
tobacco control. 
 
The situation is serious.  Recent data shows that 
the prevalence of overweight and obesity among 
Western Australian boys aged 7 to 15 has 
doubled between 1985 and 2003 to 32.1% and, 
during the same period, the prevalence among 
girls in the same age group trebled to 30.5%.  
This means that around one in three children 
aged 7 to 15 is overweight and obese and the 
problem is worsening. 
 
And, very recent information from the Australian 
Bureau of Statistics reveals that Western 
Australians increased their spending on take 
away food by 33% during the past year.  
Western Australians now spend a staggering 
$102 million on take away food annually and 
while a portion of that certainly will include fresh, 
healthy food, we know from other surveys that 
the most popular take away foods are hot chips, 
burgers, pizzas and pastries. 
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Healthway has already directed additional 
resources towards these problems and is 
starting to achieve results. 
 
For example, research funded through the 
Health Promotion Research Program has shown 
both the extent of the problem and examined 
reasons and therefore possible solutions. 
 
One landmark Healthway funded three year 
study by researchers at The University of 
Western Australia, the Telethon Institute for 
Child Health Research and Princess Margaret 
Hospital is examining factors that influence the 
development and persistence of childhood 
obesity.  The first results were announced in 
December 2006. 
 
Chief Investigators, Dr Sue Byrne and Dr Liz 
Davis, studied 1,000 Western Australian children 
aged 6 to 12 from primary schools in the Perth 
metropolitan area.  They found that one in every 
five children was overweight or obese and many 
already had significant medical and 
psychosocial problems as a result - including 
hypertension, pre-diabetic insulin resistance, 
impaired liver function and depression.  They 
also found that a significant number of parents 
of obese and overweight children were not 
concerned about their child’s weight and 
perceived it as normal. 
 
This is alarming news indeed but on the positive 
side, the research has helped lay the 
groundwork for positive change and the 
researchers are now testing a program aimed at 
tackling the problem. 
 
Other Healthway funded research is examining 
factors such as physical activity patterns in 
school leavers in rural areas and the impact 
electronic games and TV watching have on 
physical activity levels among children. 
 
Healthway sponsorships are also producing 
some very positive changes.  For example, with 
support from the Healthy Club Sponsorship 
Program, the Scarboro Surf Life Saving Club 
introduced healthy food options at the club’s 
kiosk at Scarborough Beach last summer.  The 
result has been not only an increase in the 
number of club members eating healthy food, 
but also increased profits for the club as healthy 
food choices gain popularity. 
 
On a larger scale, another Healthway 
sponsorship recipient, Perth Racing, has found 
that offering healthy food choices at their venues 
can be profitable. 
 
In October 2005, Perth Racing announced a 
new range of healthy environment initiatives for 
Ascot Racecourse as part of their Healthway 
sponsorship promoting the Go for 2&5 nutrition 

message in conjunction with The Cancer 
Council of Western Australia. 
 
Among the new projects was the establishment 
of a Fresh ‘n Go Bar offering healthy food 
choices.  The good news is that the new healthy 
food choices proved so popular with racing 
patrons that the Fresh ‘n go Bar’s turnover soon 
outstripped the turnover of the existing Ascot 
Café, which sells traditional fast foods including 
chips and pies. 
 
This has been very encouraging for Healthway 
as it shows that the public will support healthy 
food choices if they are offered and well 
presented.  It gives us hope that the epidemic of 
overweight and obesity can be turned around in 
the long term. 
 
Healthway’s Board recognises there is a vast 
amount of work to be done and acknowledges 
that to be effective, the approach needs to 
involve all sections of the community.  In line 
with this, Healthway has already held a series of 
consultative meetings with key stakeholders in 
areas such as the sport, arts, racing and local 
government to gain their support and 
involvement.  
 
The response has been very positive.  For 
example, more Healthway sponsorships are 
already promoting nutrition and physical activity 
health messages and a number are already 
working with us to improve the availability and 
promotion of healthier food at their venues.  
 
Of course, a comprehensive approach must, as 
with tobacco control, include effective advocacy 
and in this respect, during the past year the 
Board commissioned a review of how we might 
do more in this area.  As a result, at its April 
2007 meeting, the Board agreed that a more 
coordinated, strategic and collaborative 
advocacy approach was needed in WA and 
agreed to invite an application for Healthway to 
support this activity on the proviso that the 
approach truly represented the cohesive forces 
of the key agencies working in the area. 
 
To progress this initiative, the Board recently 
convened a meeting of all key players in WA 
who have a role to play in fighting overweight 
and obesity.  This group included 
representatives from health agencies and 
universities, many of whom are already involved 
in advocacy activities. 
 
The group was asked to get together to develop 
a health promotion grant application to 
Heathway to establish an appropriate public 
health advocacy coalition that would focus on 
advocating for change on nutrition, overweight 
and obesity and other health promotion 
priorities. 
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In future, I look forward to reporting on the 
progress of this and other Healthway initiatives. 
 
I came to Healthway with a strong desire to join 
with like minded people in promoting health and 
healthier lifestyles in Western Australia.  I have 
now become so involved in the many exciting 
projects and programs developed and initiated 
by Healthway and its stakeholders that I actually 
find myself, after only eight months in the Chair, 
checking out other people’s shopping trolleys at 
the supermarket and taking a lot more notice of 
things like what and where people eat and drink. 
 
In closing, I would like to thank Luc Longley for 
his work at the helm of the organisation over the 
past three years and for the work he has done 
on governance and generally fine tuning the 
Board’s meeting procedures, which has left the 
organisation in such great shape that it has 
given me a dream run during my first eight 
months. 
 
Of course, little could be achieved without the 
highly professional and knowledgeable team of 
staff at Healthway, led by Neil Guard.  
Congratulations are also due to Neil on his 
election to the position of Chair of the 
International Network of Health Promotion 
Foundations, which is recognition of the high 
regard in which Heathway is seen in the 
international health promotion community.  
 
Thanks to you, Neil and your team. I am 
sincerely looking forward to working with you as 
we head for our shared goal of a Healthy WA. 
 

 
 
Jenn Morris 
CHAIRPERSON 
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 

 
 
One of the most significant developments during 
the year was the implementation of the Tobacco 
Products Control Act 2006, replacing the 
Tobacco Control Act 1990 under which 
Healthway has been operating for the past 16 
years. 
 
The new Act addresses the shortcomings of the 
Tobacco Control Act 1990, in particular by 
introducing new measures to control the latest 
marketing and promotional activities by the 
tobacco industry. 
 
The key purpose of the new Act is to reduce the 
incidence of illness and death caused by 
smoking tobacco, by prohibiting the supply of 
tobacco products to young people and by 
discouraging the use of tobacco products in 
general. 
 
This will be achieved by important provisions 
that include requiring proof of age to be 
produced on request at the point-of-sale, 
prohibiting the sale of confectionery, toys and 
other products that are designed to resemble 
tobacco products, controlling Internet sales and 
other forms of indirect sales of tobacco products 
and controlling information signs about the 
availability and price of tobacco products and 
health warning signs about the dangers of 
smoking and offences for selling to minors at 
point-of-sale. 
 
There are also comprehensive powers of 
enforcement and investigation. 
 
The Tobacco Products Control Act 2006 was 
assented to by Parliament in April 2006, and is 
currently the strongest and most comprehensive 
piece of tobacco control legislation in Australia.  
 
Since the Act was proclaimed, two sets of 
regulations have been gazetted. The first, the 
Tobacco Products Control Regulations 2006, 
was gazetted on 25 July 2006, and deals with 
regulations relating to the sale and supply of 
tobacco products and smoking in enclosed 
public places.  
 
The second, the Tobacco Products Control 
Amendment Regulations 2007, gazetted on 28 
February 2007, deals with licenses to sell 

tobacco products, licensing procedures and 
conditions, and the responsibilities of licensees 
when selling tobacco.  These regulations took 
effect on World No Tobacco Day, 31 May 2007.  
 
While comprehensively dealing with tobacco 
control in Western Australia, the new Act also 
governs the way in which Healthway is 
structured and the way in which it operates.  In 
this respect, it is pleasing to report that the Act 
has provided for increased flexibility in some of 
Healthway’s operations.  In particular, this 
means that: 
• Healthway’s Board may now make decisions 

without its members having to be present at a 
formal meeting.  Decisions can now be made 
via circular resolutions or, if Board members 
are not able to be present at a meeting, they 
can take part remotely via mechanisms such 
as teleconferencing or video link; 

• The Board may now delegate to the Executive 
Director or a Committee the authority to 
approve individual small grants, sponsorships 
and support sponsorships of up to $5,000, 
subject to clearly defined parameters; and 

• The Board has increased flexibility in deciding 
the number and make-up of its Advisory 
Committees.  In line with this, the Board is 
currently considering if there are any 
additional benefits to be obtained through 
different Committee structures than at 
present. 

 
Healthway’s Strategic Plans 
This will be my last report under the current 
Strategic Planning period which has taken us 
from 2004 through to the end of 2007.  
 
The Strategic Plan 2004 - 2007 was developed 
in consultation with Healthway’s key 
stakeholders and put in place a number of key 
directions, goals and strategies as the way 
ahead for the organisation as it has continued to 
pursue its goal of a Healthy WA. 
 
During the year, an independent review reported 
on progress made during the three year period 
and has identified that significant progress has 
been achieved in all goal areas, while also 
identifying that there are some areas in which 
Healthway should continue to build to achieve 
increased success in the future. 
 
In particular, the review identified that the 
organisation has been successful in directing a 
significant and increased proportion of its 
budget, over 65%, specifically towards projects 
addressing the high priority areas of tobacco 
control, mental health promotion, physical 
activity and nutrition. 
 
The review also identified that not only has 
Healthway focused more of its sponsorships and 
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grants on these priority health areas but it has 
also improved the targeting of its funds towards 
population groups with the greatest need for 
health promotion.  Important developments in 
this area have included: 
• A Kimberley Regional Coordination Initiative, 

which has involved funding a locally based 
position to assist with the development and 
support for health promotion and sponsorship 
projects in the region; 

• Mentally Healthy WA, a pilot mental health 
promotion program, which is currently 
reaching many people in six regional towns in 
the State; 

• New Healthy Community projects in four 
towns in regional WA; and 

• Improved promotion of grant and sponsorship 
opportunities, including via mechanisms such 
as an improved website, regional visits and 
through local governments and other partner 
organisations. 

 
While the review has identified many important 
achievements in all key strategic directions of 
the current Strategic Plan, it has also identified 
areas for us to work on in the period ahead.  
One of these is the need to continue to improve 
and trial new ways to increase the uptake of 
grant or sponsorship opportunities by priority 
population groups.  Another is the need for 
Healthway to develop better ways to convert 
successful research knowledge into policy, 
practice, programs and projects.  There is also a 
need to support the translation of health 
promotion evidence from successful projects 
into good practice guidelines and further or 
extended projects and programs. 
 
Small actions in this area have already been 
initiated, including the introduction of a new 
Healthway e-newsletter in early 2007, which has 
been well received by the community and helps 
to share information about innovative projects 
and programs. 
 
In addition, a major review of Healthway’s 
Health Promotion Research Program in the past 
12 months identified a need for wider 
dissemination and translation of important 
research findings.  As a result, Healthway’s 
Board has recently agreed to fund a new 
position that will focus on implementing the 
recommendations of the review with a special 
focus on the area of communication and 
knowledge transfer. 
 
These communication issues and others 
identified for improvement will be key 
considerations in the next six months, as 
Healthway develops its new Strategic Plan to 
take the organisation forward from 2008 to 2011. 
 
In the first part of the coming year, the 
Healthway Board will participate in discussions 
and a workshop to review Healthway’s priorities 
going forward, based on reviewing the 

achievements of the past three years, the 
current and emerging State health priorities and 
considering the activities of the major health 
agencies. 
 
This will be a challenging exercise for Heathway, 
when considering the range of emerging priority 
issues for health promotion, such as mental 
health and overweight and obesity, while 
recognising the need to maintain the momentum 
in critical areas such as tobacco control.  
 
Consultations with key stakeholders will then 
take place between September and November 
of the coming year. 
 
2006 Awards 
A highlight of the past year was the 2006 
Healthway Excellence in Health Promotion 
Awards. 
 
These awards have been presented every two 
years since 1994 and this year, the awards 
ceremony on 31 August coincided with 
Healthway’s 15th birthday celebrations.  
 
A total of 45 sport, arts, racing and health 
organisations were finalists in the various award 
categories with many being supported by health 
agencies. 
 
A special feature of the award ceremony was 
the presence of many of the Minsters for Health 
in the different State Governments that have 
been in power since Healthway began operating 
early in 1991.  It was wonderful to see so many 
former Health Ministers from both sides of the 
political fence join the current Minister for 
Health, the Hon. Jim McGinty and many others 
with a long association with Healthway, in 
celebrating the achievements of the past 15 
years. 
 
Finally, I would like to thank Healthway’s former 
Chair of the Board, Luc Longley, for his 
tremendous support during his three year term 
and to welcome our new Chair Jenn Morris, 
whose personal interest in community health 
and, in particular, the issue of overweight and 
obesity, is timely considering the challenges that 
lie ahead for our organisation. 
 
In closing, I would also like to especially thank 
Healthway’s dedicated and energetic team of 
staff who have been instrumental in enabling 
Healthway to progress in its journey towards a 
Healthy WA. 
 

 
Neil Guard 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
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MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE 
 
NEIL GUARD        EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 
 

As Executive Director, Neil is responsible for the provision of leadership and implementation of strategic 
direction as determined by the Board, as well as the operational management of Healthway. 
 
Neil joined Healthway in January 2003 after a career spanning 15 years in planning, marketing, strategic 
development and culture change programs in the private sector in the UK and five years at senior levels 
in the WA State Government, most recently as Director of Accommodation Services for the Disability 
Services Commission.   
 
JO CLARKSON           DIRECTOR, HEALTH PROMOTION 
 

As Director, Health Promotion, Jo is responsible for the management and administration of the Health 
Promotion Program including health promotion projects and research.  This involves servicing the Health 
Advisory Committee and Research Sub-Committee.  Jo is also responsible for providing support for the 
Health Promotion Sponsorship Programs. 
 
Jo has a PhD in medical research, a Masters degree in health promotion and health education, and 20 
years experience in health promotion program management and evaluation, both in Western Australia 
and Wales, UK. 
 
LINA BARBATO        DIRECTOR, CORPORATE SERVICES 
 

As Director, Corporate Services and Chief Finance Officer, Lina is responsible for managing financial, 
human and administrative resources and providing high level executive support to Healthway’s 
operations.   
 
Lina joined Healthway in March 2000 with over 20 years experience in the public sector.  Her previous 
experience includes holding a senior position at Treasury before moving to the position of Manager, 
Corporate Services at the former Bush Fires Board, and also at the Anti-Corruption Commission.  Lina 
has a Bachelor of Business (Accounting) from Curtin University and is currently studying towards an 
Advanced Diploma in Leadership and Management . 
 
LINDSAY LOVERING         ARTS PROGRAM MANAGER 
 

Lindsay is responsible for the Arts Sponsorship Program including developing policies and assessment of 
applications, as well as servicing the Arts Advisory Committee. 
 
Lindsay joined Healthway in 1991.  He was previously Senior Program Manager, Department for the Arts 
and prior to that, Music and Dance Officer with the Arts Council of Western Australia.  Lindsay has an 
extensive background in the music industry and is a member of the Industry Advisory Committee at the 
West Australian Academy of Performing Arts at Edith Cowan University, and has a Bachelor of Arts 
(Music) from the Canberra School of Music.   
 
BILL ONGLEY       SPORT PROGRAM MANAGER 
 

Bill is responsible for the Sport Sponsorship Program including strategic direction, developing policies and 
assessment of applications, as well as servicing the Sport Advisory Committee. 
 
Bill has been a member of Healthway’s staff since 1992, after ten years as a sport consultant with the 
Department of Sport and Recreation.  He has extensive experience in the management and development 
of sport and is currently a member of the Local Government Working Group of the Premier’s Physical 
Activity Taskforce and the Edith Cowan University’s Consultative Committee for the Bachelor of Science 
(Sport Science) degree. 
 
SARAH KEPERT               SPONSORSHIP CO-ORDINATOR 
 

Sarah is responsible for the Racing Sponsorship Program including developing policies and assessment 
of applications as well as servicing the Racing Advisory Committee.  She oversees the operational 
management of the support sponsorship program, which involves health agencies supporting the 
implementation of health promotion sponsorships in sport, arts and racing organisations. 
 
Sarah joined Healthway in July 2006 with 10 years experience in health related work within the public 
sector.  She holds a Bachelor of Science and a Postgraduate Diploma in Nutrition and Dietetics. 
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HEALTHWAY KEY STRATEGIC DIRECTIONS – REVIEW OF 
PROGRESS 
 
This report reflects the third and final full year of implementation of Healthway’s Strategic Plan 
2004 - 2007.  The Plan identifies five key strategic directions which are being pursued by the 
Healthway program areas. 
 
This section provides a summary of how each program area has addressed the key strategic 
directions in the 2006/07 reporting period. 
 
STRATEGIC DIRECTION 1 – FOCUSING ON THE GREATEST PRIORITY AREAS 
FOR HEALTH PROMOTION 
 
Since its inception, Healthway has sought to focus on areas of greatest priority for health 
promotion, as determined by evidence, national and state priorities, opportunities for health 
promotion, and the current level of intervention and activity in Western Australia. 
 
Healthway identified four health issues and the need for an increased focus on the social 
determinants of health as its highest priorities during the Strategic Plan period (and the year 
under review), as indicated in the table below: 
 

Health Determinants Risk Factors/Behaviours Health Issues 
Individual factors Poor nutrition * Mental ill health * 
Social factors Physical inactivity * Asthma 
Environmental factors Smoking * Cardiovascular disease 
 Alcohol / Drug misuse Cancer 
 Sexual behaviour Diabetes 
 Sun exposure Injury 
  Musculo-skeletal disorders 
  Overweight and obesity 

* Highest Priority Area 2004-2007 
 
Healthway’s key goals within this strategic direction are: 
 

Key goals 1.1 Increase the focus on previously identified areas of high 
priority: 
- Tobacco control 
- Mental health promotion 
- Physical activity 

 1.2 Proactively support the development of effective and new 
programs and initiatives that address Healthway’s priority 
health areas 

 1.3 Focus on the new priority areas of nutrition and social 
determinants of health 

 
 
PROGRESS REPORT 
 
General 
 
The commitment to supporting activities which address the identified greatest priorities for 
health promotion is demonstrated through the budget allocations during the year.  Of 
approximately $16.8 million committed in grants, sponsorships and support sponsorships during 
2006/07, 64% was directed towards Healthway’s high priority program areas – tobacco smoking 
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control (35%), physical activity (14%), mental health promotion (5%) and good nutrition (10%).  
This is commensurate with the proportion of Healthway funds directed to these priorities in 
2005/06.  A further 10% of Healthway grants and sponsorships were targeted towards projects 
whose broader focus included the above health issues. 
 
 
HEALTH PROMOTION PROGRAM 
 
Nearly 60% of the total health projects budget in 2006/07 was directed to tobacco smoking 
control initiatives.  New tobacco control projects funded in 2006/07 included: 
 
• WA Tobacco Document Searching Program 2006 – 2009: which will focus on tobacco 

industry documents relevant to Western Australia, with the aim of providing new information 
that will contribute to tobacco action and health promotion in the State; 

• Beyond the Big Smoke: this three year project will build on the earlier Healthway funded Say 
No to Smokes project, and will implement educational and organisational strategies to 
reduce tobacco smoking in Aboriginal Community Controlled Health Organisations 
throughout Weste rn Australia; and 

• 15 Smart School Grants to support school-based tobacco smoking control initiatives to 
complement the Smarter than Smoking project. 

 
In 2006/07, as well as continuing support for several major tobacco smoking control projects, 
funding was also renewed for a further three years to support the highly successful Smarter 
than Smoking project, which will have a stronger focus on reaching disadvantaged young 
people in the current phase.  
 
Mentally Healthy WA, the major mental health promotion intervention trial funded by Healthway 
and coordinated through the Centre for Behavioural Research at Curtin University, continued to 
break new ground during the year.  Several articles were published on the project in national 
and international journals, it was show-cased at an international mental health promotion 
conference held in Perth in 2007 and the staff gave numerous presentations both locally, inter-
state and internationally.  Results from the year one evaluation of the project were received 
during the year and show promising results in terms of awareness of the message and 
prompting people to take some action to improve their mental health.  
 
Projects with a primary focus on physical activity accounted for 4% of the health projects budget 
in 2006/07. This included new funding to the National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division), also known as the Heart Foundation, for a three-year marketing campaign 
encouraging parents to support their children to use active transport. The Make tracks2school 
campaign is part of a broader initiative under the Premier’s Physical Activity Taskforce with 
support for other components of the program from the Departments of Education and Training, 
and Planning and Infrastructure. 
 
Healthway supported several projects addressing nutrition in 2006/07.  However, the majority of 
these were small local healthy eating projects such as EatRight, a healthy cooking program 
through the Stand By Me Youth Service in Beechboro, and therefore nutrition accounted for 
only 1% of the health projects budget during 2006/07.  Of the larger nutrition initiatives, 
Healthway provided a second year of funding to the Australian Red Cross in WA (ARCWA), to 
extend the FoodCent$ program specifically into the Kwinana/Rockingham area, through training 
ARCWA volunteers.  Healthway also completed a scoping review of nutrition advocacy during 
the year, leading to the development of a special initiative planned for 2007/08 to strengthen 
advocacy for nutrition and other high priority public health issues in WA. 
 
Nearly 20% of health promotion projects funding in 2006/07 was allocated to projects in the 
general category of ‘health promotion’. This includes a number of major projects addressing 
more than one high priority health issue.  An example is the Regional Coordination Initiative in 
the Kimberley.  Through this project, Healthway continued to focus on nutrition and physical 
activity in the region through funding a coordinator based in the Kimberley Population Health 
Unit.   
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The Coordinator position also played a major role in increasing capacity for health promotion in 
the region, through support for two Indigenous and two non-Indigenous health promotion 
scholarship holders during the year.  
 
 
HEALTH PROMOTION RESEARCH PROGRAM 
 
In 2006/07, research grant, social determinants of health grant and starter grant applications 
that addressed the high priority areas of tobacco smoking control, mental health promotion, 
good nutrition, physical activity and Indigenous health, received a weighting at the time of 
assessment by the Research Sub-Committee.  
 
Healthway funded six new starter grants in 2006/07.  Three of these addressed one or more of 
the high priority health areas, including funding for: 
 
• Benchmarking smoking uptake in Western Australian immigrant adolescents, to Dr 

Raguragavan Ganeshasundaram, Edith Cowan University Joondalup; 
• Using mobile phones to improve fruit and vegetable intake in young adults, to Dr Deborah 

Kerr, Curtin University of Technology; and 
• Influence of Infant Sleep and Settling on Mother's Mental Health, to Dr Yvonne Hauck, 

Curtin University of Technology. 
 
In 2007, Healthway offered new research grants of up to $50,000 each for exploratory research 
studies in the social determinants of health and health promotion. Four applications were 
received and three were approved for funding during the year: 
 
• Using a web-based tool for reducing overweight and obesity in young mothers, to Dr Mary 

Naissides, Curtin University of Technology; 
• Connected Communities: Community centre setting and social determinants of health, to Dr 

Lisa Wood, The University of WA; and 
• Secondary school transition: healthy outcomes for all Australian adolescents, to Associate 

Professor Anne Passmore, Curtin University of Technology.  
 
Two health promotion scholarships and two Indigenous scholarships were awarded in 2006/07, 
focusing on one or more of Healthway’s high priority areas. The two successful scholarship 
candidates, both from Edith Cowan University, were Stacey Waters, who will explore the 
concept of school connectedness and the relationship to mental health outcomes; and Dionne 
Paki, who is investigating the prevention and management of bullying in the Yamaji region of 
Western Australia.  
 
The successful Indigenous scholarship recipient was Marion Kickett from The University of WA, 
who is examining how a culturally determined definition of resilience affects the physical and 
mental health of Aboriginal people.  The second Indigenous scholarship recipient withdrew from 
the scholarship as a result of full time employment. 
 
 
SPORT SPONSORSHIP PROGRAM 
 
In line with Healthway priorities and mounting evidence about the health impact of increasing 
physical inactivity, the Sport Sponsorship Program continued to make physical activity and 
increasing participation a fundamental requirement for all applications. 
 
As well as being an important contributor to physical well-being, participation in physical activity 
also plays an important part in the promotion of mental health by providing for meaningful 
participation in society and encouraging social connectedness.  Regional games and projects 
targeting seniors are examples of physical activity initiatives supported during the year that not 
only addressed inactivity but also provided individuals with an opportunity to meet and interact 
with others.   
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For example, in Albany, the community secured sponsorship from Healthway for three different 
events promoting the Act, Belong, Commit mental health promotion message aligned with the 
Healthway funded Mentally Healthy WA pilot project.  The Over 50’s Have A Go Day, the 
Albany Bicycle Treasure Hunt and the Fun Run/Family Walk are all examples of activities that 
included an opportunity for physical activity and social interaction as well as promoting 
community involvement. 
 
Table 1: Distribution of Sport Sponsorship Program funding 2006/07 – by health issue 
 

 2006/07 
Health 
Priority 

% of Projects 
(excluding Healthy Clubs) 

Approved Sponsorship 
(excluding Healthy Clubs) 

Physical Activity  34%  17% 

Tobacco Smoking Control  27%  35% 

Skin Cancer Prevention  21%  24% 

Alcohol & Other Drug Misuse  8%  9% 

Nutrition  7%  9% 

Injury Prevention  1%  3% 

Other  2%  2% 

 
In 2006/07, 68% of sport projects promoted messages aligned to Healthway’s priority health 
issues, accounting for 61% of Sport Sponsorship Program funds. 
 
34% of the projects approved for sponsorship promoted a physical activity message, with just 
over $900,000 or 17% of the program budget allocated to projects specifically promoting a Be 
Active message.  In addition, Healthway continued to assist the Heart Foundation and the 
Premier’s Physical Activity Taskforce to employ a Physical Activity Projects Coordinator.  This 
position supports the development and implementation of physical activity projects initiated 
through the Taskforce’s Local Activity Grants program, which between 2003 and 2007 has 
allocated some $1.2 million to 107 Local Government physical activity projects. 
 
In line with Healthway’s original mandate, tobacco smoking control was also a focus for the 
Sport Sponsorship Program.  In particular, the larger State sporting association sponsorships 
with significant youth aged audiences continued to be a very good vehicle for the promotion of 
the Smarter than Smoking message.  Australian rules football, netball, hockey, golf, rugby 
union, rugby league, softball, lacrosse, squash and football (soccer) all now carry this message 
across their junior programs and competitions and all major sports stadia have comprehensive 
no smoking policies in place.  In total, 35% of sport sponsorship funds were allocated to projects 
promoting tobacco smoking control health messages. 
 
The percentage of sponsorship funds allocated to projects promoting a nutrition message 
increased from 8% in 2005/06 to 9% in 2006/07.  
 
 
ARTS SPONSORSHIP PROGRAM 
 
In 2006/07, 74% of the Arts Sponsorship Program budget was allocated to the four health 
priority areas, reflecting increases in three of the four areas, compared with 2005/06. 
 
To promote tobacco smoking control, $924,000 was allocated to 68 arts projects that promoted 
the SmokeFree WA or Smarter than Smoking messages.  Significantly, the Arts Sponsorship 
Program focused on expanding smoke free policies through sponsorships.  Examples include 
the Joondalup Festival, attended by an estimated 50,000 people in 2006/07, where the CBD 
was declared smoke free for the duration of the sponsorship and the Mowanjum Cultural 
Festival in the Kimberley region which was attended by approximately 2,200 people.  Both 
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sponsorships used regular announcements, role models and innovative strategies such as 
street theatre performers to promote the extension of smoke free areas. 
 

Arts Sponsorships 2006/07 
$ Distribution by Health Issues

20%

9%

2%

4%

11%22%

32%

Alcohol and Other Drug
Misuse

Good Nutrition Promotion

Health Promotion 

Injury Prevention

Mental Health Promotion

Physical Activity Promotion 

Tobacco Smoking Control

 
Consistent with the previous year, there was an increased focus in 2006/07 on promoting and 
enabling physical activity participation through the arts.  $641,000 (or 22.33%) of the arts 
sponsorship budget was allocated to 50 projects that promoted the Be Active message, an 
increase of 7% when compared with 2005/06. 
 
Projects that promoted the Be Active message were diverse and varied. For example: 
 
• Artatac – Busselton Beach Festival, held on the foreshore of Busselton, received 

sponsorship for a program of activities targeting the involvement and engagement of young 
people through an innovative program of contemporary music and youth cultural events; and 

• Disability and the Arts, Disadvantage and the Arts Inc (DADAA) promoted the Be Active 
message through a diverse range of cultural activities State wide to 46 communities, from 
Fitzroy Crossing to Albany.  The activities included a partnership with Buzz Dance Theatre 
to increase participation in dance through the Decade Dance project.   

 
A total of $246,500 was allocated to 28 projects which promoted the Enjoy Healthy Eating or Go 
for 2&5 nutrition messages.  This represented an increase of almost 2% on 2005/06.  In 
particular, the message was allocated to a number of Festivals that engaged with different 
sectors of the community.  These included the family oriented Harvest and Kamberang Festivals 
run by City Farm, and the Araluen Chilli Festival.  These events provided outstanding 
opportunities for the promotion of the Go for 2&5 message, and were complemented with a 
range of healthy food promotions and demonstrations. 
 
A number of innovative literature sponsorships also promoted the Go for 2&5 message for the 
first time. They included the Kimberley Writers Festival held in Kununurra, Kids Lit 2007 
coordinated by All Saints College and Fremantle Children’s Literature Centre.   
 
$319,000 (11%) of the Arts Sponsorship Program budget promoted the Make Time to Talk or 
Act, Belong, Commit mental health promotion messages through 29 arts sponsorships, primarily 
in conjunction with the Mentally Healthy WA campaign in towns such as Esperance, Kalgoorlie, 
Geraldton, Albany, Karratha, Northam, York and Toodyay.   
 
Outstanding projects included PhotoVoice, that involved Indigenous “at risk” youth from the 
Millen Street Youth Centre in Kalgoorlie and provided participants with an opportunity to share 



 

Annual Report 2006/07    27 

ideas and concepts through digital photography that resulted in a public exhibition of their works 
in the Kalgoorlie Town Square.  This successful project has now been extended to Esperance, 
Karratha and Northam. 
 
 
RACING SPONSORSHIP PROGRAM 
 
In 2006/07, 43% of the racing sponsorship budget was allocated to projects promoting a 
tobacco smoking control message, 36% to promoting a nutrition message and 19% to 
promoting a physical activity message.  

Racing Sponsorships 2006/07 
Distribution by Racing Type

43%

36%

19%

2%

Motorsport - Smoking

Turf Racing - Nutrition

Harness Racing -
Physical Activity

Other

 
With a focus on the issue of tobacco smoking control, significant progress was made with the 
expansion of smoke free environments within the larger racing sponsorships.  Perth Racing, the 
WA Trotting Association, Telstra Rally Australia, QUIT Forest Rally and QUIT Targa West Rally 
significantly expanded smoke free policies at their events and venues. 
 
Increased sponsorship support was provided to Motorcycling WA to pilot two smoke free venues 
at junior motocross tracks (including one regional track).  In addition, in December 2006, 
Motorcycling WA agreed to work with Healthway and the WA School Canteen Association in a 
pilot project to investigate the potential for improving the provision of healthy food choices 
through the canteens at two motorcycling venues.  If successful, it is hoped that a wider roll out 
of canteen reform in sporting and racing canteens will be progressed throughout 2007/08. 
 
Also in the priority area of improving nutrition, Perth Racing’s Fresh ‘n Go food bar at both Ascot 
and Belmont race courses has been a resounding success.  Not only has the Ascot venue 
increased total food sales significantly since the Fresh ‘n Go Bar opened in 2005, but there has 
also been a significant decrease in the purchase of less healthy, higher fat items and a large 
increase in the purchase of healthy items.  This is an important finding as sport, racing and arts 
canteens and food outlets are more likely to follow the change to healthier alternatives if there is 
a financial benefit. 
 
The WA Trotting Association and Country Harness Clubs have continued during 2006/07 to 
support the promotion of the Be Active message via a strong communications platform which 
has included encouraging community group participation and on course activities for families.  
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STRATEGIC DIRECTION 2 – GETTING TO THE RIGHT PEOPLE 
 
There are increasing concerns globally regarding inequalities in health, with some population 
groups experiencing much poorer health, or engaging in less healthy lifestyles and behaviours.  
A range of social, economic and environmental factors contribute to these health inequalities.  
Healthway is seeking to have a greater impact on priority population groups in the current plan 
period, with a particular emphasis on reducing the barriers to healthy lifestyles and behaviours 
among these populations. 
 
Healthway’s legislative mandate identifies young people as a priority population group for the 
promotion of good health.  Healthway’s strategic planning process identified a range of other 
priority populations experiencing poorer health, social inequality and a higher prevalence of risk 
factors for premature death and disease.  Priority populations for Healthway are as follows: 
 

Priority Populations 
Young people & children 
Indigenous people  
Rural and remote communities 
Economically, socially or educationally disadvantaged groups 
Other disadvantaged groups or groups in whom inequalities exist 

 
Healthway’s key goals within this strategic direction are: 
 

Key goals 2.1 Increase the focus on promoting and improving 
health amongst population groups in whom health 
inequalities exist 

 2.2 Address barriers to enable healthier behaviours and 
lifestyles among priority population groups 

 
 
PROGRESS RE PORT 
 
General 
 
In each of Healthway’s program areas there has been a continued focus during 2006/07 on 
accessing the priority population groups and delivering health promotion in the settings where 
these populations live, work and play.   
 
Volume 2 of an Organisational Survey 1992 – 2005 was received in July 2006 and reported on 
the Effects of Healthway on Sponsored Organisations. The Survey was conducted by the 
Health Promotion Evaluation Unit (HPEU) at The University of Western Australia and involved a 
survey of all organisations in receipt of grants or sponsorships from Healthway between April 
2004 and April 2005.   
 
The organisations surveyed reported reaching target groups that were consistent with 
Healthway’s priority areas, including youth, Indigenous people, rural and remote communities 
and other disadvantaged groups, as illustrated in the following graph.  
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Target groups reached as a result of Healthway funding
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Rosenberg M, French S, Wood L. Organisational Survey 1992-2005 Volume 2: The Effects of Healthway on Sponsored 
Organisations, Health Promotion Evaluation Unit, Department of Public Health, The University of Western Australia, Perth 
2006.  
 
Healthway has continued to implement initiatives to encourage and support the development of 
projects and applications from priority population groups, with strategies during the year, 
including: 
 

• Improvements to the Healthway website; 
• Engagement of Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) to assist with promotion and 

administration the Healthway Healthy Club sponsorship program; 
• Regional visits and community workshops promoting Healthway programs and funding 

opportunities; and 
• The introduction of an e-newsletter, providing bi-monthly information on a range of 

topics, including forthcoming grant or sponsorship opportunities. 
 
 
HEALTH PROMOTION PROGRAM 
 
More than 50% of projects funded through the Health Promotion Program have youth or 
children as the specific focus, including the nationally and internationally recognised Smarter 
than Smoking project and the Make tracks2school campaign, for which grants were approved in 
2006/07.  In addition, funded projects such as the Mooditj Talk peer education project run by 
Family Planning WA and The Cancer Council of WA’s Sun Smart Generation project continued 
to promote health to adolescents and teenagers during 2006/07. 
 
Of the 15 Smart School Grants approved to support tobacco smoking control initiatives at the 
school and community level in 2006/07, one third were awarded to schools in rural or regional 
areas, and around one half served disadvantaged communities, including children from 
culturally and linguistically diverse backgrounds. 
 
More than one half of the 49 new health promotion projects funded during the year have a focus 
on reaching regional or rural communities, including: 
 
• Beyond the Big Smoke, a major new Aboriginal tobacco smoking control project focusing on 

local Aboriginal health services; 
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• Capacity Building Scholarships for rural and remote delegates to attend the Public Health 
Association of WA Conference in Fremantle in late 2007; and  

• Support for Aboriginal health professionals in regional areas to attend the State Aboriginal 
Health Promotion Conference. 

 
In addition, the Mentally Healthy WA pilot mentioned in the preceding section and four 
Healthway funded Healthy Communi ty projects are targeting cities and towns in regional WA. 
 
The Kimberley Regional Coordination Initiative described in the previous section has supported 
around nine new projects during the year, targeting Indigenous and disadvantaged people in the 
Kimberley health region.  A further project through the Wongutha Birni Aboriginal Corporation is 
targeting Aboriginal people in several Goldfields communities and developing a health 
education program within a major research study in the region, which is investigating the 
prevalence and prevention of kidney disease among Aboriginal people. 
 
Other funded projects targeting Indigenous people have included: 
 
• The dissemination phase of the successful Family Planning WA Mooditj Talk program.  The 

pilot phase of the project was completed in 2004 and won a Healthway Award in 2006 for its 
innovative approach to helping Indigenous young people to develop communication skills 
and confidence to deal with issues around sexual and emotional health; and 

• The Smarter than Smoking, and the Newborns Asthma Prevention and Smoking Projects 
(NAPS), which have developed targeted strategies and culturally appropriate resources to 
ensure that their messages are relevant to Aboriginal people.   

 
 
HEALTH PROMOTION RESEARCH PROGRAM 
 
As the highest priority target groups for Healthway are young people and Indigenous people, 
applications for funding were encouraged to focus on these target populations and loadings 
were applied when the Committee assessed research grant applications.  
 
Young people were the focus of three of the six starter grants funded this year. Of the nine 
larger research project grants approved during the year, seven also targeted priority population 
groups.  Within the special initiative category of the social determinants of health, one of the 
three applications approved during the year targeted young people.  
 
Disadvantaged groups are also a high priority for Healthway.  A starter grant was funded for 
Professor Peter Drummond at Murdoch University to develop community-tailored training 
manuals and run training sessions for West African women who will run workshops in their 
community.  Changes in health knowledge and key outcomes (e.g. body weight, involvement in 
exercise, physical activity) will be measured and if successful, this peer-led approach will serve 
as a model for similar interventions in other new and emerging communities in Western 
Australia. 
 
Professor Donna Cross of Edith Cowan University was funded to investigate the most effective 
strategies and messages for use with parents of children aged under nine years to encourage 
them to quit smoking, equip ex-smoking parents to communicate with their children about 
smoking-related issues and consolidate the findings into a program for parent based 
communication.  The two-year study will lead to the development of two ‘toolkits’ for parents and 
for primary health care providers. 
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SPORT SPONSORSHIP PROGRAM 
 
In 2006/07, the Sport Sponsorship Program continued to encourage and support applications 
for sponsorship which focused on those population groups in which health inequalities exist.  
The Program continues to be a major supporter of the sport and recreation sector in the 
provision of physical activity options for large numbers of Western Australians and in particular 
children and youth.  Statistics from sponsorship applications received indicate that 71% of the 
participants, 22% of the organisers and 35% of the spectators in sponsored projects were aged 
17 and under.  
 
The junior development activities of State sport associations such as netball, football, hockey, 
basketball, tennis and golf continued to be supported because of their capacity to reach ten’s of 
thousands of young participants with health messages like Smarter than Smoking, Go for 2&5 
and SunSmart.  Associations were also encouraged to develop initiatives that would provide 
Healthway with better access to priority population groups.  For example, Football West created 
a specific program for young migrants (mostly from an African background) living in the 
Maylands area. 
 
Throughout the year, Healthway also continued to encourage and support new and innovative 
approaches to reaching young people in regional WA and encouraging participation in physical 
activity initiatives, including those who may not be attracted to traditional sport.  Examples 
include sponsorship of the Shire of Kondinin’s Wheatbel t Youth Skate It Out program and a Be 
Active Skate program conducted in the South West.  The latter program involves a Bunbury 
based skating centre providing in-line skating clinics for schools in the South West region.   
 
Two rounds of the Healthy Club Program were again funded during the report period.  In total, 
370 applications were received and 323 were recommended for sponsorship.  Around 45% of 
these clubs were country based.  In 2006/07, increased support from Sports Medicine Australia 
(WA Branch) in helping to coordinate this program resulted in an increased number of 
applications compared to the previous year.  Their support included the introduction of health 
issue workshops for sporting clubs, an e-newsletter to improve communication, and regional 
visits to assist country clubs.   

Sport Sponsorships 2006/07
Program Reach - Priority Groups

8%

35%

21%

36%
Indigenous 

Regional Centres

Rural Communities 

Other Disadvantaged Groups

 
During the year, the Sport Sponsorship Program continued to support a range of State sporting 
associations to develop and maintain initiatives targeting Indigenous people, as well as 
continuing sponsorship of the Department of Sport and Recreation’s Indigenous Sport Program 
and Garnduwa Amboorny Wirnan’s Kimberley sport development activities.   
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New sponsorships approved during the year and focusing on reaching Indigenous people 
included the Broome PCYC Social Basketball competition, football projects with South 
Fremantle Football Club and Gwaba Enterprises Aboriginal Corporation and a Fitzroy Crossing 
Fun Run.  These programs have helped to expand participation opportunities and to deliver 
important health messages and achieve healthier environments in Indigenous communities.  
 
In 2006/07, approximately 5% of the Sport Program budget continued to be allocated to 
organisations catering primarily for people with disabilities.  Sponsorship was renewed to the 
WA Disabled Sports Association and Wheelchair Sports WA to deliver a range of programs and 
events.  Riding for the Disabled Association, with its capacity to reach low income and country 
participants, also received continued support and in addition, sponsorship was awarded to 
Sailability WA, for the expansion of activities in the metropolitan area and in the North West. 
 
Additionally, under a two year Memorandum of Understanding with the Disability Services 
Commission, Healthway, in conjunction with the Premier’s Physical Activity Taskforce, was able 
to offer a new grants program in 2006/07, designed to increase the physical activity participation 
levels of people with a disability.  The first round of the grants program, Expanding Physical 
Activity Opportunities for People with Disabilities, resulted in 40 expressions of interest and 16 
full applications.  Following consideration by an assessment panel that included a range of 
stakeholder representatives, seven projects (including two in regional WA) were approved for 
grants totalling almost $190,000.  An additional grant was awarded to the Curtin University’s 
Centre for Research into Disability and Society to conduct an independent evaluation of the 
grants program.  A second round of grants will be offered in late 2007. 
 
 
ARTS SPONSORSHIP PROGRAM 
 
Consistent with the Strategic Plan objectives, in 2006/07 the Arts Sponsorship Program 
continued to focus on increasing access, participation and engagement with young people, 
Indigenous groups and rural and remote populations throughout WA.  Increases in sponsorship 
of arts activities involving these populations were reported.  

Arts Sponsorships 2006/07 
$ Distribution - Getting to the Right People
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$1.7 million (60% of the program budget) was allocated by the Arts Sponsorship Program to 
activities that specifically targeted children and young people, an increase of 2% on the 
previous year.  However, consistent with last year, an estimated $2.1 million (73%) was 
allocated to projects that involved children and youth as participants, volunteers or spectators. 
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The increasing popularity and interest amongst young people in circus activities, including 
Indigenous youth, was noted by Healthway and $235,000 (8%) was allocated to this area during 
2006/07.  For example, the establishment of an ongoing skills development program 
coordinated by Lunar Circus in Margaret River, resulted in the presentation of a range of 
community based performance activities that also provided Healthway with an effective avenue 
to promote the Be Active message.  For the first time, annual multi-event (MEAP) sponsorship 
was offered to Skadada to support an innovative program that combines the skills of aerial 
circus and gymnastics in a creative and non competitive environment.  The company received 
an outstanding response from teachers, parents and students for their highly successful schools 
and community program.  
 
Arts sponsorship was allocated during the year to a number of contemporary music activities 
engaging with young people, many taking place in regional towns in WA.  These projects 
included several coordinated by local governments: 
 
• The Battle of the Bands, presented as part of the Meekatharra Festival by the Shire of 

Meekatharra; 
• Ampfest, a competition coordinated by a number of western suburb Local Government 

Authorities;  
• Youth Fest in Kalgoorlie, coordinated by the City of Kalgoorlie Boulder; and 
• Hyperfest, coordinated by the City of Swan at the Midland Railway Workshops.  
 
These events attracted widespread community support and were well attended by young people 
in the area.  They generally promoted the Drug Aware message and provided opportunities to 
introduce smoke free policies in outdoor settings.  
 
 
RACING SPONSORSHIP PROGRAM  

Racing Sponsorships 2006/07
Distribution by Primary Target Markets
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8% of racing projects sponsored in 2006/07 had young people (13 to 17 years) as the primary 
target group.  Participation numbers across these junior racing programs has seen steady 
growth, with the sponsorships also providing a pathway for further development into adult 
racing.  The Junior Sedan Drivers reported an increase of 30% in the number of junior 
participants in the program.  
 
Engagement with racing organisations in regional areas has been a priority for the program this 
financial year and 79% of sponsored projects supported have been in regional, rural and remote 
areas of Western Australia, providing opportunities to promote health to these harder to reach 
groups. 
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Increased sponsorship funds were allocated to regional motorcycling and karting clubs.  New 
racing sponsorships approved to promote the SmokeFree WA message through all associated 
activities included: 
 
• The Australian Safari, which will take place in September 2007.  This is a new rally event on 

the racing circuit, which will tour through regional and remote communities throughout 
Western Australia, particularly in the Kimberley; and 

• The Gascoyne Dash, an off-road race for 4WD’s, all terrain buggies and two and four wheel 
(quad) motorbikes which will take place in October 2007. 

 
As in previous years, sponsorships such as regional turf and harness racing, vintage cars, 
speedway, rallying, karting and motorcross also reached regional centres and rural and remote 
communities. 
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STRATEGIC DIRECTION 3 – FINDING AND USING THE RIGHT STRATEGIES 
 
Healthway is committed to promoting and supporting evidence-based health promotion, and to 
encouraging the dissemination and adoption of successful projects and strategies.  Healthway 
also recognises the need to respond to changes in social, economic and technological trends 
and that there are gaps in knowledge, particularly with respect to some of its priority population 
groups.  It will therefore continue to support the development and evaluation of innovative 
strategies for promoting and improving health. 
 

Key goals 3.1 Facilitate the wider dissemination and implementation 
of effective health promotion strategies and programs 

 3.2 Actively promote and support the translation of 
evidence-based health promotion research into 
strategies and programs 

 3.3 Encourage and support the development and 
evaluation of new and innovative approaches to 
promoting health 

 3.4 Evaluate and review sponsorships, projects and 
programs to improve the overall effectiveness and 
degree of health promotion returns 

 
 
PROGRESS RE PORT 
 
General 
 
Healthway continually reviews its programs as part of a continuous improvement process.  It 
has in place a comprehensive framework for the evaluation of organisational performance and 
the performance of its programs and projects supported through grants and sponsorships.  
Independent support for this evaluation framework is provided by HPEU at The University of 
Western Australia. 
 
In addition to ongoing evaluation, field studies are also commissioned where appropriate to 
review and evaluate the effectiveness of specific programs, projects or approaches.  Field 
studies completed in 2006/07 included an evaluation of Healthway sponsorships valued up to 
$5,000.  The study investigated the effectiveness of Healthway sponsorship of smaller sport, 
arts and racing events between 1 December 2005 and 6 March 2006.  In addition to a survey, 
an independent environmental audit was conducted at each event to assess the presence of 
sponsorship strategies, as well as implemented environmental/structural supports.  A total of 
447 audience members completed a self administered survey across 15 events. 
 
The evaluation reported that 65% of respondents were aware of the health message being 
promoted at these events.  Comprehension of the health message was high at 81%, with a 
similarly high level of acceptance (86.9%) among those who comprehended the message.  The 
evaluation concluded that smaller sponsorships remain effective in raising health message 
awareness.  It confirmed that well placed, highly visible signage remains effective in raising 
awareness and that the use of several promotional/educational strategies appeared effective in 
generating greater awareness.   
 
Evidence of the implementation of structural/policy support was also observed within the 
selected events, though some gaps were identified in the enforcement of smoking policies and 
promotion of healthy food options, with the recommendation that Healthway should consider 
providing additional support for the implementation of these policies. 
 
Other reports completed by HPEU during 2006/07 included Volumes 1 – 4 of the Organisational 
Survey 1992 – 2005.  This Survey is conducted every four years and was previously conducted 
in 1992, 1994, 1997, and 2001.  The 2005 Survey sampled all organisations that completed 
Healthway funded projects after 30 April in the previous year and commenced projects before 
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30 April in the survey year.  Overall, 461 organisations were contacted (426 sport, arts and 
racing organisations and 35 health organisations), with a 99% response rate. 
 
The Survey measured the effects of Healthway on sponsored organisations, healthy 
environment policies in Healthway funded organisations, and relationships between Healthway 
and sponsored organisations.  Overall it identified that, compared with previous survey periods: 
 
• A high level effect had been maintained or improved.  The Survey provided evidence that 

Healthway had continued to make a positive contribution to the organisations it funds in 
terms of increasing health promotion practices, exposure to health promotion messages and 
healthier recreational/settings offered to the public; 

• Healthway had been successful in promoting and extending healthier environments for 
Western Australians in a variety of settings; and  

• Healthway has consistently maintained and in some areas strengthened its relationships 
with funded organisations. 

 
Scope for improvement was identified in areas such as the need to improve the explanation of 
health promotion project grant recipient responsibilities and Healthway funding guidelines.  
These areas will be addressed in the period ahead. 
 
 
HEALTH PROMOTION PROGRAM 
 
Healthway encourages applicants for health promotion project funding to develop proposals 
based on best practice in health promotion from the published literature.  Healthway is also 
committed to encouraging the adoption and dissemination of successful initiatives.  Healthway 
continued to work with HPEU in 2006/07 to review past Healthway funded health promotion 
projects, to identify examples with the potential for wider dissemination.  Further case studies 
from successful Indigenous projects and those focusing on nutrition and physical activity are in 
production for dissemination during 2007/08.   
 
One of the successful case studies was a small healthy lifestyles project in Broome, which ran 
over 12 months and supported Aboriginal women to reduce their risk of chronic disease through 
regular physical activity and healthy cooking sessions.  The Let’s Get Physical project was 
originally funded by Healthway in 2004 and won a Healthway Award in 2006.  The approach 
pioneered through this project has since been adopted by several additional communities 
across the Kimberley, including Halls Creek and Kununurra. 
 
A partnership of regional population health units also received funding from Healthway during 
2006/07 to update the Canning Stock Route Challenge, a successful school-based program that 
has been widely adopted throughout the north of WA in the past few years.  Healthway funding 
will enable the program to incorporate the most recent health recommendations, and to be more 
closely aligned to the cur riculum and health promoting schools frameworks.  
 
Healthway has also continued funding support during 2006/07 for a number of health promotion 
initiatives that are based on best practice in health promotion and on previously evaluated 
projects.  For example, funding has continued for four new Healthy Community projects in 
Denmark, Katanning, Newman and Carnarvon, which are building on the lessons learned from 
the two successful pilot projects supported by Healthway from 1999 to 2002.  Healthway 
support was also renewed for the successful Health+Medicine supplement in The West 
Australian newspaper, which has gained a number of national and international awards.  
Similarly, renewed funding was approved for the Australian Health Promotion Association (WA 
Branch) for their highly successful Graduate and ATSI scholarship programs.   
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HEALTH PROMOTION RESEARCH PROGRAM 
 
The research program has a strong focus on finding and testing the right strategies, and 
applicants for intervention research can apply for a higher level of funding to support the 
development of a new health promotion intervention.  
 
A project grant approved during the year to Professor Colin Binns from Curtin University is 
based on evidence that while fathers’ support is a critical factor in breastfeeding practices, few 
studies have examined how this support can be enhanced to increase breastfeeding rates 
within an Australian context.  The research involves the collection of qualitative data to 
investigate the nature of the father’s support and identify factors that facilitate or inhibit this 
support. The research also involves a randomised controlled trial of educational and social 
marketing interventions aimed at fathers, to assess their impact on infant feeding practices.  
 
A starter grant was awarded to Dr Deborah Kerr from Curtin University of Technology to assess 
the feasibility and acceptability of camera mobile phones as tools to assess fruit and vegetable 
intake in young adults.  This would lead to piloting a system for on-line submission, instant 
messaging and feedback on daily fruit and vegetable serves in young Western Australian adults 
aged 18 to 25 years.  This study has the potential to provide information on the use of camera 
phones both as a method for recording food intake and as a health promotion tool. 
 
Healthway is also committed to promoting and supporting evidence-based health promotion, 
and encouraging the dissemination and adoption of successful projects and strategies. To 
assist with this, applicants for research grants are required to address how their research will be 
used to inform health promotion practice and how they plan to disseminate their findings.  Over 
the past 16 years, Healthway has funded more than 215 research studies.  From these studies, 
more than 450 scientific papers have been published as well as 759 local, 396 national and 370 
international presentations at workshops, seminars and conferences.  
 
During the year, a comprehensive review of the Health Promotion Research Program was 
completed, to ensure that the Program continues to meet Healthway objectives and is strongly 
aligned to Healthway’s directions and priorities.  The review identified that the program is held in 
very high regard amongst stakeholders, but made a range of recommendations to the 
Healthway Board, primarily in respect to improving the communication of research outcomes 
and placing additional emphasis on supporting the transfer/translation of knowledge and 
research outcomes and the practical implementation of these outcomes.  Following 
consideration of the report, in April 2007 the Board approved a two year project to progress the 
implementation of these recommendations.  This project will commence in the year ahead. 
 
 
SPORT SPONSORSHIP PROGRAM 
 
In 2005/06 a comprehensive review of the Sport Sponsorship Program was undertaken to better 
align the Program with Healthway’s priority audiences and strategic directions.  During 2006/07, 
many of the recommendations from the review were implemented, including: 
 
• A new assessment framework for $5,000 or less applications was developed and tested with 

assistance from an external consultant and the Department of Sport and Recreation.  This 
new framework, together with a more flexible approval process will assist with the 
assessment of applications and provide more time for the program to work directly with 
Healthway’s client groups; and 

• An increased focus on nutrition and the promotion of healthy eating.  During the year, 
progress was made in a number of related areas. Firstly, the WA School Canteen 
Association (WASCA) was provided with a grant to conduct a pilot project trialling the 
introduction and promotion of healthier food choices in sport (and racing club) canteens.  
WASCA is now working with three basketball canteens in a four stage process designed to 
ensure clubs can implement healthier food choices in a sustainable way.  In addition, 
Healthway committed funds to investigate the extent of fast food, soft drink, confectionery 
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and alcohol sponsorship in sport, arts and racing organisations.  This report is due to be 
completed in August 2007.   

 
To engage key sporting organisations in consideration of the role that the sport industry could 
play in addressing issues concerning overweight and obesity, the Sport Sponsorship Program 
convened a meeting of some 25 industry representatives.  Issues discussed included canteen 
reform and the provision of healthy food options at major events, co-sponsorship and the 
possibility of a sport-led social marketing/communication campaign.  An outcome of this meeting 
is the formation of a small consultative group including key sport sector representatives that will 
provide input into the development of appropriate strategies. 
 
Healthway staff continued during the year to meet with key organisations prior to application 
closing dates to advise with respect to health promotion priorities and to improve the quality of 
applications.  In addition, the Sport Advisory Committee introduced a process of briefings by 
organisations in receipt of significant sponsorships.  The WA Institute of Sport, Netball WA and 
the WA Football Commission were the first groups to brief the Committee on their current and 
future direction. 
 
Statistics provided by Sport Sponsorship Program applicants estimated the total “reach” of 
sponsored projects during the year to be over 2.4 million, almost half of which were children and 
youth.  
 
Sponsorship Monitor findings also continued to confirm the effectiveness of sport sponsorships 
as a strategy to achieve high awareness (77%), comprehension and acceptance of a health 
message. The results also confirm that sport sponsorship can achieve self-reported behaviour 
change, with 14.5% of respondents surveyed indicating they took some relevant action as a 
result of exposure to a health message.  This was higher than the average of 10% recorded 
across sport, arts and racing sponsorships.  
 
The Healthy Club program continued to be an effective way to engage community sporting 
clubs in health promotion.  During the year, an audit was undertaken by HPEU of nine clubs in 
receipt of sponsorship in the Summer 2006/07 round, to provide a snapshot of compliance with 
smoke free guidelines, club implementation of Healthy Club Policies and the use of items 
provided in the sponsorship kit.28  The audit identified that all clubs complied with the smoke 
free policies and that the program also appeared to be successful at promoting other health 
initiatives relating to sun safety, alcohol and nutrition. 
 
 
ARTS SPONSORSHIP PROGRAM 
 
During 2006/07, the Arts Sponsorship Program progressed implementation of many of the 
recommendations from the review of the Program conducted in the previous year.  The most 
significant were the introduction of: 
 
• A new initiative targeting health promotion in schools – a new sponsorship scheme known 

as the Health In Schools Through the Arts (HISTA) sponsorship program was introduced in 
June 2007; and 

• An Arts and Health Visiting Fellow scheme, which aims to advance and promote the 
relationship between the areas of art and health.  The program is designed to build 
capacity for improving health through the arts, by providing the opportunity for an arts 
organisation to bring an expert to WA to work with local groups for a period of up to three 
months.  It is anticipated that the first residency will take place in late 2007.  

 
In 2006/07, $1.87 million was allocated to 52 organisations that received sponsorship of 
$20,000 or more through the Multi Event and Annual Program (MEAP) category of arts 
sponsorship.  A feature of successful applicants was the demonstrated capacity to target 
Healthway’s priority groups of children and youth, Indigenous communities and rural and remote 
populations.  A number of existing recipients also received support to present a range of 
activities outside the metropolitan area.  
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Arts Sponsorship Program staff undertook a number of field trips during the year to areas in 
regional WA including Kalgoorlie, Norseman, Kambalda, Geraldton, Albany, Boddington, 
Northam, Kellerberrin, Bunbury and Busselton.  Presentations were also given to the Arts 
Management students at the WA Academy of Performing Arts, the Royal Agricultural Society 
and the AHPA National Conference in Adelaide.  In many instances these field visits resulted in 
new applications from groups that had not previously applied for Healthway sponsorship 
support. 
 
Staff of the Arts Sponsorship Program were also actively involved in the International Mental 
Health Promotion Conference – “Kindling The Flame”, held in Perth from 21 - 23 February 2007.  
The close connection between the arts and mental health and wellbeing was highlighted 
through the conference, in response to which the Arts Sponsorship Program offered capacity 
building scholarships to enable attendance at the Conference by key personnel from the WA 
arts sector.  
 
 
RACING SPONSORSHIP PROGRAM  
 
The 2006/07 Sponsorship Monitor conducted by HPEU continued to demonstrate the 
effectiveness of sponsorship as a strategy to engage and promote health to racing patrons.  
The Monitor reported that 65% of those interviewed were aware of the health message being 
promoted at the racing event, which was comparable to the 2002/03 survey results (66%), but 
lower than in 2004/05 (78%).  However, in 2006/07, intention to take some action as a result of 
exposure to the message (27.7%) was higher than the previous two Monitors (19.3% and 
23.5%).  Total action (5.3%) was higher than in 2002/03, but slightly lower than in the 2004/05 
Monitor (6.8%). 
 
Recipients of racing sponsorships continued to be assisted in extending smoke free areas 
through the use of additional support to inform racing patrons and to promote, publicise and 
enforce implementation.  As a result, the Healthway goal for all larger sponsored events to be 
smoke free in all viewing and spectator areas was achieved. 
 
Also during the year, the use of role model Dean Herridge, one of Australia’s top rally drivers, 
provided added-value sponsorship opportunities within rally sponsorships.  Role models were 
also used very successfully by the Junior Sedan Racing Association WA. 
 
A significant feature of the partnership developed with the WA Trotting Association has been the 
adoption of healthier food choices across the venue and in particular within the main stand at 
Gloucester Park.  In addition, the WA Trotting Association implemented a men’s health 
assessment at one of the main Healthway sponsored events. 
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STRATEGIC DIRECTION 4 – WORKING IN PARTNERSHIP WITH OTHERS 
 
Healthway promotes health through a range of settings, sectors and organisations and works to 
foster effective collaboration and partnerships.*  Recognising that many of the factors that 
influence health lie outside the health sector, Healthway is seeking to encourage a greater 
shared commitment to improving health and to develop partnerships with state government 
agencies, local government, non-government organisations and the business community, as 
well as within the health sector. 
 

*Partnerships refers both to groups and sectors Healthway works and collaborates with directly to improve health and groups 
with whom Healthway encourages funded organisations to work collaboratively. 

 
Key goals 4.1 Strengthen and extend existing partnerships with 

organisations and sectors who share a commitment to 
Healthway’s objectives and strategic priorities 

 4.2 Increase information exchange to improve effectiveness 
and encourage a shared responsibility for health 

 4.3 Identify and facilitate new partnerships and alliances to 
improve health and to reach priority population groups 

 
 
PROGRESS RE PORT 
 
General 
 
Healthway’s approach involves working in collaboration with health, the community and other 
organisations in key settings that provide the opportunity for engagement with priority population 
groups for health promotion.  Key settings include health, sport, arts, racing, workplaces, 
educational institutions and communities. 
 
Where gaps exist, Healthway will seek to facilitate or establish new partnerships and the 
fostering of new co-sponsor and co-funder arrangements.  The inclusion of a range of funding 
or support partners also assists with maximising and sustaining healthy change. 
 
In 2005, a range of new items were included for the first time in the Organisational Survey 
conducted by HPEU, to evaluate the effects of Healthway funding on developing partnerships 
and collaborations.  The results were encouraging, with more than 50% of organisations in 
receipt of health promotion grant funding reporting increases in their partnerships and 
collaborations with other agencies.  Around 60% of sport, arts and racing groups also reported 
the development of partnerships with local governments and with other agencies. 
 
In 2006/07, the main health agency partners supporting Healthway sponsorships have included 
the Heart Foundation, The Cancer Council of WA, Drug and Alcohol Office, Sports Medicine 
Australia, Relationships Australia and the Kimberley Population Health Unit.  In addition, 
Healthway has continued a partnership with the Centre for Behavioural Research at Curtin 
University and its project staff involved in the Mentally Healthy WA mental health promotion trial 
in six WA regional towns.  In 2006/07, these agencies have assisted with the implementation of 
more than 520 sponsorship projects, including Healthy Club. 
 
Key funding partners included Lotterywest, Department of Sport and Recreation, Arts WA, the 
Department of Health, WA Country Health Service, Local Government, and a number of 
corporate partners. 
 
HPEU, as part of its contract with Healthway, also continued to provide an evaluation 
consultancy service to organisations applying for or having received Healthway funding.   
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HEALTH PROMOTION PROGRAM 
 
Healthway guidelines for health promotion project funding encourage applicants to seek 
partners in order to provide expertise and access to a broader skill base for the project, as well 
as opportunities for co-funding.  
 
All currently funded major health promotion projects involve strong partnerships, either in the 
form of co-applicants on funding proposals, or a number of different partners involved in 
reference or management committees.  For example, major projects such as Smarter than 
Smoking, Make Smoking History and Health+Medicine involve well-established partnerships 
between agencies such as the Heart Foundation, The Cancer Council of WA,  the Asthma 
Foundation, research experts and others.  
 
Healthway also requests that health promotion projects addressing Indigenous groups should 
either be initiated by an Indigenous organisation or involve a strong partnership with relevant 
Indigenous organisations.  Healthway funded projects such as the FPWA Mooditj project, 
illustrate the success of this collaborative approach. 
 
The Healthy Community projects and the Mentally Healthy WA campaign are also significant 
examples of major partnership projects that received continued grant funding during the year. A 
key feature of these projects is the strong emphasis on engaging with other sectors and 
organisations outside of the health sector at the local level, including local government, sport 
and recreation, community groups, TAFE, workplaces and others.  Mentally Healthy WA is 
funded as a partnership between Healthway, WA Country Health Service, the Department of 
Health’s Division of Mental Health, Pilbara Iron and Lotterywest.  
 
Another significant example is the Just Walk It project, which aims to develop sustainable 
walking programs to engage with priority population groups in the City of Fremantle.  This 
project involves a partnership between the Heart Foundation, the City of Fremantle, South 
Metropolitan Population Health Unit and the Departments of Sport and Recreation and Planning 
and Infrastructure. Another Heart Foundation project funded in 2006/07, the Make 
tracks2school Campaign, also represents a partnership approach through the Premier’s 
Physical Activity Taskforce, and the Departments of Education and Training, and Planning and 
Infrastructure. 
 
 
HEALTH PROMOTION RESEARCH PROGRAM 
 
Applicants for research funding are strongly encouraged to form partnerships and are required 
to indicate at the time of application whether their study will be conducted by a multi-disciplinary 
team, as well as identifying a health promotion practitioner and a health agency to be involved 
in the research.  In addition to bringing diverse skills to the study, this increases the potential for 
the research results to be translated into practice. 
 
For example, a starter grant was awarded during the year to Ms Heather D’Antoine at the 
Telethon Institute of Child Health Research, to explore levels of knowledge and attitudes around 
alcohol consumption during pregnancy among Indigenous women.  The project is a partnership 
between the Drug and Alcohol Office, Population Health, Kimberley Health Service, Department 
for Community Development, Australian Paediatric Surveillance Unit and the Aboriginal Health 
Council of Western Australia.  This study builds on previous research which focused on 
developing skills and resources for Indigenous professionals on alcohol and pregnancy.  
 
A two year research project awarded to Professor Donna Cross in the Child Health Promotion 
Research Unit at Edith Cowan University will investigate the extent and impact of cyber bullying 
on secondary school students.  This research project reflects strong partnership with the 
education sector, involving the Department of Education and Training, Catholic Education 
Office, Association of Independent Schools as well as WA Police and the Department of Health.  
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The Healthway Visiting Fellow for 2006 was Associate Professor Susan Handy from the 
Department of Environmental Science and Policy and the Institute of Transportation Studies, 
University of California.  Associate Professor Handy is a planning academic who has 
undertaken research and influenced practice in a wide range of areas relevant to health 
promotion research in WA.  During her visit to Perth, she worked with a number of organisations 
including the Combined Universities Centre for Rural Health, Department of Planning and 
Infrastructure, Premier’s Physical Activity Taskforce, Population Health, UWA, Transportation 
Research Centre at UWA, Institute for Sustainability and Technology Policy, Edith Cowan and 
Murdoch Universities and the Heart Foundation. 
 
 
SPORT SPONSORSHIP PROGRAM 
 
The development of strong partnerships with organisations in the State government, local 
government and community sectors is essential to continue to ensure Healthway achieves the 
best results in terms of increasing participation, developing sport and successfully promoting 
health. 

Sport Sponsorship 2006/07
Type of Organisation Sponsored 
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The traditional sport delivery system including State sporting associations, regional affiliates, 
community sporting clubs and elite teams continued to be the major beneficiary of Sport 
Sponsorship Program funding in 2006/07, with over 80% of the budget being allocated to 
projects from this sector.  In total, 570 applications were received in the report period (reflecting 
a 24% increase on 2005/06) with 85% of successful projects being small community level 
sponsorships of $5,000 or less.  The Program also continued to have wide appeal with 
successful organisations representing over 45 different sport types as well as recreation and 
other settings where the delivery of physical activity programs has become more prevalent. 
 
In 2006/07, Healthway continued its involvement with local government through sponsorship of 
both one-off events and more structured programs.  The Be Active Sport and Recreation 
Coordinator Program continues to operate in four areas of the Wheatbelt, with sponsorship 
renewed for a further three years to the programs based in the Shires of Goomalling and Moora.  
The program is an excellent example of a cooperative partnership between local shires, the 
community and Healthway and in some areas has resulted in the development of additional 
recreation facilities and a decision by individual Shires to employ their own sport and recreation 
staff.   
 
Healthway also continued to be represented on the Local Government Working Group of the 
Premier’s Physical Activity Taskforce and also sits on the assessment panel of the Taskforce’s 
Local Activity Grants Program.  This, combined with ongoing support of the Physical Activity 
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Project Coordinator, a collaborative arrangement between Healthway, the Department of Sport 
and Recreation and the Premier’s Physical Activity Taskforce, ensures the Sport Sponsorship 
Program is aware of issues at the local government level and can support them in the delivery 
of physical activity initiatives.   
 
Ongoing partnerships have been established and continue to be developed between the Sport 
Sponsorship Program and key sports industry agencies including the Department of Sport and 
Recreation, the WA Sports Federation and the Premier’s Physical Activity Taskforce.  In 
2006/07, the Sport Sponsorship Program continued to sponsor two ongoing Department of 
Sport and Recreation programs which feature strong involvement by the Department’s regional 
network.  The Country Scholarship and Indigenous Sport programs have a strong focus on rural 
communities and promote the Smarter than Smoking message to rural youth in particular.   
 
 
ARTS SPONSORSHIP PROGRAM 
 
Staff of the Arts Sponsorship Program have been involved in a number of industry and funding 
committees throughout the year.  Ongoing representation has included: 
 
• The Industry Advisory Committee at the Western Australian Academy of Performing Arts; 
• The Youth Advisory Committee, which comprises of a range of State and Federal 

government funding authorities involved in funding youth initiatives; and 
• The Regional Roundtable, which involves the key agencies working in regional areas. 
 
In addition, staff have maintained an ongoing dialogue and consulted regularly with other key 
funding authorities such as Community Arts Network WA, Country Arts WA, Lotterywest, the 
Australia Council for the Arts, the Department for Culture and the Arts and the Office for 
Children and Youth.   
 

One of the strategic objectives of the Arts Sponsorship Program during the year was to continue 
to work with local government and arts sponsorship totalling $382,000 was allocated to 39 Local 
Government Authorities throughout the State.  23 allocations (69%) were towards arts activities 
based outside the metropolitan area.  Arts sponsorships of $20,000 or more were approved in 
the Multi Events and Annual Program to seven Local Government Authorities based in the 
metropolitan area.  These included the Cities of Fremantle and Joondalup, who have since 
announced significant extensions to smoke free policies in the respective cities. 
 
One further partnership developed during the year following an invitation by DADAA.  This 
partnership involves DADAA, Healthway and HPEU, supported by the Rio Tinto WA Future 
Fund to evaluate the qualitative and quantitative health impacts of people with disabilities 
participating in a range of cultural and artistic projects coordinated by DADAA throughout the 
State.  Preliminary evaluation results should be available over the coming year and will add to 
the evidence concerning the value and benefits of the arts in this area.   
 
 
RACING SPONSORSHIP PROGRAM   
 
A Healthy Karting Club sponsorship program was implemented during 2006/07 as a joint 
initiative between Healthway and the Australian Karting Association of WA (AKAWA).  This 
program aims to encourage and assist karting clubs to develop and implement initiatives to 
ensure a healthier and safer environment for participants and spectators.  Six karting clubs, 
(including three regional clubs) were supported to purchase permanent shade shelter, on the 
condition that the club develop and implement policies in the areas of smoking, alcohol and 
other drugs, healthy catering, sun protection, and injury prevention.  
 
As part of Healthway’s support for the Quit Forest Rally, the Rally partnered with Busselton 
Toyota in a joint program which involved Busselton Senior High School students in a Year 11 
mechanics course.  The use of high profile national rally drivers assisted with the delivery of this 
new partnership and promotion of the health message. 
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This year, the Racing Sponsorship Program has also worked closely with Motorcycling WA.  
The latest sponsorship will support two junior motocross tracks (including one regional track) to 
become completely smoke free during junior club events.  Motorcycling WA is also involved in a 
pilot study in conjunction with the WA School Canteen Association, the results of which will help 
guide nutrition reform in other sport and racing canteens throughout WA. 
 
The opportunity to share information and successful strategies with other racing organisations 
has been achieved through the refinement of user-friendly sponsorship guidelines, maintaining 
current information on the Healthway website and a regular Healthway e-newsletter.  Healthway 
representatives attended two annual general meetings for racing organisations in the last year. 
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STRATEGIC DIRECTION 5 – SUSTAINING THE IMPACT 
 
To maximise the impact and prolong the influence on health and health behaviours, Healthway 
aims to work with funded organisations to improve the sustainability of their 
projects/sponsorships.  Healthway will continue to emphasise healthy policies, supportive 
environments and building the capacity of individuals, organisations and communities to adopt 
and assist others to develop health related skills and behaviours. 
 

Key goals 5.1 Strengthen the capacity of individuals, 
organisations, and communities to promote health 
and address barriers to healthy behaviours 

 5.2 Foster and support the identification and 
development of health promotion leaders within and 
outside the health sector 

 5.3 Promote and build sustainability within individual 
grants/sponsorships and across program areas to 
enhance their effectiveness and longer term impact 

 5.4 Maintain and extend the building of healthy 
environments 

 
 
PROGRESS RE PORT 
 
General 
 
To improve the potential to sustain the impact, Healthway encourages organisations to seek 
additional partners and requests that they include plans for longer term sustainability as part of 
project applications.   
 
As a condition of grants and sponsorships, Healthway has always included the implementation 
of smoke free indoor areas and in 2003/04, the Board endorsed the goal that all spectator and 
viewing areas under the control of a sponsored organisation should be smoke free.  By the end 
of 2006, all larger sponsored organisations (particularly those in receipt of more that $20,000 
from Healthway) had achieved this goal, which is now being pursued with other sponsored 
organisations. 
 
In addition, Healthway continues to encourage and support organisations to develop, adopt and 
implement healthier policies, practices and environments as part of their ongoing operations.  A 
continued requirement is for organisations in receipt of a grant or sponsorship of more than 
$20,000 from Healthway to develop and implement comprehensive written health policies as a 
condition of funding.  Organisations in receipt of renewed sponsorship are requested to 
enhance or expand on the policies.   
 
The Organisational Survey 1992 – 2005, conducted by HPEU examined the extent to which 
organisations funded by Healthway had increased their level of activity and commitment to 
promote healthy environments compared to previous years.  It identified that the proportion of 
sport, arts, racing and health organisations who reported implementing health-related policies in 
2005 was similar to, or higher than, the proportion reporting environmental changes in previous 
survey periods and suggested that these organisations continued to recognise the importance 
of promoting healthy environments as part of the organisation’s activities.  The Survey also 
confirmed that the majority of health, sport, arts and racing organisations did not find it difficult to 
introduce or enforce a range of health related policies.  The acceptance of health related 
environment policies was high among the stakeholders of sport, arts, racing and health 
organisations, as illustrated in the graph below. 
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Healthy Environment Policies: 
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A further strategy to build sustainability is education, to build capacity and skills for health 
promotion among all constituents.  During the year under review, Healthway continued to offer 
seminars and regional visits, traineeships and scholarships as part of this approach and also 
supported a Leadership Development in Health Promotion program. 
 
 
HEALTH PROMOTION PROGRAM 
 
Healthway’s approaches to maximising the sustainability of funded health promotion projects 
include encouraging co-funding (so the program may be able to continue after Healthway’s 
contract has ended), policy development to create supportive environments, and building the 
capacity of individuals, organisations and communities.  
 
In terms of policy development, all health organisations receiving health promotion project 
funding of more than $20,000 now have formally endorsed health policies in line with Healthway 
requirements.  Projects funded by Healthway are also increasingly recognising the important 
impact the environment has on health choices.  For example, in the physical activity area, the 
Make tracks2school Campaign features collaboration with the Department of Planning and 
Infrastructure to incorporate strategies to ensure that participating families can access routes to 
school that support children to use active transport. 
 
Recognising the importance of capacity building, grant funding for the Australian Health 
Promotion Association’s (AHPA) successful Graduate and Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander 
Scholarship program continued in 2006/07.  One new graduate scholarship was awarded in the 
year.  However, the AHPA Indigenous scholarships have proved to be in demand, since 
undergoing a major review in 2004, and three of these scholarships were offered in 2006/07. 
 
In addition, in 2006/07:  
 

• The Kimberley Regional Coordination Initiative project trialled a pilot Indigenous 
Scholarship program during 2006, which supported two Indigenous health 
professionals based in the Kimberley region to develop skills in health promotion; and 

• Capacity Building Scholarship schemes were offered to enable health promotion 
professionals working in regional areas to attend the Public Health Association (WA 
Branch) and Indigenous Health Promotion Conferences in 2007.  
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Finally, Healthway completed the second Leadership Development in Health Promotion 
program in 2006/07.  In this second program, the eligibility criteria were extended to provide 
opportunities for people from partner sport, arts and racing organisations working with 
Healthway.  18 participants successfully completed the program out of 22 who were recruited. 
Of these, 13 health promotion professionals completed the program, and out of nine participants 
recruited from sport, arts and racing organisations, eight completed the program.  The main 
reason other participants did not complete the course was a change in their employment 
circumstances. 
 
 
HEALTH PROMOTION RESEARCH PROGRAM 
 
In order to encourage sustainable health promotion, applicants for research grants are required 
to describe how their research results will be translated into practice and policy.   
 
For example, Professor Rob Donovan from Curtin University was funded in a one year study to 
identify the specific elements of television advertisements for alcohol that impact on underage 
youth. The research will examine 20 recent alcohol advertisements of those most commonly 
exposed to 13 - 17 year olds in Australia and will identify specific elements and advertising code 
breaches that are related to under-age viewers’ attitudes to the brand and purchase intentions. 
This study has potential to influence policy and create long term sustainable changes for the 
broader community.  
 
A further illustration of sustainability and capacity building is that between 1991 and 2006 
Healthway funding has resulted in 72 masters degrees, 84 PhD’s and more than 450 journal 
articles. 
 
 
SPORT SPONSORSHIP PROGRAM 
 
In 2006/07, the number of sporting organisations that developed and registered health policies 
as part of their commitment to sustainable health promotion, increased by 17%.  Over 70 
organisations receiving sponsorship of $20,000 or more now have a policy in place. 
 
Healthway continued to work with repeat sponsored groups during the year to review current 
policies as part of the re-contracting process.  This has resulted in the expansion of smoke free 
restrictions to include outdoor spectator areas and the provision of more shaded areas, 
particularly at the junior club level.  For example, Healthway’s sponsorship of the WA Cricket 
Association not only resulted in the SunSmart message being promoted across junior cricket but 
has also encouraged an increasing number of junior clubs to adopt a health policy and secure 
SunSmart ‘accreditation’. 
 
The communication and implementation of health policies in the lower levels of sport continues 
to be a challenge and in the report period, Healthway trialled several different strategies to 
encourage and assist State sport associations with policy implementation: 
 
• Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) are working closely with Rugby WA to introduce 

healthier environments at the club level; 
• The WA Football Commission is using its new district structure to introduce health policies 

and in particular expanded smoking restrictions into junior football; and 
• Under an Association sponsorship scheme, Netball WA offered sponsorship funds to 

affiliated associations to encourage promotion of the Smarter than Smoking message and to 
develop and implement a range of health policies and practices.  As one of its field studies 
in November 2006, HPEU undertook a comparative analysis of a participating and non-
participating Association in this scheme. The field study found that message awareness was 
significantly higher (74%) at the Association participating in the scheme, compared with the 
non participating Association (30%) and there was higher evidence of compliance with 
documented health policies. 
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Development of a health policy continues to be a key strategy adopted for Healthy Club 
sponsorships.  Since 2001, over 2,100 community sporting clubs have received Healthy Club 
sponsorship with the majority of these having developed a health policy and nearly 80% having 
dedicated smoke free outdoor areas. 
 
The inclusion of some organisations on multi-year contracts was also used to encourage the 
implementation/expansion of permanent environmental improvements through sponsorship.  
23% of projects approved for sponsorship over $5,000 during the year received multiple year 
sponsorship contracts with the majority of those (57%) being for three years.  
 
 
ARTS SPONSORSHIP PROGRAM 
 
Two surveys conducted by HPEU during the year provided the evidence to progress the 
extension of smoke free environments in significant arts sponsorships during 2007/08.  The first, 
in September 2006, involved a survey at the Perth Royal Show.  While a separate evaluation 
had revealed that around 8% of people attending the show were current smokers, the survey 
involved 106 smokers and 109 non smokers and illustrated that 80% either agreed or had no 
feelings about a proposal to extend smoking restrictions to the smoke free “Side Show Alley” in 
2008  The second survey, at the Fairbridge Music Festival 2007, also showed strong support for 
the existing smoke free designated areas and 75% support for the festival being entirely smoke 
free in 2008.  When asked if a smoke free festival would impact on their future attendance, 82% 
of those questioned indicated that their attendance would not change, 13% said their 
attendance would increase and 5% said their attendance would decrease.  This information is 
being discussed with the organisers of both events and is being used to plan towards smoke 
free events in the near future. 
 
In March 2007, Healthway provided sponsorship of $10,000 to the Araluen Botanical Park 
Foundation’s Chilli Festival to promote the synchronistic Go for 2&5 nutrition message.  As a 
result, in March 2007 the Araluen Botanical Park was also declared permanently smoke free. 
 
 
RACING SPONSORSHIP PROGRAM  
 
All racing organisations in receipt of annual sponsorship of $20,000 or more from Healthway 
now have comprehensive health policies in place and several of these expanded their policies 
and commitments to include mental health. 
 
Significant progress was made in 2006/07 with the expansion of smoke free environments 
within the larger racing sponsorships.   
 
Perth Racing and the WA Trotting Association in particular, will be consolidating these smoke 
free areas in 2007/08 as well as expanding the smoking restrictions to all thoroughfares. 
 
While the Kwinana Motorplex decided not to accept Healthway’s offer of sponsorship for the 
2007 season, it was pleasing to note that the level of healthy environmental change achieved 
over the past 14 years has been maintained by the organisation, including much of the smoke 
free signage.  Sponsoring the Junior Speedway Association of WA has proven effective in 
maintaining a continued presence at the site and advocacy for the smoke free message, 
particularly to the junior audience. 
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HEALTHWAY PROGRAMS – THE YEAR IN REVIEW 
 
Healthway’s health promotion programs encompass a number of areas including: 
 
• Health Promotion Projects 
• Health Promotion Research 
• Promoting health through Sponsorship including Sport, Arts and Racing. 
 
Healthway’s definition of health promotion is “the combination of educational and environmental 
supports for action and conditions of living conducive to health”.  The definition has been 
expanded in our guidelines to indicate that applications to Healthway should “aim to increase 
individual knowledge and skills, and change behaviour and community and organisational 
policies and environments to improve health”.  This acknowledges the importance of viewing the 
health of people not only as individuals, but also taking into account the environment in which 
they live, work and play. 
 
 
HEALTH PROMOTION PROGRAM 

Objectives 
 
• To fund activities related to the promotion of good health in general, with particular 

emphasis on young people. 
 
• To provide grants to organisations engaged in health promotion programmes. 
 

Tobacco Control Act 1990, Section 22(1)(c) 
Tobacco Products Control Act 2006, Section 64 (1) (a and c) 

 
Health promotion organisations, as well as community based groups, may apply for grants to 
fund approaches to health promotion and illness prevention that will change community 
attitudes and behaviour and create environments in which good health is encouraged. 
 
HEALTH ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
 
 Mr Maurice Swanson, Chairperson 

Mr Graham Brown 
Dr Rosanna Capolingua  
Mr Kim Clark  
Ms Juli Coffin  
Ms Susan Leivers  
Professor Sherry Saggers (from February 2007) 
Professor Leon Flicker (until November 2006) 

 
FEATURES OF THE 2006/07 HEALTH PROMOTION PROGRAM 
 
Between 1 July 2006 and 30 June 2007, 65 health promotion project applications were 
received, with 51 of these approved for health promotion grants during the year. This represents 
an increase of nearly 25% in the number of applications and an increase of 33% in the number 
of approvals, compared with the previous year.  Including funding for multi-year projects 
approved in previous years, health promotion project commitments for the year totalled $3.776 
million, to 69 projects: 
 
• 52% of funds were allocated to projects targeting children and/or adolescents. 
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• 74% of funding was allocated to projects with a state wide reach, with 18% of funds 
exclusively directed to projects in country areas and just 8% to metropolitan only based 
projects. 

 
• Overall, 66% of the health promotion program budget was allocated to the major health 

priority areas in Healthway’s Strategic Plan 2004 - 2007. 
 
• Analysis of the distribution of funding by health issues in 2006/07 shows that a major 

proportion (60%) of the total funding was allocated to the high priority area of tobacco 
smoking control.  Physical activity promotion received 4% of funding, and nutrition 
received 1%.  However, nearly 20% of funding was allocated to the general area of health 
promotion, which included projects targeting more than one health issue.  

 
• The cumulative allocation to health promotion projects from 1991 - 2007 shows that 

tobacco smoking control accounted for nearly 36% of the total allocation.  
 

Health Promotion Project Funding 2006/07 
Distribution by Health Issues

3.85%

1.13%

0.59%

3.30%

1.00%

19.67%

1.31%

4.43%

4.99%

59.73%

Cancer Prevention

Cardio-Vascular Disease
Prevention
Determinants of Healthy
Behaviour
Diabetes prevention

Good Nutrition Promotion

Health Promotion

Mental Health Promotion

Physical Activity Promotion

Sexual Health

Tobacco Smoking Control
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Health Promotion Project Funding 1991-2007 
Distribution by Health Issues

8.80% 0.01%

5.02%

2.80%

0.66%

2.02%

5.62%

16.52%

2.80%

4.59%

4.80%

0.34%

4.66%

5.48%

35.88%

Alcohol and other drug misuse

Asthma Prevention and Control

Cancer Prevention

Cardio-Vascular Disease
Prevention

Determinants of Healthy Behaviour

Diabetes prevention

Good Nutrition Promotion

Health Promotion

Healthy environments

Injury Prevention

Mental Health Promotion

Musclo-Skeletal Disease
Prevention

Physical Activity Promotion

Sexual Health

Tobacco Smoking Control

 
HEALTH PROMOTION RESEARCH PROGRAM 
 
Grants are available for health promotion research leading to the promotion of good health and 
the prevention of illness in the community. Healthway encourages innovative projects and 
collaborative research that foster the sharing of skills and expertise.  
 
Objectives  
 

• To fund research relevant to health promotion   
 

 Tobacco Control Act 1990, Section 22 (1) (f) 
Tobacco Products Control Act 2006, Section 64 (1) (d) 

 
A major review of Healthway’s Health Promotion Research Program was conducted in 2006 to 
ensure that the Program continues to meet Healthway’s objectives and is strongly aligned to the 
strategic directions and priorities.  The review included a consultation phase with a stakeholder 
forum, individual and small group meetings with researchers, health promotion practitioners, 
Committee and Board members, and Healthway staff. The review examined the outputs and 
outcomes from previously funded Healthway research, as well as alternative models for 
supporting health promotion research and translating the findings into practice. 
 
The review identified nine key recommendations, several of which specifically relate to 
enhancing Healthway’s role in communication and translation of research into practice, and the 
opportunity to position Healthway as a leader in this area.  The review also made 



 

Annual Report 2006/07    52 

recommendations in relation to improving the dissemination of the outputs and achievements 
from the Research Program, increasing Healthway’s emphasis on priority-driven research, and 
identifying further opportunities for Healthway to support health promotion research relevant to 
Aboriginal people. 
 
Healthway will develop an implementation plan in 2007/08 to take forward the recommendations 
from the review. 
 
RESEARCH SUB-COMMITTEE 
 
 Professor Sherry Saggers, Chairperson  

Professor Leon Flicker 
 Professor Jan Piek 
 Professor Rob Newton 
 Dr Sue Byrne (from January 2007) 
 Dr Jim Codde (from January 2007) 
 Ms Margaret Miller (from January 2007) 
 Dr Michael Rosenberg (until December 2006) 

Dr Rina Cercarelli (until December 2006) 
Dr Kieran McCaul (until December 2006) 
Professor Nadine Henley (until December 2006)   
 

FEATURES OF THE 2006/07 HEALTH PROMOTION RESEARCH PROGRAM 
 
• Within the total combined research and health promotion project budget for 2006/07, 

approximately $1.28 million was available for new project grants, starter grants, the visiting 
fellow, scholarships and fellowships. 

 
• A social determinants of health research grant opportunity was promoted this year for the 

first time and four applications were received.  Three of these applications were approved 
for funding. 

 
• Including grant commitments to previously approved multi-year projects and capacity 

building opportunities, 22 projects were supported during the year by the health promotion 
research program, to a total amount of $2.04 million. 

 
• Over 59% of health promotion research funding in 2006/07 was allocated to research in 

the high priority areas of mental health promotion, physical activity promotion, tobacco 
smoking control and good nutrition promotion. 

 
• In the starter grants program, six applications were approved for a total of $116,799.  One 

of the grants was awarded to a new investigator and five to experienced investigators. 
 
• Eight projects were funded in the area of Indigenous health promotion research in 

2006/07, reflecting Healthway’s continuing commitment to Indigenous health. 
 
• 71% of the 2006/07 funding was allocated to research grants which targeted Healthway’s 

priority target groups.  This included a number of projects which targeted the health of 
children, youth and Indigenous communities. 
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PROMOTING HEALTH THROUGH SPONSORSHIP – THE YEAR IN 
REVIEW 
 
Objectives 
 
• To support sporting and arts activities which encourage healthy lifestyles and advance 

health promotion programmes. 
 

Tobacco Control Act 1990, Section 22 (1) (c) 
Tobacco Products Control Act 2006, Section 64 (1) (b) 

 
The Sponsorship Program includes sponsorship of sport, arts and racing activities which 
encourage healthy lifestyles and advance health promotion programs. 
 
The health promotion aspects of the sponsorship program are generally undertaken by key 
health agencies which act as “support sponsors”.   
 
In recent years, following a major independent review of Healthway’s Health Support 
Sponsorship Program in 2003, Healthway has rationalised the number health messages used in 
sponsorships and aligned sponsorship messages to health promotion campaigns in the 
community and with priority health issues.  
 
Mental health promotion is a high priority issue for Healthway’s work and in 2005/06 Healthway 
introduced a new mental health message Act Belong Commit.  This message is now being 
trialled through sponsorships in six regional towns, which are the focus of a major Healthway 
funded mental health promotion project, Mentally Healthy WA. 
 
During 2006/07, Healthway called for expressions of interest from Aboriginal artists and graphic 
designers to design a new logo for the Indigenous message Respect Yourself, Respect Your 
Culture.  This was a two-stage process and more than 100 ideas were submitted in stage one.  
The final logo was a depiction of tapping sticks, designed by a local Indigenous artist, and was 
strongly supported by the Indigenous selection panel.  
 

Major health messages used in sponsorship during 2006/07 
 Act Belong Commit  

 Be Active 

 Drug Aware 

 Drug Free 

 Go for 2 & 5 

 QUIT 

 Respect Yourself Respect Your Culture 

 Safety Rules OK 

 Smarter Than Smoking 

 SmokeFree WA 

 SunSmart 
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IMPACT OF THE SPONSORSHIP PROGRAM 
 
Comprehensive evaluation of the sponsorship program continues to be supported by the Health 
Promotion Evaluation Unit (HPEU).  In 2006, HPEU conducted a range of field studies to 
evaluate the impact of Healthway’s sponsorship program, including an evaluation of 
sponsorships valued at $5,000 or less.  The results showed that the level of health message 
awareness among people attending events sponsored for $5,000 or less was comparable with 
that achieved at larger sponsorship levels.  
 
The introduction of the Act Belong Commit (ABC) message in support of the Mentally Healthy 
WA project has been another important feature of the support sponsorship program in 2006/07.  
Community surveys conducted with a total of 1,200 people in the six regional towns involved in 
the project showed that, at the end of the first year of the campaign, one in five people in these 
locations were aware of the ABC message.  Of those who were aware of the message, around 
one half reported that they had taken some positive action to improve their mental health as a 
result of seeing the message. 
 
SPONSORSHIP MONITOR RESULTS  
 
Through HPEU, Healthway has an ongoing evaluation program that monitors the effectiveness 
of major sponsorships.  This involves collecting data every second year from random samples 
at Healthway sponsored events where the amount of money allocated in support sponsorship is 
over $12,000 for sport projects and over $7,000 for arts and racing projects.  The most recent 
results reported in 2007 show the following: 
 
• health message awareness at Healthway sponsored events was 72% in 2006/07, slightly 

higher than the average level in recent years of 70%; 
• message comprehension remained high with 90% of those who were aware of the 

message correctly understanding it in 2006/07 (65% of the overall sample); and 
• 21% of the total sample was sufficiently stimulated to indicate they intended to take some 

relevant action as a result of exposure to a health message, which is higher than in 
previous years. 

 
As in previous studies, this confirms the effectiveness of sponsorship as a strategy to achieve 
high prompted awareness, comprehension and acceptance of a health message at Healthway 
sponsored sport, arts and racing events.  It also confirms that sponsorship can achieve self-
reported behaviour change. 
 
HEALTHIER ENVIRONMENTS   
 
One of the strengths of Healthway’s sponsorship program and a unique feature is its ability to 
use sponsorship as leverage to achieve healthier environments in sport, arts and racing 
organisations. 
 
Encouraging organisations to adopt healthier policies and practices is one of the ways to ensure 
sustainable change.  Once a policy has been implemented, there is little likelihood of the 
organisation abolishing this, even if Healthway sponsorship ends.   
 
In 2003, Healthway introduced a policy goal that by the end of 2006, for all organisations who 
receive $20,000 or more in Healthway sponsorship, all outdoor seated areas, viewing areas and 
other audience areas under the control of the organisation will be 100% smoke free as a 
minimum requirement at Healthway sponsored events.  Where possible, the entire event will be 
smoke free. 
 
Over the last 3 years, Healthway has worked in collaboration with sponsorship organisations to 
ensure smooth implementation of this policy by the end of 2006.  Additional support has been 
provided for some organisations, where appropriate, to assist them in implementing the 
necessary changes.  Today, most of the major sport, arts and racing venues not only 
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implement smoke free policies in all indoor areas, but also in the viewing and spectator 
sections of their outdoor areas as well.   

 
In addition to smoke free environments, since 2003 Healthway has formally required all 
organisations applying for more than $20,000 to implement and endorse written health policies.  
As a result, major organisations are now required to address sun protection, alcohol and other 
drugs, sport safe, mental health, food and nutrition as well as smoke free, in a formal policy 
document.  This initiative aims to establish sustainable policies and guidelines, further 
enhancing the health of organisation members as well as the wider community.  While 
Healthway has not formally extended the requirement for a written policy to all organisations, 
including those receiving less than $20,000, Healthway now strongly encourages all 
organisations it funds to create healthy environments through provision of healthier food 
choices, sun protection and safe alcohol service, and if possible, to create a written health 
policy.  
 
In the area of nutrition, during 2006/07 Healthway further extended the commitment to creating 
healthier environments through a pilot initiative in collaboration with the WA School Canteen 
Association.  This project is working with a small number of Healthway sponsored sport and 
racing organisations to increase and improve the range of healthier food choices available at 
these venues.  
 
FEATURES OF THE 2006/07 SPONSORSHIP PROGRAM 
 
From July 2006 to June 2007, the sponsorship program received 877 new applications which 
requested amounts of more than $24 million.  Of these new applications, 651 (74%) were 
supported during the year.  Including multi-year projects approved in the previous years, overall 
more than 740 projects received sponsorship from Healthway in 2006/07, totalling more than 
$9.7 million. 
 
The distribution of health messages for the year was as follows (in terms of percentage of the 
support sponsorship budget $1,087,291, - percentages rounded to nearest full number): 
 

Health Message Distribution 
Tobacco Smoking Control 32% 

Physical Activity Promotion 20% 

Sun Protection 16% 

Alcohol and Other Drug Misuse 12% 

Good Nutrition Promotion 8% 

Health Promotion (Healthy Club) 7% 

Mental Health Promotion 5% 

Injury Prevention 2% 
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HEALTH AGENCIES 
 
In 2006/07, Healthway engaged the following health agencies to support sponsorships: 
 

Health Agency 
The Cancer Council WA 

Drug and Alcohol Office 

Kidsafe 

The National Heart Foundation (WA Division) 

Relationships Australia 

Sports Medicine Australia 

Curtin University of Technology 

 
These agencies supported nearly 600 Healthway sponsorships in 2006/07.  473 of these were 
kit sponsorships (including 323 Healthy Club projects supported by Sports Medicine Australia).  
Sponsorship kits administered by Healthway accounted for 56 sponsorships.  
 
REGIONAL SUPPORT INITIATIVES 
 
Several regional Public Health Units and staff associated with the Healthway funded Act Belong 
Commit campaign in Albany, Esperance, Northam, Kalgoorlie, Karratha and Geraldton have 
been particularly supportive in implementing country based Healthway sponsorships through 
Curtin University. 
 
The assistance and support from the various agencies and the officers involved again ensured 
that the sponsorship program operated in an efficient and effective manner with excellent health 
promotion returns being achieved. 
 
In 2005, Healthway funded a special Regional Coordination Initiative through the Kimberley 
Population Health Unit, to trial a more specific focus on one or two messages in one region and 
to achieve a greater link between funded health programs and sponsorship messages.  The 
three year Kimberley Trial enabled Healthway to place a greater focus on promoting nutrition 
and physical activity messages through more than 20 sponsorships in the region during 
2006/07.  Many of these sponsorship projects provided the opportunity to engage with 
Aboriginal people and other high priority groups for Healthway. 
 
 
SPORT SPONSORSHIP PROGRAM 
 
Healthway sponsors sport and recreation programs which encourage development and 
participation as well as events, competitions and special programs which offer opportunities to 
promote health.  In accordance with S71 (8) of the Tobacco Products Control Act 2006, not less 
than 30% of the total funds received by Healthway were paid to sport organisations in 2006/07, 
amounting to $5.752 million. 
 
SPORT ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
 

Mr Ronnie Hurst, Chairperson 
 Ms Sally Carbon 

Ms Priya Cooper OAM 
Associate Professor Beth Hands  
Mr Bruce Meakins  
Ms Kay Lane  
Cr Louise Paterson  
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FEATURES OF 2006/07 SPORT SPONSORSHIP PROGRAM 
 
• The Sport Advisory Committee met six times and reviewed 550 applications (from a total 

of 570 received during the year). Of these, more than 22% were from organisations 
applying to Healthway for the first time and 439 or 80% were approved for sponsorship 
support. 

 
• 451 applications or 82% of those received were requesting sponsorship of $5,000 or less 

and of these, 83% were allocated sponsorship. 
 
• Approximately 11% of Sport Sponsorship Program funds were allocated to club level 

organisations through the $5,000 or Less and Healthy Club sponsorship programs. The 
Healthy Club sponsorship program experienced a 25% increase in applications with 370 
received over the two rounds in 2006/07.  323 (87%) were approved. 

 
• In the past year, distribution by Sport Category was as follows: 

 
Participation – Club Based   21% 

Participation – Schools   15% 

Participation – Community   12% 

Development – Players   11% 

Development – Coaches/Officials   5% 

Development – Country Sport/Recreation   7% 

Development – Talent   5% 

Local Competition   5% 

Intra State Level Events   4% 

Major/Hallmark Events   8% 

Elite Teams   2% 

Miscellaneous   5% 

 
• In line with the Healthway Strategic Plan, which identifies young people as a priority 

population for health promotion, projects focusing on children and youth received some 
65% of the funds allocated.  Application statistics also indicate that 71% of the participants 
in sponsored projects were aged 17 and under. 

 
• Analysis by gender shows that the sponsored projects had a 57% male and 43% female 

reach, with the gender breakdown for participants being almost the same. 
 
• Analysis of the geographic reach identified in applications shows that 73% was classified 

as regional, 25% as metropolitan and 2% as State wide. 
 
• Sport participation and development activities received the largest proportion of funds 

(around 81%) and around 10% of funds were allocated to promotional sponsorships. 
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ARTS SPONSORSHIP PROGRAM 
 
Healthway sponsors arts and cultural activities which develop and promote access and 
participation as well as performing, visual and community arts activities that offer opportunities 
to promote health.  In accordance with Tobacco Products Control Act 2006, not less than 15% 
of the total funds received by Healthway were paid to arts organisations in 2006/07, amounting 
to $2.87 million.  
 
ARTS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
 

Ms Natalie Jenkins, Chairperson (from November 2006) 
Ms Carol Innes, Chairperson (until September 2006)  
Mr David Doyle 

 Ms Libby Hammer 
Mr Mark Norval 

 Ms Lisa Wood 
Mr Jeremy Smith (from May 2007)  
Mr Ray Peters (from January 2007) 

 Mr David Richards (from September to November 2006)  
Ms Annie Thomson (until March 2007) 

FEATURES OF THE 2006/07 ARTS SPONSORSHIP PROGRAM 
 
• 258 new applications for sponsorship were received during the year under review, 

requesting a total of more than $5.8 million.  Of these new applications, 174 were 
approved (69%) by the Board at meetings held during 2006/07.  

 
• 93 (53%) of the new applications approved were for amounts over $5,000 and 81 (47%) 

were for $5,000 or less. 
 
• Including funding instalments for multi-year projects approved in previous years, total 

sponsorship funds allocated in 2006/07 from the Arts Sponsorship Program amounted to 
$2.87 million towards 221 projects. 

 
• 36% of the Arts Sponsorship Program budget was directed to activities taking place 

outside the metropolitan area, 24% was directed to projects in the metropolitan area and 
40% allocated to activities that had a State wide focus.   

  
• Of all the arts projects funded in 2006/07, 73% of Arts Sponsorship Program funds were 

allocated to projects that involved children and youth as participants, volunteers or 
spectators. 

 
• A total of $1.87 million (65%) was allocated to 52 organisations that received $20,000 or 

more through the Multi Events and Annual Program (MEAP) category of sponsorship. 
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During 2006/07, distribution of sponsorship, consistent with last year’s allocations by arts 
category, was as follows: 

Arts Sponsorships 2006/07 
Distribution by Arts Categories

53%

20%

11%

7%

5% 4%

Multi Disciplinary

Music

Theatre

Dance 

Visual Arts and Film

Literature

 
RACING SPONSORSHIP PROGRAM 
 
Under the Tobacco Products Control Act 2006, racing is defined as horse racing and pacing, 
dog racing and motorcar and motorcycle racing. 
 
The Racing Sponsorship Program includes race days or individual races, season programs, 
international, national or state championships, special project initiatives and promotional events. 
 
Therefore, the Racing Sponsorship Program has included sponsorship of turf, trotting and 
greyhound racing, as well as motorcross, speedway, rally, drag racing, karting and other motor 
sports, all of which are tailored to address Healthway’s strategic directions.  
 
RACING ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
 

Ms Jenn Morris, Chairperson (from February 2007) 
Mr Luc Longley, Chairperson (until December 2006) 

 Mr David Manners  
 Mr Clive Nelthorpe  
 Ms Yvonne Renshaw 

Ms Joanna Rollinson  
 Mr Reg Webb 

Mr Rick Gill (from April 2007) 
Mr Ross Tapper (from May 2007) 
Mr Bob Naylor (until February 2007) 
 

FEATURES OF 2006/07 RACING SPONSORSHIP PROGRAM 
 
• The Racing Advisory Committee met on six occasions during the year and reviewed 41 

new applications (an increase of 7 applications from last year).  Of these, two were from 
organisations applying to Healthway for the first time and 38 (93%) were approved during 
the year.  Three applications for sponsorship were rejected. 

 
• Including funding instalments for multi-year projects approved in previous years, 2006/07 

racing sponsorship funds totalled $883,200 and we re committed to 47 projects. 
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• Three racing associations submitted applications and administered the sponsorship on 
behalf of their club clientele.  The Motorcycling WA application included 12 individual club 
applications for sponsorship; the Karting Association included 13 club applications; and 
Country Trotting included 15 club applications.  In total, the 47 projects supported during 
the year reached almost 80 organisations.  

 
• Racing sponsorships in 2006/07 continued to concentrate on promoting three major health 

messages: 

Racing Sponsorships 2006/07 
Distribution by Health Message

37%

44%

19%

Nutrition - Turf Racing

Tobacco Control - Motorsport

Physical Activity - Harness Racing

 
 (i) Turf Racing included metropolitan, provincial and country turf clubs 
 (ii) Harness Racing included metropolitan and country trotting clubs 

(iii) Motorsport included rallying, karting, vintage cars, speedway, motorcycles and 
car racing 

 
• The program continued to focus on active youth participation through junior sedan racing, 

motorcross, karting and pony trots.  Junior sedan racing in particular showed a healthy 
growth in participant numbers, especially in the country regions.  

 
• Progress was achieved with the implementation of entire smoke free venues, smoke free 

viewing areas, and smoke free stalls and parade rings at venues across the State.  This 
year, the Telstra Rally Australia implemented an entirely smoke free venue – the first in a 
metropolitan venue of this size. 

 
• The WA Turf Club (Perth Racing) has continued with its successful ‘Fresh ‘n Go Bar’ 

health food outlet at Ascot and Belmont racecourses, increasing the range of healthier 
food options available.  In addition, the WA Trotting Association has adopted healthier 
food choices across the Gloucester Park venue. 
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THE YEAR AHEAD – PLANNED ACHIEVEMENTS 
 
In the year ahead Healthway will: 
 
• Develop and commence implementation of a new Healthway Strategic Plan 2008 – 2011.  

The plan will be developed in consultation with key stakeholder groups and will build on 
the achievements of the Strategic Plan 2004 – 2007. 

 
• Build on the nutrition advocacy scoping work completed in 2006/07 by seeking a health 

promotion grant application for Healthway to support the establishment of a public health 
advocacy coalition that will focus on advocating for change in nutrition, overweight and 
obesity and other health promotion priorities. 

 
• Identify a clear role for Healthway in other areas of overweight and obesity and good 

nutrition, complementing the Department of Health Strategic Directions.  As part of this, 
continue to develop and support a range of strategies designed to raise awareness and 
address the issues of overweight and obesity in conjunction with Healthway sponsored 
organisations. 

 
• Commence a third Leadership Development in Health Promotion Program for up to 20 

health promotion participants in 2008, building on the evaluation of the previous programs. 
 
• Explore ways to provide health promotion leadership training for people from sport, arts 

and racing organisations sponsored by Healthway. 
 
• Work with the Mentally Healthy WA project and other potential funding partners to explore 

options for extending the mental health promotion project beyond the six pilot towns and 
for maximising the longer term sustainability of the project. 

 
• Commence a two year trial of a Knowledge Transfer (KT) position within Healthway to 

strengthen the links between research and practice, facilitate the development and 
implementation of evidence based programs and facilitate the transfer of knowledge 
across Healthway funded programs. 

 
• Explore opportunities to strengthen Healthway’s role in Indigenous research and to 

achieve joint priority setting and joint funding for research with other agencies in WA. 
 
• Offer a second round of the Expanding Physical Activity Opportunities for People with 

Disabilities Grants Program on behalf of the Disability Services Commission. 
 
• Complete the evaluation of a pilot program in which the WA School Canteen Association 

is supporting the operators of three sport and two racing canteens to implement healthy 
food reform, and consider the opportunities to extend the initiative to other sport, arts and 
racing canteens and food outlets. 

 
• Explore ways to improve contact and strengthen support for potential applicants from 

regional areas of WA.  For example, building on the learnings from the Healthway funded 
Regional Coordination Initiative in the Kimberley, existing links with WA Country Health 
Service, increasing regional visits and considering the increased use of video-
conferencing.  

 
• Explore ways in which Healthway and its programs can better reach and engage with 

Culturally and Linguistically Diverse populations. 
 
• Undertake a review of Healthway’s support sponsorship program to identify opportunities 

for improvement and increased efficiencies. 
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• Monitor and support the implementation of the new Healthway funding programs 
introduced in 2006/07, including: 

 
• A Health Promoting Schools Grant Scheme developed in collaboration with the WA 

Departments of Health, Education and Training, and the WA Health Promoting 
Schools Association; 

• A Health In Schools Through the Arts sponsorship scheme (HISTA) introduced by 
the Arts Sponsorship Program; and 

• A Healthy Local Government Grants scheme, which seeks to support Local 
Government Authorities to develop and implement initiatives to improve the health of 
their communities. 

 
• Publish and disseminate a range of case studies based on successful past health 

promotion projects, in partnership with HPEU.  In addition, consider the development and 
dissemination of similar case studies with respect to past Healthway funded sponsorship 
projects. 

 
• Evaluate the first Arts and Health Visiting Fellow program.  Under the new program the 

inaugural fellow is due to visit Western Australia from October to December 2007. 

• Progress the transition of Healthway’s corporate services/support functions into the Office 
of Shared Services. 

 
• Progress the piloting of an e-grants process for smaller grant and sponsorship 

applications. 
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COMPLIANCE REPORTING – BETTER PLANNING: BETTER 
SERVICES – STRATEGIC FRAMEWORK 
 
This section of the Annual Report mainly contains compliance information Healthway is required 
to report and is in accordance with the Government’s ‘Better Planning: Better Futures 
Framework for the Western Aus tralian Public Sector’.  
 
This Framework, which was revised by Government in September 2006, covers five distinct 
goals and strategic outcomes as follows: 
 
Goal 1: Better Services; 
Goal 2: Jobs and Economic Development; 
Goal 3: Lifestyle and the Environment; 
Goal 4: Regional Development; and 
Goal 5: Governance and Public Sector Improvement. 
 
The goals are integrated within Healthway’s activities and procedures and are either reported  
below or incorporated elsewhere in the Annual Report. 
 
Disability Access and Inclusion Plan Outcomes 
 
Healthway’s Strategic Plan 2004 - 2007 recognises that some population groups experience 
much poorer health and seeks to have a greater impact on priority population groups where 
inequalities exist. In this respect, Healthway has placed additional focus on people with 
disabilities through the provision of grants and sponsorships for a range of sport, arts, and 
health activities that enable participation and encourage inclusion of people with disabilities. 
 
Healthway was an active participant in 2005/06 in the development of the Fair Play framework 
for inclusive sport and recreation for people with disabilities and in 2006/07 has participated in 
the cross agency steering group progressing and monitoring implementation of the framework.   
 
In addition, Healthway has continued to ensure an appropriate representation of people with a 
disability or expertise or knowledge/understanding of disability issues on its advisory 
Committees.  Currently, Mr David Doyle, of the arts organisation Disability & the Arts, 
Disadvantage & the Arts Inc (DADAA) is a member of the Arts Advisory Committee and Ms 
Priya Cooper, former Paralympic gold medalist and current Board member of the WA Disabled 
Sports Association (WADSA) remains a valuable member of the Sports Advisory Committee. 
 
During 2006/07, Healthway successfully administered a new grants scheme on behalf of 
Disability Services Commission (DSC), which aimed to increase opportunities for participation of 
people with disabilities in sustainable physical activity in a community, sport and recreation or 
work setting.  Around $190,000 was allocated in grants to seven projects, two of which are in 
regional areas of the State.  During 2006/07, the DSC requested that Healthway administer a 
second round of the grants program and they have provided a further $200,000 to be available 
for allocation in 2007/08. 
 
Additionally, during the year, Healthway agreed to collaborate with DADAA and the Health 
Promotion Evaluation Unit at The University of WA, to evaluate the quantitative and qualitative 
health impacts for people with disabilities participating in a range of cultural and artistic projects 
coordinated by DADAA throughout the State.  The collaboration is supported by the Rio Tinto 
Futures Fund and aims to contribute to the evidence with respect to the impact on health of 
participation in the arts. 
 
During 2006/07, Healthway also supported a number of sponsorships aimed at providing 
opportunities for people with disabilities.  Sponsorships were renewed for the activities of the 
WA Disabled Sports Association and Wheelchair Sports WA and additional sponsorships 
included support to expand sailing opportunities for people with disabilities.  Royal Perth Yacht 
Club - Sailability WA are working with other metropolitan and the Geraldton and Carnarvon 
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Yacht Clubs to increase opportunities and encourage people with disabilities to take up sailing.  
In addition, a number of arts events and exhibitions were sponsored to provide people with 
disabilities with opportunities to participate in and enjoy the arts. 
 
In the year ahead, Healthway will be consulting widely with stakeholder groups such as 
WADSA, Wheelchair Sports WA, Therapy Focus, DADAA and Ability Solutions in the 
development of the new Healthway Strategic Plan 2008 - 2011. 
 
Recordkeeping Plans 
 
Under Section 19 of the State Records Act 2000 every Government agency is required to have 
a Record Keeping Plan (RKP).  The RKP is to provide an accurate reflection of the 
recordkeeping program within the agency and must be complied with by the agency and its 
officers.  Under Part 3, Division 4, the agency is to review its RKP periodically or when there is 
any significant change to the agency functions.  
 
Standard 2, Principle 6 of the State Records Act 2000 requires government agencies to ensure 
their employees comply with recordkeeping plans.  The table below outlines Healthway’s 
strategies during 2006/07 to meet the compliance responsibilities.  
 

State Records Commission - Standard 2, Principle 6 – Compliance 
Compliance Indicator Healthway Compliance 
The efficiency and effectiveness of 
the Healthway’s recordkeeping 
systems is evaluated not less than 
once every five years 

Under Part 3, Division 4, of the State 
Records Act agencies are to review their 
RKP periodically or when there is any 
significant change to the agency functions. 
A review of Healthway’s RKP and record 
keeping systems is to be undertaken prior to 
March 2010 - five years from the approval 
date of the RKP.  

Healthway conducts a recordkeeping 
training program. 

In-house training continued to be conducted 
on an as-required basis, particularly when 
staff roles changed. 

The efficiency and effectiveness of 
Healthway’s recordkeeping training 
program is reviewed from time to 
time. 

Issues relating to Healthway policies and 
programs are openly discussed at the 
weekly staff meetings, enabling staff to be 
involved in setting directions for future 
training. During the year, Healthway 
reviewed its internal performance indicators 
in relation to records management 
responsibilities and requirements. 

Healthway’s induction program 
addresses employee roles and 
responsibilities in regard to their 
compliance with the recordkeeping 
plan. 

All new staff receive an Induction Manual 
that refers to Healthway’s recordkeeping 
policies and procedures and to other 
relevant business principles.  As part of the 
induction process all new staff also receive 
training in recordkeeping procedures from 
Corporate Services staff. 
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Equal Employment Opportunity Outcomes 
 
Healthway’s full time equivalent establishment has remained constant for some time.  However, 
at 30 June 2007 the equity index of females to males has shown an increase of around 15% 
from 2005/06.  This has included females reaching middle to senior management levels.  The 
table below shows the complement of staff by gender and classification as at 30 June 2007. 
 

Level Female (ftes) Male (ftes) 

 2006/07 2005/06 2006/07 2005/06 

Level 1 1.0 1.0 - - 

Level 2 1.5 1.5 - - 

Level 3 1.0 1.0 - - 

Level 4 2.0 2.0 0.5 1.5 

Level 5 2.0 1.0 - - 

Level 6 1.0 - - 1.0 

Level 7 - 1.0 2.0 2.0 

Level 8 1.0 - - - 

Level 9 1.0 1.0 - - 

Class 1 - - 1.0 1.0 

Total 10.5 8.5 3.5 5.5 
 

 
Healthway has a strong commitment to equal opportunity and diversity outcomes and in the 
year ahead will be ensuring these organisational values and stated principles and commitments 
are encapsulated in the organisation’s new Strategic Plan, the development of which will be 
completed by the end of 2007.  
 
Healthway also continues to extend and encourage diversity and equal opportunity to its 
Committees and Board.  At 30 June 2007, the Board comprised eight (8) female and three (3) 
male members and the five Advisory Committees comprised 17 male and 19 female 
representatives. 
  
During the year, Healthway continued to support a range of grant or sponsorship projects that 
provided opportunities to engage with diverse population groups.  These have included piloting 
a grant scheme on behalf of the Disability Services Commission to provide physical activity 
opportunities for people with disabilities, and ongoing support for the Department of Sport and 
Recreation’s Active Women’s and Indigenous Sports Programs.  
 
Corporate Governance  
 
In recent years, Healthway has undertaken a comprehensive approach to corporate 
governance, which has involved several facilitated sessions with Board, Committee members 
and the executive team, to ensure that Corporate Governance Standards, as introduced by 
Standards Australia, are fully embedded in the organisation.   
 
Corporate governance topics are frequently revisited by the Board and an annual Corporate 
Governance Improvement Plan continues to be produced.  The chairpersons of each of 
Healthway’s Advisory Committees are also members of the Finance and Audit Committee, 
whose terms of reference includes monitoring compliance with corporate governance principles 
and progressing the implementation of the Corporate Governance Improvement Plan. 
 
The Executive Director provides a formal induction for all new Board and Committee members, 
part of which includes ensuring these members are conversant with the corporate governance 
principles and standards being applied and maintained at Healthway.  During the year, nine new 
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Board and Committee members received this induction.  A similar induction was provided for all 
new employees. 
 
In February 2007, an external quality assurance assessment of Healthway’s internal audit 
activity was undertaken, in accordance with the Standards for Professional Practice of Internal 
Auditing.  The assessor reported that Healthway complies with the Standards. 
 
In addition, Director’s and Officer’s liability insurance cover was taken by Healthway for 2006/07 
at a cost of $8,651.50, of which each member of the Board directly contributed 1% of the 
premium calculated at $86.52.  
 
Corruption Prevention 
 
Prevention of Fraud, Corruption and Misconduct policies and protocols are in place and 
integrated in Healthway operations and culture.  A briefing on these policies and protocols is 
included as part of the detailed induction of all new Board and Committee members and also 
forms part of the induction process for all new employees. 
 
During 2006/07, a process has commenced to enhance system controls, in particular to better 
control access to information and functionalities based on individual roles and responsibilities.  
This principle has particularly been taken into account in designing new workflow procedures for 
Healthway, as it progresses towards being part of the Office of Shared Services environment, 
planned to occur during 2007/08. 
 
In addition, a project is currently being progressed to pilot the receipt and assessment of 
sponsorship applications on-line, in which clear rules and protocols are being designed to 
prevent the risk of fraud, corruption or misconduct.  
 
Advertising 
 
In accordance with section 175ZE of the Electoral Act 1907, details of expenditure incurred 
during 2006/07 financial period are set out below: 
 

Category Name of Agency Amount expended 
Advertising Agencies Market Force $7,116 (excl. GST) 
Market research organisations  Nil 
Polling organisations  Nil 
Direct mail organisations  Nil 
Media advertising organisations  Nil 

 
Compliance with Public Sector Standards and Ethical Codes  
 
In accordance with section 31(1) of the Public Sector Management Act 1994, Healthway is 
required to report on compliance with Public Sector Standards in Human Resource 
Management and Codes of Ethics and Codes of Conduct. 
 
Healthway’s Code of Conduct was revisited in 2006/07 and a range of improvements were 
formally approved by the Healthway Board and adopted throughout the organisation.  
Employees, Board, Committees and executives were subsequently reminded of their obligations 
to comply with Public Sector Code of Ethics and Healthway’s Code of Conduct.  In addition, 
trained Healthway senior executives reviewed transactions to which the Standards applied.     
 
All new Board members and Committee members receive a formal induction from the Executive 
Director.  All new employees are also formally inducted and made aware of the requirements of 
the Code of Ethics and Code of Conduct.  This information is also made available on the 
agency intranet.    
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Weekly staff meetings also provide a mechanism to discuss general matters concerning the 
Codes of Ethics and Conduct and assist with reinforcing Healthway’s strong commitment and 
focus on complying with these Codes and Standards.   
 
During 2006/07, no breach of Standards claim was lodged and no issue was raised for non-
compliance with the Code of Ethics and Code of Conduct. 

 
Neil Guard 
Executive Director 
 
Complaints Handling Policy and Guidelines 
 
Healthway has continued to expand its programs and range of services during 2006/07, with 
projects including the introduction of revised guidelines and application forms, the launch of its 
e-newsletter in February 2007 and the introduction of a range of new grant or sponsorship 
programs.  As part of the process, feedback has been encouraged and complaints monitored.  
The Healthway complaints policy remained on the website and feedback options were 
promoted, including via the e-newsletter. 
 
It was pleasing to note that less than five complaints were received during 2006/07 and all were 
resolved to the satisfaction of the complainant. 
 
Evaluations 
 
During the year, the Health Promotion Evaluation Unit (HPEU) at The University of Western 
Australia continued to be engaged to undertake independent evaluations of Healthway and its 
sponsorship and grant programs.  HPEU also undertook a range of field studies on behalf of 
Healthway. 
 
Evaluations and field studies completed included: 
• Organisational Survey 1992 – 2005 Volumes 1, 3 and 4 

Rosenberg M., Bosch D & Mills C.  2006, Organisational Survey 1992-2005 Volume 1: Executive Summary; 
Volume 3: Healthy Environment Policies in Healthway Funded Organisations; Volume 4: Relationships between 
Healthway and Sponsored Organisations, Health Promotion Evaluation Unit, School of Population Health, The 
University of Western Australia, Perth. 

 
• An evaluation of Healthway sponsorships valued up to $5,000 

Rosenberg M., Connell D., Wood L & Bosch D. 2006, An evaluation of Healthway sponsorships valued up to 
$5,000, Health Promotion Evaluation Unit, School of Population Health, The University of Western Australia, 
Perth. 

 
• WA Netball: A comparative analysis of a participating and non-participating Association in 

the “Smarter than Smoki ng Association Pilot Program” 
Health Promotion Evaluation Unit, School of Population Health, The University of Western Australia, Perth. 

 
• Evaluation of the Healthway Healthy Club Sponsorship Program. Part A: Healthy Club Audit 

Mills C., Rosenberg M and Mitchell J. 2006, Evaluation of the Healthway Healthy Club Sponsorship Program, 
Part A: Healthy Club Audit, Health Promotion Evaluation Unit, School of Population Health, The University of 
Western Australia, Perth.  

 
The results of these evaluations are reported and incorporated in preceding sections of this 
Annual Report. 
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Enabling Legislation 
 
Healthway was established as the Western Australian Health Promotion Foundation under Part 
3 of the Tobacco Control Act 1990.  During 2005/06, a review of the Act was undertaken and on 
31 July 2006 the new Tobacco Products Control Act 2006 came into effect, replacing the 
Tobacco Control Act 1990.  Healthway now functions under Part 5 of the Tobacco Products 
Control Act 2006. 
 
Other written laws that impact upon operations include: 
 

A New Tax System (Goods and Services) Act 1999 
Copyright Act 1968 
Corruption and Crime Commission Act 2003  
Disability Services Act 1993 
Electoral Act 1907 
Equal Opportunity Act 1984 
Financial Management Act 2006 and Treasurer’s Instructions 
Freedom of Information Act 1992 
Fringe Benefit Tax Act 1986 
Government Employees Superannuation Act 1951 
Industrial Relations Act 1979 
Library Board of Western Australia Act 1951 
Minimum Conditions of Employment Act 1993  
Occupational Health, Safety and Welfare Act 1984 
Public Interest Disclosure Act 2003 
Public Sector Management Act 1994 
Salaries and Allowances Act 1975 
State Records Act 2000 
State Superannuation Act 2000  
State Supply Commission Act 1991 
Superannuation Guarantee (Administration) Act 1992 
Workers Compensation and Injury Management Act 1981 
Working with Children (Criminal Record Checking) Act 2004 
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CORPORATE SERVICES 
 
 
OBJECTIVE 
 
“To contribute to the achievement of Healthway’s goals through the provision of high level 
support, advice and systems that are aligned to strategic objectives.” 
 
Core Corporate Services include: 
 

Human resource management 
Financial management 
Organisational development 
Information management services 
Risk management and implementation 
Corporate governance 
Internal audit 
Procurement 
Contract management 
Policy development and implementation 
Grant and sponsorship support 
Advice on related matters 

 
 
CORPORATE TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT 
 
Healthway maintains a strong focus on developing its workforce and providing opportunities for 
personal development through a range of initiatives.   
 
For example, during 2006/07 staff participated in a new program to better understand their 
personal health and lifestyle choices, which comprised two sessions – the first being a one on 
one interview, followed by a formal health check assessment.  Feedback from staff indicated the 
program was highly constructive in helping to identify and map suggestions for improvement of 
their personal health. 
 
In addition, a number of structured development courses were provided, including training in 
construction and management of e-newsletters, which enabled the introduction of a new e-
newsletter, launched in February 2007.  
 
 
OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH  
 
Regular audits of the workplace continued during the year, to raise awareness of and 
recommend actions to minimise risks.  An independent ergonomic assessment of workstations 
was also undertaken. 
 
Several programs/courses offered to staff during the year were well attended: 
 

• First Aid Training – two staff completed a St John Ambulance Senior First Aid Certificate 
course; 

• Defensive Driving Course – to improve knowledge and skills in driving under a range of 
conditions and to raise awareness of vehicle safety and environmental issues.  All staff 
have now attended this course; 
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• Health Assessment and Skin Cancer Checks – to identify key health risks and provide 
staff with an analysis and risk assessment; and 

• Fire Awareness and Extinguisher Training – to raise awareness of fire hazards, types of 
fires and how to extinguish minor fires. All staff have now attended this training. 

 
Flu Vaccinations were also made available to employees. 
 
Healthway’s Occupational Safety and Health Code of Practice and Injury Management System 
was extensively reviewed and distributed to all staff. 
 
A comprehensive review of Healthway’s Motor Vehicle Safety policy, based on current 
guidelines, research and compliance requirements was completed and distributed to all staff. 
 
No workers’ compensation claims were made during 2006/07. 
 
 
CUSTOMER SERVICE 
 
Healthway continues to work collaboratively with the community of Western Australia providing 
grants and sponsorships across the State.  It has a diverse client base and a strategic direction 
that includes a focus on ensuring that priority population groups, such as regional and remote 
communities, Indigenous groups and young people have equitable access to Healthway 
programs, grant and sponsorship opportunities.  A proactive approach and responsive customer 
service are considered essential components of an effective approach.  Healthway also 
consults widely with its stakeholders to identify potential service improvement opportunities.   
 
Feedback on Healthway services is encouraged through a range of strategies including: 
 
• Designated regional visits – these visits continued to prove popular with regional 

communities during the year and provided a forum for sharing information and for learning.  
Regional visits were undertaken to Kalgoorlie, Norseman, Kambalda, Geraldton, Albany, 
Boddington, Northam, Kellerberrin, Bunbury, and Busselton;  

• Attendance at Healthway sponsored events, by Board and Committee members, Healthway 
employees or employees of Healthway partner organisations; 

• Feedback from Board and Committee members who interact regularly with a diverse range 
of stakeholder groups, across different sectors; 

• Via the Healthway website; and 
• The launch of Healthway’s e-newsletter in February 2007, which provided a new mechanism 

to communicate with stakeholders and to obtain feedback on Healthway services.  By 30 
June 2007, more than 800 parties had subscribed to the e-newsletter. A formal feedback 
questionnaire is planned for 2007/08 to seek suggestions for future improvements to the e-
newsletter format and approach.  

 
Also during 2006/07: 
 
• Healthway initiated discussions with the Department of Consumer and Employment 

Protection (DOCEP) to obtain on-line access for Healthway to public domain information 
held by DOCEP with respect to the incorporation status of organisations.  It is hoped that 
this will improve customer service by removing the need for grant or sponsorship applicants 
to verify the currency of their incorporation each time they apply; and 

• Implementation of the Tobacco Products Control Act 2006, from July 2006, has enabled 
increased flexibility in Healthway’s decision making processes, including the delegation by 
the Board of smaller funding decisions to the Executive Director and the ability for the Board 
to make funding decisions by means other than a formal meeting.  In several instances 
during the year this has enabled an improvement in the timelines for making and 
communicating decisions. 
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INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS  
 
There were no industrial issues during the year and no services to the public were disrupted. 
 
 
EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM  
 
Healthway continues to offer employees and families access to employee assistance programs 
via a contracted provider.  Confidential counseling sessions are provided to staff as required. 
 
 
RISK MANAG EMENT  
 
A risk management review was undertaken in February 2007 and the Report was presented to 
the Finance and Audit Committee.  It showed that Healthway has continued to integrate risk 
management as part of its management and decision making practices, identifying risk 
exposures and implementing appropriate mitigating risk measures.  
 
For example, during the year all Healthway application forms have been revised to provide a 
reminder to applicants of their responsibilities with respect to the Working with Children 
(Criminal Records Checking) Act 2004.  The application forms direct applicants to the relevant 
website for further information.  Healthway contracts have also been revised to reflect this 
requirement. 
 
Risk Management is approached in accordance with Treasurer’s Instructions, Premier’s Circular 
and the framework of the Australian/New Zealand Risk Management Standards AS/NZS 4360. 
  
 
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY (IT) 
 
During the year a comprehensive approach was undertaken to review and upgrade Healthway’s 
IT infrastructure including an assessment of IT system performance and IT controls.  Steps 
were taken to upgrade desktop computers and enhance spam filters and virus protection.  
Some delays were experienced in completing the IT security framework and documentation; 
however this is expected to be completed by November 2007.  The process will include a review 
of Healthway’s Business Continuity Plan.  
 
A significant project in 2006/07 was the introduction of a bi-monthly e-newsletter, the 
development of which involved system training and workflow re-design. 
 
Extensive work has also been undertaken to enhance the Healthway grant management 
database, to align it with the requirements of the Office of Shared Services.  
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CERTIFICATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
The accompanying financial statements of the Western Australian Health Promotion Foundation 
have been prepared in compliance with the provisions of the Financial Management Act 2006 
from proper accounts and records to present fairly the financial transactions for the year ending 
30 June 2007 and the financial position as at 30 June 2007. 
 
At the date of signing, we are not aware of any circumstances which would render the 
particulars included in the financial statements misleading or inaccurate. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Jenn Morris 
Chairperson 
 
 
 

 
 
Maurice Swanson 
Deputy Chairperson 
 

 
 
Lina Barbato 
Director, Corporate Services 
 
 
 
16 July 2007 
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INCOME STATEMENT  
for the year ended 30 June 2007 
 

 Note  2007  2006 
   $  $ 
     
COST OF SERVICES     
     
Expenses       
     
Employee benefits expense 5 1,126,550  1,178,614 
Supplies and services 6 432,355  396,940 
Depreciation  7 87,253  92,893 
Accommodation expenses 8 171,145  144,873 
Grants and sponsorships 9 17,599,784  17,763,879 
Loss on disposal of non-current assets 13 7,553  2,567 
Other expenses 10 31,293  21,319 
Total cost of services   19,455,933   19,601,085 
     
Income     
Revenue      
     
Interest revenue 11 982,756  902,049 
Other revenue 12 373,139  528,457 
Total revenue  1,355,895   1,430,506 
     
       
Total income other than income       
from State Government  1,355,895   1,430,506 
     
NET COST OF SERVICES  18,100,038   18,170,579 
      
INCOME FROM STATE GOVERNMENT     
Service appropriation 14 18,179,000   17,753,000 
Total income from State Government   18,179,000   17,753,000 
     
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE PERIOD  78,962    (417,579) 
      
     
The Income Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.  
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BALANCE SHEET 
as at 30 June 2007 
 
 Note 2007  2006 
  $   $ 
     
ASSETS     
Current Assets      
Cash and cash equivalents 15 7,654,255  7,152,896 
Receivables 16 981,676   977,847 
     
Total Current Assets   8,635,931   8,130,743 
     
      
Non-Current Assets      
Property, plant and equipment  17 408,849   386,785 
     
Total Non-Current Assets   408,849   386,785 
      
TOTAL ASSETS   9,044,780   8,517,528 
      
     
LIABILITIES     
Current Liabilities     
     
Payables 18 7,556,516  7,063,679 
Provisions 19 222,505  225,698 
Other current liabilities 20 18,210   34,401 
     
Total Current Liabilities   7,797,231   7,323,778 
     
Non-Current Liabilities      
     
Provisions 19 85,937   111,100 
     
Total Non-Current Liabilities   85,937   111,100 
     
Total Liabilities   7,883,168   7,434,878 
     
NET ASSETS  1,161,612   1,082,650 
      
EQUITY     
Accumulated surplus 21 1,161,612  1,082,650 
         
     
TOTAL EQUITY   1,161,612   1,082,650 
      
     
The Balance Sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
for the year ended 30 June 2007                                                                                  
 
     Note 2007  2006 
      $  $ 
         
         
Balance of equity at start of period  21 1,082,650   1,500,229 
         
         
ACCUMULATED SURPLUS     
(RETAINED EARNINGS)        
Balance at the start of period    1,082,650  1,500,229 
Surplus / (Deficit) for the period  21 78,962  (417,579) 
          
Balance at the end of period    1,161,612   1,082,650 
         
          
Balance of equity at end of period  21 1,161,612   1,082,650 
         
Total income and expense for the period   78,962   (417,579) 
         
         
The Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT 
for the year ended 30 June 2007 
 

  Note 2007  2006 
      $  $ 
         
CASH FLOWS FROM STATE GOVERNMENT      
Service appropriation  18,179,000  17,753,000 
         
Net cash provided by State Government  18,179,000   17,753,000  
       
Utilised as follows:      
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES     
      
Payments     
Employee benefits  (1,166,889)  (1,066,093) 
Supplies and services  (501,364)  (459,390) 
Accommodation  (157,408)  (158,609) 
Grants and sponsorships  (17,118,335)  (17,763,879) 
GST payments on Purchases  (1,709,940)  (1,791,632) 
      
Receipts       
Interest received  964,387  788,560 
GST receipts on sales  21,864  70,041 
GST receipts from taxation authority  1,731,868  1,825,455 
Other receipts  375,047  521,502 
         
Net cash used in operating activities 22 (17,560,770)   (18,034,045) 
      
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES     
      
Proceeds from sale of non-current physical assets  54,749  41,284 
Purchase of non-current physical assets  (171,620)  (122,173) 
         
Net cash used in investing activities  (116,871)   (80,889) 
      
     
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  501,359  (361,934) 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period  7,152,896   7,514,830 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS     
AT THE END OF THE PERIOD 22 7,654,255   7,152,896  
         
The Cash Flow Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.  
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
for the year ended 30 June 2007 
 
1. Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards 
 
General 
 
The Authority's financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2007 have been prepared in accordance 
with Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (AIFRS), which comprise a 
Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements (the Framework) and Australian 
Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting Interpretations). 
 
In preparing these financial statements the Authority has adopted, where relevant to its operations, new 
and revised Standards and Interpretations from their operative dates as issued by the AASB and formerly 
the Urgent Issues Group (UIG).  
 
Early adoption of standards 
 
The Authority cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard or Australian Accounting Interpretation 
unless specifically permitted by TI 1101 ‘Application of Australian Accounting Standards and Other 
Pronouncements’. No Standards and Interpretations that have been issued or amended but are yet 
effective have been early adopted by the Author ity for the annual reporting period ended 30 June 2007.   
 
2. Summary of significant accounting policies 
 
(a) General Statement 
 
The financial statements constitute a general purpose financial report which has been prepared in 
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, the Framework, Statements of Accounting Concepts 
and other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board, as applied by the 
Treasurer’s Instructions. Several of these are modified by the Treasurer’s Instructions to vary the 
application, disclosure, format and wording.                                                                                                                                                                                              
 
The Financial Management Act and the Treasurer’s Instructions are legislative provisions governing the 
preparation of financial statements and take precedence over the Accounting Standards, the Framework, 
Statements of Accounting Concepts and other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting 
Standards Board.  
 
Where modification is required and has a material or significant financial effect upon the reported results, 
details of that modification and the resulting financial effect are disclosed in the notes to the financial 
statements. 
 
(b) Basis of Preparation 
 
The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting using the historical cost 
convention, except for applicable assets and liabilities which, as noted, are measured at fair value. 
 
The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements have been consistently 
applied throughout all periods presented unless otherwise stated. 
 
The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars rounded to the nearest dollar ($). 
 
The judgements that have been made in the process of applying the Authority's accounting policies that 
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements are disclosed at note 
3 'Judgements made by management in applying accounting policies'. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
for the year ended 30 June 2007 
 
(c) Income 
 
Revenue recognition 
Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable.  Revenue is recognised for 
the major business activities as follows: 
 
Sale of goods 
Revenue is recognised from the sale of goods and disposal of other assets when the significant risks and 
rewards of ownership control transfer to the purchaser and can be measured reliably.  
 
Rendering of services 
Revenue is recognised on delivery of the service to the client or by reference to the stage of completion of 
the transaction. 
 
Interest 
Revenue is recognised as the interest accrues.  
 
Service Appropriations 
Service Appropriations are recognised as revenues at nominal value in the period in which the Authority 
gains control of the appropriated funds. The Authority gains control of appropriated funds at the time those 
funds are deposited to the bank account or credited to the holding account held at Treasury.    
 
Grants, donations, gifts and other non-reciprocal contributions  
Revenue is recognised at fair value when the Authority obtains control over the assets comprising the 
contributions, usually when cash is received. 
 
Other non-reciprocal contributions that are not contributions by owners are recognised at their fair value.  
Contributions of services are only recognised when a fair value can be reliably determined and the services 
would be purchased if not donated. 
 
Where contributions recognised as revenues during the reporting period were obtained on the condition 
that they be expended in a particular manner or used over a particular period, and those conditions were 
undischarged as at the balance sheet date, the nature of, and amounts pertaining to, those undischarged 
conditions are disclosed in the notes. 
 
Gains 
Gains may be realised or unrealised and are usually recognised on a net basis. These include gains arising 
on the disposal of non-current assets and some revaluations of non-current assets. 
 
(d) Property, Plant and Equipment  
 
Items of property, plant and equipment costing $1,000 or more are recognised as assets and the cost of 
utilising assets depreciated over their useful lives.  Items of property, plant and equipment costing less than 
$1,000 are immediately expensed direct to the Income Statement.  
 
Initial recognition and measurement 
All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recognised at cost. 
For items of property, plant and equipment acquired at no cost or for nominal cost, the cost is their fair 
value at the date of acquisition. 
 
Depreciation  
All non-current assets having a limited useful life are systematically depreciated over their estimated useful 
lives in a manner that reflects the consumption of their future economic benefits. 
 
Depreciation is calculated on the straight line basis, using rates which are reviewed annually. Useful lives 
for each class of depreciable assets are: 
Motor Vehicles    5 years 
Furniture, Fixture and Fittings  5 to 20 years 
Office Equipment   5 to 20 years 
Computer Equipment                              3 years 
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(e) Intangible Assets 
 
Capitalisation/Expensing of assets 
Acquisitions of intangible assets costing $5,000 or more are capitalised. The cost of utilising the assets is 
expensed (amortised) over their useful life. Costs incurred below these thresholds are immediately 
expensed directly to the Income Statement. 
 
(f) Impairment of Assets 
 
Property, plant and equipment are tested for any indication of impairment at each balance sheet date.  
Where there is an indication of impairment, the recoverable amount is estimated.  Where the recoverable 
amount is less than the carrying amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to the 
recoverable amount and an impairment loss is recognised.  As the Authority is a not-for-profit entity, unless 
an asset has been identified as a surplus asset, the recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair 
value less costs to sell and depreciated replacement cost. 
 
The risk of impairment is generally limited to circumstances where an asset’s depreciation is materially 
understated or where the replacement cost is falling or where there is a significant change in useful life.  
Each relevant class of assets is reviewed annually to verify that the accumulated depreciation/amortisation 
reflects the level of consumption or expiration of the asset’s future economic benefits and to evaluate any 
impairment risk from falling replacement costs. 
 
The recoverable amount of assets identified as surplus assets is the higher of fair value less costs to sell 
and the present value of future cash flows expected to be derived from the asset. Surplus assets carried at 
fair value have no risk of material impairment where fair value is determined by reference to market based 
evidence. Where fair value is determined by reference to depreciated replacement cost, surplus assets are 
at risk of impairment and the recoverable amount is measured. Surplus assets at cost are tested for 
indications of impairments at each balance sheet date. 
 
(g) Leases 
 

The Authority has entered into an operating lease arrangement for the rent of the office building where the 
lessor effectively retains all of the risks and benefits incident to ownership of the items held under the 
operating leases.  Equal instalments of the lease payments are charged to the Income Statement over the 
lease term as this is representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased property. 
 
(h) Financial Instruments 
 
The Authority has two categories of financial instrument: 
•          Loans and receivables (includes cash and cash equivalents and receivables); and 
•          Non-trading financial liabilities (includes payables). 
 
Initial recognition and measurement is at fair value which normally equates to the transaction cost or face 
value. Subsequent measurement i s at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 
 
The fair value of short-term receivables and payables is the transaction cost or the face value because 
there is no interest rate applicable and subsequent measurement is not required as the effect of 
discounting is not material. 
 
(i) Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
For the purpose of the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalent (and restricted cash and cash 
equivalent) assets comprise cash on hand and short term deposits with original maturities of three months 
or less that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of 
changes in value, and bank overdrafts. 
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(j) Accrued Salaries 
 
Accrued salaries (see Note 20) represent the amount due to staff but unpaid at the end of the financial 
year, as the end of the last pay period for that financial year does not coincide with the end of the financial 
year. The amounts accrued are settled within a fortnight of the financial year end. The Authority considers 
the carrying amount approximates net fair value. 
 
(k) Funding Arrangements 
 
The funding arrangements are in accordance with Section 71 of the Tobacco Products Control Act 2006. 
 
(l) Receivables 
 

Receivables are recognised and carried at original invoice amount less an allowance for any uncollectible 
amounts (i.e. impairment). The collectability of receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis and any 
receivables identified as uncollectible are written off. The allowance for uncollectible amounts (doubtful 
debts) is raised when there is objective evidence that the Authority will not be able to collect the debts. The 
carrying amount is equivalent to fair value as it is due for settlement within 30 days. 
 
(m) Payables 
 
Payables are recognised at the amounts payable when the Authority becomes obliged to make future 
payments as a result of a purchase of assets or services. The carrying amount is equivalent to fair value, 
as they are generally settled within 30 days. 
 
(n) Provisions 
 
Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timing and amount and are recognised where there is a present legal 
or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and when the outflow of resources embodying 
economic benefits is probable and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 
Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date.   
 
(i)  Provisions - Employee Benefits  
 
Annual Leave and Long Service Leave 
The liability for annual and long service leave expected to be settled within 12 months after the end of the 
balance sheet date is recognised and measured at the undiscounted amounts expected to be paid when 
the liabilities are settled.  Annual and long service leave expected to be settled more than 12 months after 
the end of the balance sheet date is measured at the present value of amounts expected to be paid when 
the liabilities are settled.  Leave liabilities are in respect of services provided by employees up to the 
balance sheet date.  
 
When assessing expected future payments consideration is given to expected future wage and salary 
levels including non-salary components such as employer superannuation contributions.  In addition, the 
long service leave liability also considers the experience of employee departures and periods of service. 
 
The expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the balance sheet date on national 
government bonds with terms to maturity that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash 
outflows. 
 
All annual leave and unconditional long service leave provisions are classified as current liabilities as the 
Authority does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after 
the balance sheet date. 
 
Leave benefits are calculated at remuneration rates expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.  A 
liability for long service leave is recognised after an employee has completed four years of service.  An 
actuarial assessment for long service leave undertaken by PriceWaterHouseCoopers Actuaries in 2007 
determined that the liability measured using the short hand method was not materially different from the 
liability measured using the present value of expected future payments.                                                                                                                                                       
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Superannuation 
The Government Employees Superannuation Board (GESB) administers the following superannuation 
schemes: 
 
Employees may contribute to the Pension Scheme, a defined benefit pension scheme now closed to new 
members or the Gold State Superannuation Scheme (GSS), a defined benefit lump sum scheme also 
closed to new members. 
 

The Authority has no liabilities under the Pension or the GSS Schemes. The liabilities for the unfunded 
Pension Scheme and the unfunded GSS Scheme transfer benefits due to members who transferred from 
the Pension Scheme, are assumed by the Treasurer. All other GSS obligations are funded by concurrent 
contributions made by the Authority to the GESB.  The concurrently funded part of the GSS Scheme is a 
defined contribution scheme as these contributions extinguish all liabilities in respect of the concurrently 
funded GSS Scheme obligations.   
 
Employees commencing employment prior to 16 April 2007 who are not members of either the Pension or 
the GSS Schemes became non-contributory members of the West State Superannuation Scheme (WSS).  
Employees commencing employment on or after 16 April 2007 became members of the GESB Super 
Scheme (GESBS). Both of these schemes are accumulation schemes. The Authority makes concurrent 
contributions to GESB on behalf of employees in compliance with the Commonwealth Government's 
Superannuation Guarantee (Administration) Act 1992.  These contributions extinguish the liability for 
superannuation charges in respect of the WSS and GESB Schemes.  
 
The GESB makes all benefit payments in respect of the Pension and GSS Schemes, and is recouped by 
the Treasurer for the employer's share. See also note 2(o) 'Superannuation expense'. 
 

(ii)  Provisions -Other 
 
Employment On-Costs  
Employment on-costs, including workers’ compensation insurance, are not employee benefits and are 
recognised separately as liabilities and expenses when the employment to which they relate has occurred.  
Employment on-costs are included as part of 'Other expenses' and are not included as part of the 
Authority’s ‘Employee benefits expense’ and the related liability is included in 'Employment on-costs 
provision'. See note 19 'Provisions'.  
 

(o)  Superannuation expense 
 

The following elements are included in calculating the superannuation expense in the Income Statement: 
 
(a)    Defined benefit plans - Change in the unfunded employer’s liability assumed by the Treasurer in 
respect of current employees who are members of the Pension Scheme and current employees who 
accrued a benefit on transfer from that Scheme to the Gold State Superannuation Scheme (GSS); and 
 
(b)    Defined contribution plans - Employer contributions paid to the GSS and the West State 
Superannuation Scheme (WSS), and the GESB Super Scheme (GESBS). 
 
Defined benefit plans - in order to reflect the true cost of services, the movements in the liabilities in respect 
of the Pension Scheme and the GSS transfer benefits are recognised as expenses.  
 
The superannuation expense does not include payment of pensions to retirees, as this does not constitute 
part of the cost of services provided in the current year.   
 
The GSS Scheme is a defined benefit scheme for the purposes of employment and whole-of-government 
reporting. However, apart from the transfer benefit, it is a defined contribution plan for agency purposes 
because the concurrent contributions (defined contributions) made by the agency to GESB extinguishes 
the agency's obligations to the related superannuation liability. 
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(p) Comparative Figures 

Comparative figures are, where appropriate, reclassified to be comparable with the figures presented in the 
current financial year. 
 
3.  Judgements made by management in applying accounting policies 
 
The judgements that have been made in the process of applying accounting policies that have the most 
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements include: 
 
Operating Lease Commitments 

The Authority has entered into a commercial lease and has determined that the lessor retains all the 
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the property.  Accordingly, the lease has been classified as an 
operating lease. 
 
4.  Disclosure of changes in accounting policy and estimates 

Initial application of an Australian Accounting Standard 

The Authority has applied the following Australian Accounting Standards and Australian Accounting 
Interpretations effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2006: 

AASB 2005-9 ‘Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards [AASB 4, AASB 1023, AASB 139 & AASB 132]’ 
(Financial guarantee contracts).  The amendment deals with the treatment of financial guarantee contracts, credit 
insurance contracts, letters of credit or credit derivative default contracts as either an “insurance contract” under 
AASB 4 ‘Insurance Contracts’ or as a “financial guarantee contract” under AASB 139 ‘Financial Instruments: 
Recognition and Measurement’.  The Authority does not currently undertake these types of transactions, resulting in no 
financial impact in applying the Standard.   
 
The following Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations are not applicable to the Authority as 
they have no impact or do not apply to not-for-profit entities: 
 
2005-1 - Amendments to Australian Accounting Standard (AASB 139 – Cash flow hedge accounting of forecast 
intragroup transactions) 
 
2005-5 - Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards [AASB 1 & AASB 139] 
 
2006-1 - Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards [AASB 121] 
 
2006-3 - Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards [AASB 1045] 
 
2006-4 - Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards [AASB 134] 
 
2007-2 - Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB Interpretation 12 [AASB 1, AASB 117, 
AASB 118, AASB 120, AASB 121, AASB 127, AASB 131 & AASB 139] – paragraph 9 
 
UIG 5 - Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning, Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds 

 
UIG 6 - Liabilities arising from Participating in a Specific Market – Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment 

 
UIG 7 - Applying the Restatement Approach under AASB 129 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies 

 
UIG8 - Scope of AASB 2 
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Future impact of Australian Accounting Standards not yet operative 
 
The Authority cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard or Australian Accounting Interpretation 
unless specifically permitted by TI 1101 ‘Application of Australian Accounting Standards and Other 
Pronouncements’.  Consequently, the Authority has not applied the following Australian Accounting 
Standards and Australian Accounting Interpretations that have been issued but are not yet effective.  These 
will be applied from their application date: 
 
1. AASB 7 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures’ (including consequential amendments in AASB 2005-10 ‘Amendments 
to Australian Accounting Standards [AASB 132, AASB 101, AASB 114, AASB 117, AASB 133, AASB 139, AASB 1, 
AASB 4, AASB 1023 & AASB 1038]’).  This Standard requires new disclosures in relation to financial instruments.  The 
Standard is considered to result in increased disclosures, both quantitative and qualitative of the Authority’s exposure 
to risks, enhanced disclosure regarding components of the Authority’s financial position and performance, and possible 
changes to the way of presenting certain items in the financial statements.  The Authority does not expect any financial 
impact when the Standard is first applied.  The Standard is required to be applied to annual reporting periods beginning 
on or after 1 January 2007. 
 
2. AASB 2005-10 ‘Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards (AASB 132, AASB 101, AASB 114, AASB 117, 
AASB 133, AASB 139, AASB 1, AASB 4, AASB 1023, & AASB 1038)’.  The amendments are as a result of the issue of 
AASB 7 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures’, which amends the financial instrument disclosure requirements in these 
standards.  The Authority does not expect any financial impact when the Standard is first applied.  The Standard is 
required to be applied to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2007. 
 
3. AASB 101 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’.  This Standard was revised and issued in October 2006 so that 
AASB 101 has the same requirements as IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ (as issued by the IASB) in 
respect of for-profit entities.  The Authority is a not-for-profit entity and consequently does not expect any financial 
impact when the Standard is first applied.  The Standard is required to be applied to annual reporting periods beginning 
on or after 1 January 2007. 
 
4.  AASB 2007-4 ‘Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from ED 151 and Other Amendments 
(AASB 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 102, 107, 108, 110, 112, 114, 116, 117, 118, 119, 120, 121, 127, 128, 129, 130, 131, 132, 
133, 134, 136, 137, 138, 139, 141, 1023 & 1038)’.  This Standard introduces policy options and modifies disclosures.  
These amendments arise as a result of the AASB decision that, in principle, all options that currently exist under IFRSs 
should be included in the Australian equivalents to IFRSs and additional Australian disclosures should be eliminated, 
other than those now considered particularly relevant in the Australian reporting environment.  The Department of 
Treasury and Finance has indicated that it will mandate to remove the policy options added by this amending Standard.  
This will result in no impact as a consequence of application of the Standard.  The Standard is required to be applied to 
annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2007. 
 
The following Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations are not applicable to the Authority as 
they will have no impact or do not apply to not-for-profit entities: 
 
AASB 8 - Operating Segments 
 
AASB 1049 - Financial Reporting of General Government Sectors by Governments 
 
AASB 2007-1 - Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB Interpretation 11 [AASB 2] 
 
AASB 2007-2 - Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB Interpretation 12 [AASB 1, AASB 
117, AASB 118, AASB 120, AASB 121, AASB 127, AASB 131 & AASB 139] – paragraphs 1 to 8 
 
AASB 2007-3 - Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 8 [AASB 5, AASB 6, AASB 102, 
AASB 107, AASB 119, AASB 127, AASB 134, AASB 136, AASB 1023 & AASB 1038] 
 
AASB 2007-6 “Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 123 [AASB 1, AASB 101, AASB 
107, AASB 111, AASB 116 & AASB 138 and Interpretations 1 & 12]”. This Standard was issued on 14 June 2007 and 
applies to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009 
 
AASB 2007-7 “Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards [AASB 1, AASB 2, AASB 4, AASB 5, AASB 107 & 
AASB 128]”. This Standard was issued on 28 June 2007 and applies to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 
1 July 2007 
 
Interpretation 10 - Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment 
 
Interpretation 11 - AASB 2 – Group and Treasury Share Transactions 
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   2007  2006 
   $   $ 
      
5 Employee benefits expense      
      
 Wages and salaries  1,066,099  980,142 
 Annual leave   (10,491)  25,489 
 Long service leave  (34,935)  74,853 
 Superannuation  105,877  98,130 
   1,126,550   1,178,614 
      
6 Supplies and services      
      
 Communications  42,871  44,369 
 Consultants and contractors  286,736  223,977 
 Consumables  51,602  52,170 
 Travel  14,579  11,625 
 Other  36,567  64,799 
   432,355   396,940 
      
7 Depreciation     
      
 Motor vehicles  30,257  39,814 
 Office Establishment  15,657  15,458 
 Equipment and apparatus  5,056  5,564 
 Computing equipment and software  35,333  31,320 
 Furniture  950  737 
   87,253   92,893 
      
8 Accommodation expenses     
      
 Lease rentals  115,093  95,827 
 Cleaning  56,052  46,090 
 Rates  0  2,956 
   171,145   144,873 
      
9 Grants and sponsorships     
      
 Health promotion and research grants   5,875,764  5,802,900 
 Arts sponsorships  2,847,399  2,781,839 
 Sport sponsorships  5,894,137  5,953,361 
 Racing sponsorships  859,502  948,100 
 Support sponsorships  1,791,982  1,917,679 
 Evaluations  331,000  360,000 
    17,599,784   17,763,879 
       

10 Other expenses     
      
 Other staff costs  10,133  9,477 

 Maintenance  21,160  11,842 
   31,293   21,319 
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   2007  2006 
   $  $ 
      

11 Interest revenue     
      
 Interest revenue  982,756  902,049 
   982,756   902,049 
      

12 Other revenue     
       

 Return of unexpended grants and sponsorships  357,594  512,728 
 Other   15,545  15,729 

   373,139   528,457 
      

13 Net loss on disposal of non-current assets     
      
 Costs of Disposal of Non-Current Assets     
 Equipment, Furniture and Vehicles  62,302  43,849 
      
 Proceeds from Disposal of Non-Current Assets     
 Equipment, Furniture and Vehicles  54,749  41,282 
 Net loss   7,553   2,567 
      

14 Income from State Government     
      

 Appropriation received during the year:     
 Service appropriation  18,179,000  17,753,000 
   18,179,000   17,753,000 
      

15 Cash and cash equivalents     
      

 Held at Treasury - WA Health Promotion Fund  7,654,162  7,152,776 
 Cash on Hand  93  120 
   7,654,255   7,152,896 
      

16 Receivables     
      
 Current      
 GST receivable  810,989  809,016 
 Interest receivable  165,500  147,131 
 Prepayments  4,240  18,845 
 Other debtors  947  2,855 
   981,676   977,847 
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   2007  2006 
   $  $ 
      
17 Property, plant and equipment      

      
 Motor Vehicles     
 At cost  160,453  153,901 
 Less: Accumulated Depreciation  32,314  28,375 
   128,139   125,526 
      
 Fixtures and Fi ttings     
 At cost  276,470  274,568 
 Less: Accumulated Depreciation  95,655  79,998 
   180,815   194,570 
      
 Equipment and Apparatus       
 At Cost  44,977  41,402 
 Less: Accumulated Depreciation  29,273  24,217 
   15,704   17,185 
      
 Computing Equipment and Software      
 At cost  241,484  217,162 
 Less: Accumulated Depreciation  165,169  174,121 
   76,315   43,041 
      
 Furniture     
 At cost  19,465  18,106 
 Less: Accumulated Depreciation  11,589  11,643 
   7,876   6,463 
      
   408,849   386,785 
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Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment and vehicles at the beginning 
and end of the current and previous financial year are set out below: 
 

 
Motor 

Vehicles 

Fixtures 
and 

Fittings 

Equipment 
and 

Apparatus   
Computing 
Equipment Furniture Total 

2007 $ $ $ $ $ $ 
Carrying amount at 
the start of the year 125,526 194,570 17,185 43,041 6,463 386,785 

Additions 93,091 1,902 3,575 69,417 3,633 171,618 
Disposals (60,221) 0 0 (810) (1,270) (62,301) 
Depreciation (30,257) (15,657) (5,056) (35,333) (950) (87,253) 
       
Carrying amount at 
the end of the year 128,139 180,815 15,704 76,315 7,876 408,849 

 

 
Motor 

Vehicles 

Fixtures 
and 

Fittings 

Equipment 
and 

Apparatus   
Computing 
Equipment Furniture Total 

2006 $ $ $ $ $ $ 
Carrying amount at 
the start of the year 

140,012 207,048 8,288 41,407 4,599 401,354 

Additions 67,346 2,980 16,185 33,061 2,601 122,173 
Disposals (42,018) 0 (1,724) (107) 0 (43,849) 
Depreciation (39,814) (15,458) (5,564) (31,320) (737) (92,893) 
       
Carrying amount at 
the end of the year 

125,526 194,570 17,185 43,041 6,463 386,785 

 
 There were no indications of impairment to property, plant and equipment at 30 June 2007. 
 
   2007  2006 
   $   $ 
      
18 Payables     

      
 Current      
 Trade payables  21,307  9,919 
 Grants and sponsorships  7,535,209  7,053,760 
    7,556,516   7,063,679 

 
19 Provisions     

        
 Current     
 Employee benefits provision     
 Annual leave  89,763  86,232 
 Long service leave  114,458  118,095 
      
 Other provisions     
 Employment on-costs   18,284  21,371 
   222,505   225,698 
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   2007  2006 
   $  $ 
      
 Non-current     
 Employee benefits provision     
 Long service leave  79,791  100,861 
      
 Other provisions     
 Employment on-costs  6,146  10,239 
   85,937   111,100 

 
 Employment on-costs 
 The settlement of annual and long service leave 

liabilities gives rise to the payment of employment on-
costs including worker's compensation insurance. 

 
 Annual leave liability 
 Annual leave liabilities have been classified as current 

as there is no unconditional right to defer settlement for 
at least 12 months after balance sheet date. 
Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the 
liabilities will occur as follows: 

 Within 12 months of balance sheet date 65,847  55,330 
 More than 12 months after balance sheet date 23,916  30,902 
 89,763   86,232 
 
 Long service leave liability 
 Long service leave liabilities have been classified as 

current where there is no unconditional right to defer 
settlement for at least 12 months after balance sheet 
date. Assessments indicate that actual settlement of 
the liabilities will occur as follows: 

 Within 12 months of balance sheet date 102,775  44,405 
 More than 12 months af ter balance sheet date 91,474  174,551 
 194,249   218,956 
 
 Movements in Other Provisions    
 Employment on-cost provisions    
 Carrying amount at the start of year 31,610  22,574 
 Additional provision recognised (7,180)  9,036 
 Carrying amount at year  end 24,430   31,610 
 
20 Other liabilities     

  Current      
 Accrued Board and Committee fees  13,925  13,520 
 Accrued salaries   3,932  19,032 
 Other  353  1,849 
   18,210   34,401 
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   2007  2006 
   $  $ 

 
21 Equity     

      
 Accumulated surplus     
 Balance at start of year  1,082,650  1,500,229 
 Result for the year  78,962  (417,579) 
 Balance at the end of year  1,161,612   1,082,650 
  

 

Equity represents the residual interest in the net 
assets of Healthway. The Government holds the    
equity interest in Healthway on behalf of the 
community.   

 
22 Notes to the Cash Flow Statement     

       
 Reconciliation of cash     
      

 

Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in 
the Cash Flow Statement is reconciled to the 
related items in the Balance Sheet as follows:    

      
 Cash and cash equivalents  7,654,162  7,152,776 
 Cash on hand  93  120 
   7,654,255   7,152,896 
      

 
Reconciliation of net cost of services to net cash 
flows used in operating activities    

      
 Net cost of services  (18,100,038)  (18,170,579) 
      
 Non-cash items:     
 Depreciation  87,253  92,893 
 Loss on Disposal of Assets  7,553  2,567 
      
 (Increase)/decrease in assets:     
 Current receivables  (16,461)  (116,344) 
 Other current assets  14,606  (7,548) 
      
 Increase/(decrease) in liabilities:     
 Current payables  492,836  (74,447) 
 Current provisions  (3,192)  56,871 
 Other current liabilities  (16,190)  34,401 
 Non-current provisions  (25,163)  37,283 
 Net GST receipts/(payments)  43,792  103,864 
 Change in GST in receivables/payables  (45,766)  6,994 
 Net cash used in operating activities  (17,560,770)   (18,034,045) 
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   2007  2006 
   $  $ 

23 Commitments      
      

(a) Grants expenditure commitments     
      

 

Grant expenditure commitments relate to the 
Board's approval to fund applications which were 
received on or prior to 30 June 2007 and are 
contingent on Healthway's continued existence and 
future revenue being received. The balance is not 
recognised as a liability until the year payment is to 
be made. The amounts paya ble are as follows:    

      
 Within 1 year 7,305,968  6,556,560 
 Later than 1 year  and not later than 5 years 3,761,628  2,282,775 
 Later than 5 years 0   0 
   11,067,596   8,839,335 

(b) Non-cancellable operating lease commitments    
     

 
Commitments for minimum lease payments are 
payable as follows:    

       
  Within 1 year 159,857  154,980 
 Later than 1 year  and not later than 5 years 223,606  117,126 
 Later than 5 years 0   0  
   383,463   272,106 
      

 

The property lease is a non-cancellable lease with rent payable monthly in advance. Contingent rental 
provisions within the lease agreement require that the minimum lease payments shall be increased by 
the lower of CPI or 4% per annum. An option exists to renew the lease on 10 March 2008, for an 
additional two year term, expiring 10 March 2010. 

 
24 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets 

  

 
There were no known contingent liabilities at balance sheet date and at the date of signing the 
financial report. 

  
25 Events occurring after the balance sheet date 

  

 

No events, matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of  the balance sheet date which 
significantly affected or may significantly affect the operations of the Authority, the results of those 
operations, or the state of affairs of the Authority in future financial years. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
for the year ended 30 June 2007 
 
 

26 Explanatory statement     
       

(a)    
    
 

Significant variations between estimated and 
actual results for 2007 

   

 
Significant variations are considered to be those 
greater than 10% and $25,000. Budget Actual Variance 

  $ $ $ 
 (i)  Supplies and services  490,000 432,355 (57,645) 
      

 

This variation mainly reflects re-scheduling of 
planned activities and minor movements in 
expenditure line items. 

 
  

      
 (ii) Other revenue   0 373,139 373,139 
      

 
During 2006/07, the Disability Services Commission provided a further $200,000 towards a grant 
program to provide increased opportunities for people with disabilities. 

 
(b) Significant variations between actual results for 

2006 and 2007    
      

 
Significant variations are considered to be those 
greater than 10% and $25,000. 2007 2006 Variance 

  $ $ $ 
 Expense     
      
 (i) Accommodation  171,145 144,873 26,272 

 
This variation is mainly due to increases in variable 
accommodation outgoings.    

      
 Revenue     
      
 (i) Other revenue    373,139 528,457 (155,318) 
      

 

During 2005/06, Disability Services Commission provided $350,000 towards a grant program to 
provide increased opportunities for people with disabilities. However a reduced contribution of 
$200,000 in 2006/07 resulted in a revenue variance of ($150,000) for this grant program from the 
previous year. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
for the year ended 30 June 2007 
 

27 Financial Instruments 
 
(a) Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies 
 

 Financial instruments held by the Authority are cash and cash equivalents, receivables and payables.  
Healthway has limited exposure to financial risks.  Healthway's overall risk management program 
focuses on managing the risks identified below. 

 
 Credit risk 
  
 All financial assets are unsecured at balance date. 

 
 The maximum exposure to credit risk to recognised financial assets is the carrying amount, net of any 

provisions as disclosed in the Balance Sheet and notes to the financial statements. 
 

 
Liquidity risk 
 

 
Healthway has appropriate procedures to manage cash flows including drawdowns of appropriations 
by monitoring forecast cash flows to ensure that sufficient funds are available to meet its commitments. 

  
(b) Financial Instruments disclosures 
  
 Interest Rate Risk Exposure 
  
 The following table details the Authority's exposure to interest rate risk as at the report ing date: 

 

 

 
Weighted 
Average 
Effective 

Interest Rate 

Floating 
Interest Rate 

$ 

Non Interest 
Bearing 

$ 
Total 

$ 
2007      
      
Financial Assets      
Cash and cash equivalents  6.022% 7,654,162  93  7,654,255 
Receivables      -  977,436  977,436 
      
Total financial assets   7,654,162  977,529  8,631,691  
        
Financial Liabilities      
Payables      -  7,556,516  7,556,516 
Other liabilities      -  18,210  18,210 
      
Total financial liabilities      -  7,574,726  7,574,726  
      
Net financial assets (liabilities)   7,654,162  (6,597,197) 1,056,965  
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
for the year ended 30 June 2007 
 

  

Weighted 
Average 
Effective 

Interest Rate 

Floating 
Interest Rate 

$ 

Non Interest 
Bearing 

$ 
Total 

$ 
2006      
      
Financial Assets      
Cash and cash equivalents  5.473% 7,152,776  120  7,152,896 
Receivables      -  959,002  959,002 
      
Total financial assets   7,152,776  959,122  8,111,898  
        
Financial Liabilities      
Payables      -  7,063,679  7,063,679 
Other liabilities      -  34,401  34,401 
      
Total financial liabilities      -  7,098,080  7,098,080  
      
Net financial assets (liabilities)   7,152,776  (6,138,958) 1,013,818  

 
Fair Values 
 
The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the financial statements are not 
materially different from their net fair values, determined in accordance with the accounting policies 
disclosed in Note 2 to the financial statements. 

 
 

   2007  2006 
   $   $ 

      
28 Remuneration of members of the Accountable 

Authority and senior officers    
      
 Remuneration of Members of the Accountable Authority    
      
 The number of members of the Accountable Authority 

whose total of fees, salaries, superannuation, non-
monetary benefits and other benefits for the financial 
year, falls within the following bands:    

     
  2007 2006    
       
        $0 - $10,000 7 8    
 $10,001 - $20,000        6 -    
 $20,001 - $30,000        - 1    
      

 
The total remuneration of the members of the 
Accountable Authority is: 85,711  73,276 

  

 
The superannuation included here represents the superannuation expense incurred by the Authori ty in 
respect of the Accountable Authority. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
for the year ended 30 June 2007 
 

   2007  2006 
   $  $ 
 Remuneration of Senior Officers     
      

 

The number of senior officers, other than senior officers 
reported as members of the Accountable Authority, whose 
total of fees, salaries, superannuation, non-monetary 
benefits and other benefits for the financial year, fall within 
the following bands are:  

      
   2007 2006    
 $110,001  -  $120,000 - 2    
 $120,001 -  $130,000 1 1    
 $130,001 -  $140,000 1 1    
 $140,001 -  $150,000 - 1    
 $150,001 -  $160,000 1 -    
 $160,001 -  $170,000 1 -    
 $170,001 -  $180,000 - 1    
 $180,001 -  $190,000 - -    
 $190,001 -  $200,000 1 -    
      
 The total remuneration of senior officers is: 779,580  818,757 

 
 The superannuation included here represents the 

superannuation expense incurred by the Authority in 
respect of senior officers other than senior officers reported 
as members of the Accountable Authority. No senior 
members are members of the pensi on scheme. 
    

29 Remuneration of auditor     
      
 Remuneration payable to the Auditor General for the 

financial year is as follows:    
      
 Auditing of the accounts, financial statements and 

performance indicators. 29,500  26,800 
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CERTIFICATION OF PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
 
I hereby certify that the performance indicators are based on proper records, are relevant and 
appropriate for assisting users to assess the Western Australian Health Promotion Foundation’s 
performance and fairly represent the performance of the Western Australian Health Promotion 
Foundation for the year ending 30 June 2007. 
 
 

 
 
 
Jenn Morris 
Chairperson 
 
 
 

 
 
Maurice Swanson 
Deputy Chairman 
 
 
 
16 July 2007 
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PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2006/07 
 
 
KEY OUTCOME 
 
Healthway’s outcome is to increase individual knowledge and skills, and change behaviour and 
community and organisational policies and environments to improve health.   
 
 
Effectiveness Indicators  
 
Healthway’s effectiveness indicators report on distinct areas that measure the extent to which 
Healthway’s key outcome has been met.  
 
These indicators are as follows: 
 

• extent to which funded organisations have met the requirements and objectives agreed 
to with Healthway (refer to contractual evaluation measure); 

• extent to which sponsorship as a strategy contributes to health behaviour change (refer 
to Sponsorship Monitor Survey); and  

• extent to which Healthway support has enabled capacity building activities in the 
community (refer to capacity building indicator). 

 
Since 1992, quantitative evaluative data measuring the outcomes of Healthway funded projects 
have been extracted and reported by the Health Promotion Evaluation Unit (HPEU) which is an 
independent Unit based at The University of Western Australia.   
 
 
Contractual Evaluation Measure 
 
Extent to which funded organisations have met the requirements and objectives agreed to with 

Healthway 
 
Healthway has adopted a six point scale under a Graduated Project Evaluation approach, 
developed through HPEU.  Each project receives a score by Healthway upon the completion of 
the project as measured against a set of criteria and contractual obligations. These are then 
aggregated in the table below and reflected against respective program areas. 

Grant and sponsorship recipients are required to complete statistical forms at the conclusion of 
each project.  These are used as part of the project assessment, to arrive at a contractual 
evaluation measure.  Other factors include assessment by Healthway Board members, 
Committee members and staff or by health agency representatives monitoring the respective 
grant or sponsorship. 
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Key to Scores 
 

 
Score 

 
Descriptive Interpretation 

Notional 
number 

interpretation 

6 The outcomes1 of the project exceeded those required by the contract to 
a very substantial degree.  The project delivered outstanding value for 
money. 

150%+ 

5 The outcomes1 of the project exceeded those required by the contract to 
a large degree.  The project delivered excellent value for money. 

120-149% 

4 The outcomes1 of the project were consistent with, or in the vicinity of, 
those required by the contract.  The project delivered good value for 
money. 

95-119% 

3 The outcomes1 of the project fell short of those required by the contract, 
but were still within the bounds of acceptability.  The project delivered 
marginally adequate value for money. 

75-94% 

2 The outcomes1 of the project fell well short of those required by the 
contract.  The project delivered poor value for money. 

50-74% 

1 The outcomes1 of the project fell short of those required by the contract 
to a very substantial degree.  The project delivered completely 
unacceptable value for money. 

<50% 

 

Contractual Evaluation Measures of all Projects and Sponsorships 
 

Contractual evaluation measure: 
Average contractual evaluation score  
(cf. Norm of 4.0) 

2006/07 
Target 

2006/07 
Actual 

 

2005/06 
 

2004/05 

Health Promotion Projects        4.0         4.0        4.1        4.0 

Arts projects 
Sport projects 
Racing projects 

       4.0 
       4.0 
       4.0 

        4.1 
        3.9 
        4.3 

       4.0 
       3.9 
       4.0 

       3.9 
       3.9 
       4.0 

Support Sponsorship        4.0         4.1        4.0        4.0 

The contractual evaluation measures for 2006/07 are consistent with previous years and 
generally exceed the targets established for the period. The measures reflect that grant and 
sponsorship recipients continue to understand and meet Healthway’s objectives and the 
requirements contained within grant and sponsorship agreements.  These requirements 
generally include the implementation of health promoting policies and environmental changes 
as part of an organisation’s operations. 

Volume 4 of an Organisational Survey 1992 – 2005 was completed by HPEU in July 2006 and 
reported on relationships between Healthway and sponsored organisations. The survey was 
conducted in 2005 and sampled all organisations that completed Healthway funded projects 
after 30 April in the preceding year and commenced projects before 30 April in the Survey year. 
In 2005, 461 organisations were contacted, consisting of 426 sponsored sport, arts and racing 
organisations and 35 health organisations. The Survey confirmed that a high proportion of 
organisations reported a positive sponsorship relationship with Healthway, that Healthway’s 
performance met their expectations and that Healthway’s expectations of their organisation 

                                                
1 Reference to outcomes takes into account measures relating to educational strategies, population reach, 
contributions to increases in individual knowledge and skills and the extent to which organisations have implemented 
health policies and maintain a healthy environment.  These contractual evaluation measures relate directly to 
Healthway’s overall outcome. 
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were reasonable.  The implementation of health promoting programs was positively perceived 
by sponsored groups and health organisations. 

In the period ahead, Healthway will continue to support organisations to meet contractual 
obligations in a manner that will also help to maintain health promotion outcomes beyond the 
terms of the contract. 

Targets proposed for 2007/08 (below) are consistent with prior years.  The period will include 
the first year of implementation of a new Strategic Plan 2008 – 2011 and as such will require 
significant consultation with regard to new or emerging priorities: 
 

Contractual evaluation measure: 
Average contractual evaluation score (cf. Norm of 4.0) 

2007/08 
Target 

Health Promotion Projects                 4.0 

Arts projects 
Sport projects 
Racing projects 

                4.0 
                4.0 
                4.0 

Support Sponsorship                 4.0 

 

Sponsorship Monitor Survey 

Extent to which sponsorship as a strategy contributes to health behaviour change 

 
 2006/07 

Target 
2006/07 
Actual 

2004/05 2002/03 

% People attending Healthway sponsored events 
who were aware of the health message 

68% 72% 67% 71% 

% People attending a Healthway sponsored event 
who correctly understood the health message 

66% 65% 63% 68% 

% People who showed intention to act on health 
message 

17% 21% 17% 16% 

 

As part of their evaluation work, HPEU undertakes extensive audience surveys at various 
Healthway sponsored events.  This measures the impact of health messages on audiences, 
including the level of health message awareness, understanding of the message and intention 
to act on the message. 
 
These studies confirm the effectiveness of sponsorship as a strategy to achieve high levels of 
awareness and comprehension of a health message at a sport, arts or racing event.  They also 
provide evidence that health sponsorship can lead to behaviour change. 
 
Due to the complexity of the survey and the analysis required, these extensive surveys are 
generally undertaken every alternate year.   
 
The most recent Sponsorship Monitor was conducted in 2006/07, where for organisations 
monitored, one event was randomly selected from a range of eligible sponsored events.  
Surveys were conducted at each event of between 50 and 100 audience members depending 
on the size of the event, using either interviewer-administered or self-completion questionnaires.  
Data was collected on the cognitive impact of the health message, specifically audience 
awareness, understanding of the attitudes to the message, intentions and behaviour in relation 
to the message.  Audience members were randomly selected.   Standard procedures were also 
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used to monitor interviewer response rates.  Overall, the response rate for interviewer-
administered questionnaires was 57%.  The methods for conducting the Sponsorship Monitor 
have been published by Donovan et al (1999).29 
 
Data collection for the 2006/07 Sponsorship Monitor took place from July 2006 to June 2007 
and involved audience surveys from randomly selected events representing 34 major Healthway 
sponsored sport, arts and racing projects in metropolitan and regional areas.  In total, 2,389 
people were sampled for the 2006/07 Sponsorship Monitor.  The total population size is the sum 
of audience attendances at all events included in the Sponsorship Monitor that year.  This figure 
is not known and cannot be reliably estimated because of difficulties in accurately recording 
attendance at sponsored events. 
 
Some variability of the Survey results between sponsorship years is expected as the sampling 
distribution varies slightly.  In 2006/07, fewer interview-administered surveys were completed in 
comparison to previous years, which reflects in part differences in the types of projects 
sponsored within the data collection period.     
 
Total awareness in this period was slightly higher than in previous years.  As a result of 
exposure to the message, measures of comprehension and acceptance of the health 
sponsorship messages remained high and importantly, intention to act on the message was 
higher than in previous years resulting in a higher level of action. 
 
Possible reasons for the increase in awareness include the implementation of new and 
innovative strategies such as moving signage, role modelling, new merchandise and novel 
methods of merchandise delivery.  Healthway’s focus on Sponsorship Officer training via inter-
agency development days to encourage the sharing of ideas and discussion of effective 
sponsorship methods may also have had a flow on effect to increase total awareness.  It is also 
plausible that the intensive environmental, educational and action-oriented strategies employed 
during 2006/07 enhanced the effectiveness of Healthway sponsorships especially with regard to 
behaviour change.    
 
The Sponsorship Monitor Surveys provide evidence that a consistently high percentage of 
people attending events are aware of and understood the health promotion message.  Some 
tolerance in the overall proportion of people aware of health messages between sponsorship 
monitor periods is expected due to the varying nature, type and number of projects captured in 
each survey.   
 
Healthway continues to examine opportunities to encourage people to act on their awareness of 
health messages. 
 
Targets have also been set for 2008/09, covering the 12 months in which the next sponsorship 
monitor is planned.  While the monitor results for 2006/07 exceeded the targets set, the targets 
for 2008/09 are commensurate with the targets set for the 2006/07 monitor.  This reflects the 
anticipated focus on some new health promotion priorities and messages in the period of the 
next Strategic Plan 2008 – 2011, which may have an impact on awareness, comprehension and 
action levels until new programs and campaigns are fully established.    
 

 2008/09 
Target 

% People attending Healthway sponsored 
events who were aware of the health 
message 

68% 

% People attending a Healthway event who 
correctly understood the health message 

66% 

% People who showed intention to act on 
health message 

17% 
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Capacity Building  
 

Extent to which Healthway support has enabled capacity building activities in the community 
 
Healthway’s Strategic Plan 2004 - 2007 places priority focus on building and sustaining the 
capacity of individuals, organisations and communities to promote and improve the health of 
Western Australians. For Healthway, capacity building is an approach to the development of 
sustainable skills, structure, resources and commitment to prolong and multiply health gains 
many times over. 
 
Healthway has identified four capacity building domains as follows: 
 
1. Organisational commitment including policy changes; 
2. Building partnerships and creating supportive environments; 
3. Building health promotion skills and activities; and 
4. Reaching new priority groups. 
 
These domains form part of an extensive Organisational Survey conducted independently by 
HPEU every four years. 
 
In addition, Healthway collects limited capacity building measures from funding recipients, as 
part of its standard reporting requirements for acquittal of its funding.  It is intended this 
reporting requirement on capacity building activities will also continue to be reviewed and 
expanded, with additional measures particularly in the domains of building partnerships and 
environments and organisations reaching priority population groups. 
 
Healthway has for some time committed either directly or indirectly to capacity building activities 
and this is now a significant focus.   
 
The indicator below depicts the capacity building measures collected from the four yearly 
Organisational Survey conducted by HPEU.  The most recent Survey was in 2005/06 with an 
abridged version undertaken in 2004/05 to establish indicative performance indicator trends for 
the four domains of health promotion capacity building.  The 2005/06 Organisational Survey 
strengthened the measures around the four areas of capacity building, particularly in the area 
building partnerships and collaboration.   
 
The 2005/06 Organisational Survey included 36 health and 426 sport, arts and racing 
organisations who received Healthway funding in the previous 12 months. This represented 
98% of all health, sport, arts and racing organisations funded in the 12 months prior to the 
Survey.  
 
One half (50%) of the sample had received $5,000 or less in funding in the past 12 months, 
representing a change in representation of organisations on previous years, commensurate with 
Healthway’s efforts to achieve change at grass roots through initiatives such as the healthy club 
program. 
 
The results show that Healthway has continued to have a strong influence in the proportion of 
organisations that had increased organisational commitment to health, particularly through 
health policies.  The Strategic Plan 2004 - 2007 places an increased focus on building new 
partnerships to engage with priority population groups.  This may be reflected in the slight drop 
in the measure for building partnerships between the years of 2001/02 and 2004/05 and the 
slight variance between the 2005/06 target and actual.   
 
The Organisational Survey results also indicate that the areas of implementing health policies, 
health promotion skills and reaching new priority groups have increased compared with 2001/02 
and maintained similar levels compared with 2004/05.  However, Healthway’s grants and 
sponsorships are increasingly being targeted to organisations engaging directly with priority 
population groups rather than requesting existing sponsorship groups to extend their reach.  
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 2005/06 
Target 

2005/06 
Actual 

2004/05 
 

2001/02 1997/98 

Surveyed projects  462 220 672 616 

% organisations implementing health 
policies and demonstrating 
commitment to health promotion   

75 75 75 61 50 

% organisations building partnerships 
and creating supportive environments 

65 63 65 67 64 

% organisations commitment to 
building and sustaining health 
promotion skills  

69 73 69 68 74 

% organisations reaching new priority  
groups  

68 69 70 66 57 

 
 
EFFICIENCY INDICATORS 
 
Grants and Sponsorships  
 
The efficiency indicator measures the average administrative cost for every $100 of approved 
funding for the WA community through the grant and sponsorship programs. 
 
The costing allocation methodology involved an organisational wide work flow analysis 
assessing the direct proportion of labour effort component for processing, assessing, monitoring 
and acquitting grants and sponsorships which is utilised as the basis for calculating this 
efficiency indicator. 
 
In 2006/07, a target of $9.75 as the average administrative cost for every $100 of approved 
funding was set based on cost estimates at the commencement of the financial year.  However, 
re-scheduling of some planned activities has resulted in slightly lower administrative costs and a 
lower than expected average cost for every $100 of funding from $9.75 to $9.40.   
 
In 2007/08, the impact of estimated salary increases and additional administrative costs 
associated with the above planned activities is expected to increase the average administrative 
cost per $100 of approved funding to $9.95 
 

 2006/07 
Target 

2006/07 
actual 

2005/06 
 

2004/05 

 $ $ $ $ 

Average cost per $100 of approved 
funding 

9.75 9.40 9.28 9.91 

 
 
Capacity Building  
 
Healthway has a clear commitment to building and sustaining health promotion capacity through 
its grant and sponsorship programs.  Healthway activities reflect the continued support for the 
World Health Organisation’s philosophy and directions for health promotion, set out in the  
Ottawa Charter for Health Promotion 1986, which outlines that effective health promotion is 
based on:  
 

• Building health public policy; 
• Creating supportive environments for sustainable change; 
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• Strengthening community action; 
• Developing personal knowledge and sk ills; 
• Promoting shared community and social responsibility for improving health; 
• Developing, consolidating and expanding partnerships for health; 
• Increasing the skills and resources of communities to promote healthy behaviours; and  
• Empowering individuals to make informed decisions 

 
Successful funding applications that contain a health promotion capacity building component 
are reflected in the indicator below as an average cost per application for Healthway support 
provided towards assisting recipients to implement and sustain capacity building. 
 
This support includes pre-funding application meetings with organisations to outline health 
policy requirements, support provided to health agencies which work with funding recipients and 
program specific workshops/seminars to encourage capacity building in funding applications. 
 
This indicator is calculated using a measure of the level of direct labour effort contributed to 
capacity building activities as a portion of total Healthway administrative costs and taking into 
account the number of capacity building applications for the year. 
 
In 2006/07, an average cost target of $509 per capacity building application was estimated.  At 
30 June 2007 the actual administrative cost outturn was slightly lower than the figures used in 
the target estimate resulting in a lower average cost per capacity building application of $503. 
 
In 2007/08 a new Strategic Plan 2008 - 2011 will be launched which is expected to continue to 
develop on capacity building partnerships and initiatives.  However, it is envisaged that the 
benefits from this commitment may not be fully realised in 2007/08, which is primarily viewed as 
the first implementation year.  Therefore, it is expected that the level of applications for funding 
containing a capacity building component will remain on par with 2006/07, while administrative 
costs are expected to increase to allow for estimated salary and other increases.  
 
Taking these factors into account it is estimated that the average cost per capacity building 
funding application will rise to $520 in 2007/08. 
 

 2006/07 
Target 

2006/07 
Actual 

2005/06 2004/05 

 $ $ $ $ 

Average cost per funding application 
with a capacity building component  

509 503 523 449 
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HEALTH PROMOTION PROJECTS APPROVED FO R FUNDING IN 2006/07 
(Includes Years 1, 2 or 3 funding for multi-year projects) 

 
Organisation Project Title Amount 

$ 
Cancer Prevention   
Cancer Council Western Australia Inc. (The) Generation SunSmart      130,000  
   
Cardio-Vascular Disease Prevention   
University of WA HealthRight Healthy Lifestyle Program 38,285 
   
Diabetes prevention   
Kimberley Population Health Unit Development of the CSRC Program 101,700 
Wongutha Birni Aboriginal Corporation Sugarba! 10,000 
   
Good Nutrition Promotion   
Australian Red Cross Society WA Division FOODcents Program - Kwinana/Rockingham 27,902 
Stand By Me Youth Service Inc Eat Right 5,000 
Wheatbelt Public Health Unit Wheatbelt Infant Feeding Pilot Project 800 
WA School Canteen Association  Adressing Healthier Food in Racing Canteens 15,000 
   
Health Promotion   
Ardyaloon Incorporated Baawa Ingul Gooron Youth Project 83,020 
Australian Health Promotion Association (WA) ATSI Scholarship Program 2006-2008 99,366 
Australian Health Promotion Association (WA) Health Promotion Graduate Scholarship Program 2006-2008 87,304 

Australian Medical Association WA Branch AMA - Healthway Award 15,000 
Great Southern Population Health Unit Katanning Healthy Community 71,014 
Kimberley Community Drug Service Team (Kimberley Health Region) 'Strong Families Safe Kids' Resources 3,325 
Miller-Beeliar Aboriginal Corporation Aboriginal Women's Health and Wellbeing Program 9,840 
National Heart Foundation of Aust (WA Division) Health + Medicine 83,590 
Office of Aboriginal Health WA Indigenous Health Promotion Conference 2007 - Scholarships 8,000 
Pilbara Population Health Unit (Newman) Newman Healthy Community 68,799 
Shire of Carnarvon Carnarvon Healthy Community 72,495 

Stoneham and Associates Healthy Community Projects - Ongoing Support 20,000 
University of WA The Game of Life 48,280 
VARIOUS Capacity Building Scholarships - Public Health Assoc. WA Conference 2007 15,000 
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HEALTH PROMOTION PROJECTS APPROVED FOR FUNDING IN 2006/07   (continued) 
 

 

Organisation Project Title Amount 
$ 

Mental Health Promotion    
Curtin University of Technology Capacity Building Scholarships - Intl. Mental Health Promotion Conference 900 
Curtin University of Technology Capacity Building Scholarships - Intl. Mental Health Promotion Conference 900 
Curtin University of Technology Capacity Building Scholarships - Intl. Mental Health Promotion Conference 900 
Curtin University of Technology Capacity Building Scholarships - Intl. Mental Health Promotion Conference 700 
Curtin University of Technology Capacity Building Scholarships - Intl. Mental Health Promotion Conference 900 
Curtin University of Technology Capacity Building Scholarships - Intl. Mental Health Promotion Conference 1,000 
Curtin University of Technology Capacity Building Scholarships - Intl. Mental Health Promotion Conference 900 
Dongara Health Service Capacity Building Scholarships - Intl. Mental Health Promotion Conference 795 
Great Southern Community Health Services Capacity Building Scholarships - Intl. Mental Health Promotion Conference 800 
Great Southern Mental Health Services Capacity Building Scholarships - Intl. Mental Health Promotion Conference 800 
Great Southern Population Health Unit Capacity Building Scholarships - Intl. Mental Health Promotion Conference 800 
Kimberley Aboriginal Medical Services Council Capacity Building Scholarships - Intl. Mental Health Promotion Conference 1,000 
Kimberley Population Health Unit Jubudah For Kids Program (It's About Feelings) 27,130 
Men's Resource Centre (Inc) Capacity Building Scholarships - Intl. Mental Health Promotion Conference 900 
North West Mental Health Service - Kununurra Capacity Building Scholarships - Intl. Mental Health Promotion Conference 1,000 
Northern Districts Community Support Group Capacity Building Scholarships - Intl. Mental Health Promotion Conference 900 
WA Baptist Hospital and Homes Trust Inc. Capacity Building Scholarships - Intl. Mental Health Promotion Conference 1,000 
WA Country Health Service Capacity Building Scholarships - Intl. Mental Health Promotion Conference 395 
Wheatbelt Men's Health Inc Capacity Building Scholarships - Intl. Mental Health Promotion Conference 700 
   
Physical Activity Promotion   
National Heart Foundation of Aust (WA Division) 'Just Walk It' in the City of Fremantle 29,400 
National Heart Foundation of Aust (WA Division) Targeting Parents to Encourage Walking and Cycling to School 110,000 
Papulankutja Artists Aboriginal Corporation Yankula - Lets Go! 10,000 
Shire of Kulin Capacity Building - 2007 Active Living Congress 473 
   
Sexual Health   
Family Planning Association of WA Inc FPWA Mooditj Training Program 2005-2008 152,613 
Family Planning Association of WA Inc SASSY (Safe and Sexy Summer Youth) 5,000 
Kimberley Population Health Unit HPV Vaccine Project (Fitzroy Valley) 6,800 
Kimberley Population Health Unit HPV Vaccine Project (Halls Creek) 4,420 
   
Tobacco Smoking Control   
Aboriginal Health Council of WA Inc Beyond the Big Smoke: a clear vision for Aboriginal tobacco control in WA 192,561 
Al-Hidayah Islamic School SMART School 2,450 
Australian Council on Smoking and Health Australian Council on Smoking and Health 2006-2009 182,000 
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Organisation Project Title Amount 
$ 

Tobacco Smoking Control (continued)   
Balga Senior High School SMART School 3,000 
Cancer Council Western Australia Inc. (The) Make Smoking History Campaign 430,000 
Carnarvon Christian Parent Controlled School Association Inc SMART School 2,550 

Curtin University of Technology WA Tobacco Document Searching Program 2006 - 2009 136,557 
Cyril Jackson Senior Campus SMART School 3,000 
Gosnells Primary School SMART School 2,090 
Lake Joondalup Baptist College SMART School 2,500 
Mandurah Catholic College SMART School 1,550 
Mt Lawley Senior High School SMART School 1,700 
Mukinbudin Christian Community School SMART School 1,220 
National Heart Foundation of Aust (WA Division) Smarter than Smoking Project 1,048,649 

Nedlands Primary School SMART School 2,150 
Secret Harbour Primary School SMART School 2,730 
Settlers Primary School SMART School 2,542 
St Brigid's School SMART School 2,200 
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HEALTH PROMOTION RESEARCH PROJECTS APPROVED FOR FUNDING IN 2006/07 
(Includes Years 1, 2 or 3 funding for multi-year projects) 

 
Chief Investigator Organisation Project Title Amount 

$ 
Scholarship/Fellowship  
Dr Mary Naissides Curtin University of Technology Tailoring interventions for obesity prevention in disadvantaged Western Australian 

communities 
76,827 

Prof Peter Howat Curtin University of Technology Visiting Fellow - Professor Annie S. Anderson 31,787 

Ms Ann Larson Combined Universities Centre for Rural 
Health 

Indigenous Research Support Program 35,000 

Ms Jacinta Francis University of WA Associations between public places and psychosocial outcomes in new residential 
environments 

27,200 

Ms Marion Kickett University of WA Indigenous Research Training Scholarship 27,500 

Miss Dionne Paki Edith Cowan University Churchlands Health Promotion Research Training Scholarship 22,500 

Mrs Stacey Waters Edith Cowan University Churchlands Health Promotion Research Training Scholarship 25,600 

Miss Sarah Clark University of WA Do school environments encourage or discourage bullying in primary school students 
during breaktimes? 

24,000 

    
Starter Grants    
Dr Yvonne Hauck Curtin University of Technology Influence of Infant Sleep and Settling on Mother's Mental Health 19,848 

Dr Deborah Kerr Curtin University of Technology Using mobile phones to improve fruit and vegetable intake in young adults 19,958 

Prof Peter Drummond Murdoch University A peer-education model of holistic health promotion among West Africans 20,000 

Ms Justine Leavy University of WA Tap into good teeth: a pilot study examining the nature of water consumption within 
childhood diets  

17,471 

Ms Heather D'Antoine University of WA Alcohol and Pregnancy: Aboriginal women's knowledge, attitudes and practice 19,541 

Dr Raguragavan 
Ganeshasundaram 

Edith Cowan University Joondalup Benchmarking Smoking Uptake in Western Australian immigrant adolescents 19,981 
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HEALTH PROMOTION RESEARCH PROJECTS APPROVED FOR FUNDING IN 2006/07  (continued) 
 

Chief Investigator Organisation Project Title Amount 
$ 

Research Grants  
Assoc Prof Anne 
Passmore 

Curtin University of Technology Secondary school transition: healthy outcomes for all Australian adolescents 36,085 

Dr Mary Naissides Curtin University of Technology Using a web-based tool for reducing overweight and obesity in young mothers 50,000 

Prof Robert Donovan Curtin University of Technology Using television advertising to increase fruit consumption by WA children 76,712 

Dr Marg Hall Edith Cowan University Joondalup Child-Centred Environments to Limit Early Agression intervention trial 117,392 

Dr Wendy Oddy Curtin University of Technology Promoting Optimal Infant Nutrition: The Perth Breastfeeding Scoping Project 41,359 

Prof Peter Howat Curtin University of Technology Reducing overweight & obesity in mothers of young children (MYC) 79,662 

Prof Colin Binns Curtin University of Technology The influence of fathers on infant feeding practices in WA 112,477 

Dr Simone Pettigrew University of WA A family education intervention to address childhood obesity 50,000 

Mr Graham Brown Curtin University of Technology Good practice standards for peer based marginalised youth health programs  50,000 

Dr Lisa Wood University of WA Healthway Social Determinants of Health Scoping Review 8,170 

Prof Donna Cross Edith Cowan University Joondalup How Cyber Technology is Affecting Relational Aggression & Teenage Health 79,114 

Prof Donna Cross Edith Cowan University Joondalup Solid Kids, Solid Schools Project 115,494 

Prof Bonnie Barber Murdoch University Promoting Positive Relationships After Divorce and Separation 119,950 

Dr Kay Cox University of WA Motivational interviewing to promote physical activity in older adults 100,000 

Prof Robert Donovan Curtin University of Technology Identifying elements of alcohol TV ads that impact on underage youth 75,832 

A/Prof Peter Howat Curtin University of Technology Web-based alcohol and tobacco intervention 114,065 

Clin Prof Carol Bower University of WA Alcohol in pregnancy: health promotion for health professionals 119,749 

Prof Rob Donovan Curtin University of Technology TCRDP - CBRCC Tobacco Control Research Fellowship Training Program 85,000 

Prof Donna Cross Edith Cowan University Joondalup Parental Smoking Cessation & Children's Smoking Attitudes/Behaviours 65,217 

Prof Donna Cross Edith Cowan University Joondalup TCRDP - Optimising School Nurse Involvement in Youth Based Tobacco Control Programs 76,398 

A/Prof Ann Larson University of WA TCRDP - Family interventions to reduce tobacco smoke exposure of Pilbara Aboriginal 
Children 

85,000 
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SPORT SPONS ORSHIP PROJECTS APPROVED FOR FUNDING IN 2006/07 
(Includes Years 1, 2 or 3 funding for multi-year projects) 

 
Organisation Project Title Project 

Amount   
$ 

Health Agency Health Message Support 
Amount    

$ 
Alcohol and other drug misuse 
Baseball WA Limited Baseball WA Development Programs 80,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Drug Free 9,000 
Drug and Alcohol Office Co-sponsorship of Fremantle Football Club 30,000 Drug and Alcohol Office Enough is Enough 4,000 
Harvey Dicksons Country Music 
Centre 

Harvey Dickson's Rodeo 2007 1,000 Drug and Alcohol Office Enough is Enough Kit 350 

Ocean and Earth Sports 
Management Pty Ltd 

Cactus Games 2006 Action Sports and 
Music Festival 

10,000 Drug and Alcohol Office Drug Aware 1,500 

South Fremantle Football Club Adwert Djuripin Jinna Ball at the Port 5,000 Healthway Kit Respect Yourself 
Respect Your Culture 

400 

Surfing Western Australia Drug Aware Pro Margaret River  140,000 Drug and Alcohol Office Drug Aware 15,000 
Swan View Senior High School 
Parents and Citizens Assoc Inc 

Moorditj Waabiny Sports and Cultural 
Festival 

3,000 Drug and Alcohol Office Drug Aware Kit 350 

U WA Sport and Recreation 
Association  

2007 to 2009 Tertiary Sports WA Program 20,000 Drug and Alcohol Office Enough is Enough 5,000 

Western Australian Athletics 
Commission Inc 

Drug Free Track and Field Classic 17,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Drug Free 3,000 

Western Australian Volleyball 
Association Inc 

Volleyball - Extending Pathways 90,000 Drug and Alcohol Office Drug Aware 10,000 

Wildcats 2000 Pty Ltd Healthway Sponsorship 2006/07 80,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Drug Free 12,000 
YMCA Perth Youth & 
Community Services Inc 

YMCA HQ's Summer Skate Series 06 10,000 Drug and Alcohol Office Drug Aware 2,000 

      
Cancer Prevention      
Amateur Rowing Association of 
WA 

2006 & 2007 State Rowing Premiership 
and Championships 

30,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia SunSmart 4,000 

Bluegem Holdings Pty Ltd (T/A 
Trievents WA) 

Women's Triathlon 3,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia SunSmart Kit 350 

Busselton Chamber of 
Commerce 

2006 Ironman Western Australia Triathlon 20,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia SunSmart 3,000 

Denmark Tourism Incorporated Denmark 10,000 1,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia SunSmart Kit 300 
Forza Dragon Boat Club 
Incorporated 

Forza Dragon Boat Festival 2,500 The Cancer Council Western Australia SunSmart Kit 300 

Geraldton Yacht Club Inc The Geraldton Dragon Boat Classic 2006 3,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia SunSmart Kit 300 
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SPORT SPONSORSHIP PROJECTS APPROVED FOR FUNDING IN 2006/07 (continued) 
 
Organisation Project Title Project 

Amount   
$ 

Health Agency Health Message Support 
Amount    

$ 
Cancer Prevention (continued)     
Heirisson Island Tournament 
Water Ski Club  

Schools Water Ski Program 3,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia SunSmart Kit 300 

Manly Junior Sailing Association 
of WA 

Manly Junior National Championships 2,500 The Cancer Council Western Australia SunSmart Kit 300 

Melville Water Polo Club Inc Tom Hoad Cup 2006-2008 7,500 The Cancer Council Western Australia SunSmart 2,000 
Naturaliste Game Fishing Club Blue Water Classic / 2 Junior Fishing & 

Education Days 2007 
2,500 The Cancer Council Western Australia SunSmart Kit 350 

Nedlands Yacht Club 2007 Flying Eleven National 
Championships 

2,500 The Cancer Council Western Australia SunSmart Kit 350 

Recfishwest FishSmart SunSmart Program 47,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia SunSmart 9,000 
Royal Life Saving Society 
Australia WA Branch Inc 

Swim & Survive - Aquatic Centre Open 
Days 

22,120 The Cancer Council Western Australia SunSmart 3,000 

Shark Bay Fishing Club Inc Shark Bay Fishing Fiesta 2,500 The Cancer Council Western Australia SunSmart Kit 350 
Sorrento Surf Life Saving Club Sorrento Challenge 3,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia SunSmart Kit 350 
State Sailing Centre of WA Sponsorship 2005-2008 24,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia SunSmart 2,000 
State Sailing Centre of WA Sponsorship Incentive Scheme 8,146 The Cancer Council Western Australia SunSmart   
Surf Life Saving Australia Ltd Australian Surf Life Saving 

Championships 
150,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia SunSmart 35,000 

Surf Life Saving Western 
Australia Inc  

SunSmart Partnership 2006/07 90,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia SunSmart 11,000 

Tee-Ball Association of WA Inc 2007/08 TBAWA Events 15,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia SunSmart 2,000 
Tennis Seniors Assoc of WA Inc  2007 Australian Tennis Seniors 

Championships 
7,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia SunSmart 1,000 

Tennis West Sponsorship Incentive Scheme 25,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia SunSmart   
Tennis West Tennis Participation and Development 

Program 2007-2010 
150,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia SunSmart 15,000 

Town of Cambridge 2007 Cambridge Local Primary Schools 
Junior Triathlon 

3,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia SunSmart Kit 350 

WA Heron Sailing Association 
Inc 

48th Heron National Sailing 
Championships 

2,500 The Cancer Council Western Australia SunSmart Kit 300 

Western Australian Cricket 
Association 

Cricket City Perth - Festival of Cricket 25,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia SunSmart 3,500 

Western Australian Cricket 
Association 

WACA SunSmart Community Cricket 
Program 

245,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia SunSmart 27,500 

Western Australian Cricket 
Association 

WACA SunSmart Community Cricket 
Program 

235,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia SunSmart 27,500 

Western Australian Swimming 
Association 

WA Swimming & Healthway Partnership 115,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia SunSmart 14,000 

Wongan Hills Swimming Club 
Inc 

Western Australian Country Swimming 
Pennants 2007 

8,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia SunSmart 1,000 

Yachting Western Australia (Inc) Multi Development Programmes 
2007/08 

35,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia SunSmart 3,500 
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Organisation Project Title Project 

Amount   
$ 

Health Agency Health Message Support 
Amount    

$ 
Good Nutrition Promotion     
Australian Underwater 
Federation Inc 

National Underwater Hockey 
Championships 

2,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Go For 2 'n' 5 Kit 350 

Boyanup Basketball Club Inc Minis for Fun Programme 2007 1,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Go For 2 'n' 5 Kit 350 
Bunbury and Districts Little 
Athletics Centre 

WA Little Athletics Country Championships 
2007 

3,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Go For 2 'n' 5 Kit 350 

Equestrian Federation of 
Australia (WA) Branch Inc 

2007 Equestrian Program 67,500 The Cancer Council Western Australia Go For 2 'n' 5 5,000 

Pony Club Association of 
Western Australia Inc 

2007 Sponsorship 30,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Go For 2 'n' 5 4,000 

Scout Association of Australia 
WA Branch 

Cubilee 2006 3,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Go For 2 'n' 5 Kit 300 

WA Basketball Federation 
(Basketball WA) 

Basketball Development Program 2007 210,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Go For 2 'n' 5 25,000 

WA Gymnastic Association 
(Gymnastics WA) 

Gymnastics - Development Participation 
Project 

100,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Go For 2 'n' 5 13,000 

Western Australian Diving 
Association Inc  (The) 

2007 Australian Age & Masters Diving 
Championships 

3,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Go For 2 'n' 5 Kit 350 

Western Australian Diving 
Association Inc  (The) 

Fostering Participation in Diving 30,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Go For 2 'n' 5 4,000 

      
Health Promotion      
Albany Aussi Masters 
Swimming Club (Inc.) 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship  660 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Albany Fencing Club Inc 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 800 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Albany Horsemans Association 
Inc 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,100 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Albany Pony Club 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship  800 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Albany Touch Association Inc 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Albany Water Polo Club Inc 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 800 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Applecross Swimming Club Inc 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 800 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Applecross Tennis Club 
(Incorporated) 

2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,230 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 

Armadale Sporting Club Inc 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Armadale Sporting Club Inc 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 900 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Armadale Table Tennis Club Inc 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 800 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Ascot Eagles Junior Cricket 
Club Inc 

2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 520 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 

Ascot Kayak Club Inc 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Ashfield Soccer & Sports Club  2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship  1,710 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Attadale Netball Club 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,510 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Augusta Yacht Club Inc 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,300 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
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$ 

Health Agency Health Message Support 
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$ 
Health Promotion (continued) 
Aussi Stadium Snappers Inc 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 600 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Aust Flying Corps & Royal Aust 
Air Force Assoc 

2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 

Australian Time Trials 
Association 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 900 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Australind Tennis Club 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,800 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Babakin Cricket Club 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 800 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Balcatta Bears Rollersports 
Club Inc 

2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 800 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 

Bassendean Amateur Football 
Club 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Bassendean Cricket Club Inc 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 900 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Bassendean Junior Cricket Club 
Inc 

2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 

Bateman Junior Cricket Club Inc 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,900 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Bayswater City Soccer Club Inc 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Bayswater Morley Youth Club 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Bayswater Tennis Club 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,550 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Beacon Community Recreation 
Council 

2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 800 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 

Bedford Morley Cricket Club 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Beechboro Senior Football Club 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 700 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Belmont Junior Football Club 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Belmont Redcliffe Amateur 
Football Club 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Bencubbin Netball Club Inc 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 580 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Bindoon Range Pony Club 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 800 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Binningup Surf Life Saving Club 
Inc 

2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 854 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 

Blue Gum Squash Club 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,900 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Booragoon Junior Football Club 
Inc 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Borden Football Club Inc 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 800 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Boulder City Football and 
Sporting Club Inc 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Braves Baseball Club of Melville 
City (Inc) 

2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 

Breakers Netball Club 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,500 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Brentwood Booragoon Football 
Club Inc 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,500 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
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Health Promotion (continued) 
Bridgetown Football Club Inc 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 900 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Bridgetown Golf Club 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship  1,400 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Broadwater Bay Surf Life 
Saving Club 

2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,300 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 

Broome Bulls Football Club Inc 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 800 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Broome Little Athletics Centre 
Inc 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,200 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Bruce Rock Amateur Swimming 
Club Inc 

2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,600 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 

Bruce Rock Cricket Club 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 689 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Bruce Rock Football Club Inc 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,600 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Bruce Rock Netball Club 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship  800 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Bruce Rock Squash Club 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,300 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Bruce Rock Tennis Club 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 800 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Bullcreek Leeming Junior 
Football Club Inc 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Bunbury Junior Football Council 
Inc 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,710 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Bunbury Rowing Club Inc 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Bunbury Rugby Union Football 
Club Incorporated  

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,500 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Bunbury and Districts Little 
Athletics Centre 

2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 

Burracoppin Football Club Inc 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,900 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
CBC Football Club Inc 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,400 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Cable Beach Football Club Inc 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 900 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Canning City Soccer Club 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Canning Softball Association 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Cardinals Junior Football Club 
Inc 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,650 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Carine Junior Football Club 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Carnarvon Rodeo Association 
Incorporated 

2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 660 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 

Centrals Football & Sportsmans 
Club 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,400 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Cervantes Bowling Club Inc 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 800 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
City Beach Water Polo Club Inc 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,800 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
City Tri Club Inc 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 900 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
City of Perth Surf Life Saving 
Club Inc 

2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
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Health Promotion (continued) 
Clarkson Little Athletics Club 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Cloverdale Comets Diamond 
Sports Association Inc 

2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,600 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 

Cockburn BMX Stadium Inc 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,400 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Cockburn City Teeball and 
Baseball Club Inc 

2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,300 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 

Cockburn Cricket Club 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 800 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Cockburn Fremantle Pistol Club 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 500 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Collegians Amateur Football & 
Sporting Club 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,350 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Collie Rugby Club Inc 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,400 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Coogee Beach Surf Lifesaving 
Club Inc 

2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 

Coolbinia West Perth Amateur 
Football & Sport Club 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,700 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Coolbinia West Perth Junior 
Cricket Club Inc 

2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 800 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 

Coolgardie Community Sports 
Association Inc 

2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 

Coolup Campdraft Club Inc 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 700 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Cottesloe Boardriders Inc 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Cottesloe Body Board Club Inc 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 800 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Cunderdin Football Club 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,100 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Curtin Rugby Union Football 
Club 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,500 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Dalyellup Beach Cricket Club 
Inc 

2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,540 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 

Dalyellup Beach Surf Life 
Saving Club Inc 

2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 

Dampier Sports Club 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,400 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Deanmill Football Club 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,400 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Denmark/Walpole Football Club 
Inc 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,500 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Derby Rodeo and Horseriders 
Association 

2007 Derby Outback Rodeo, Gymkhana 
and Campdraft 

3,000 Kimberley Population Health Unit Various Health 
Messages 

350 

Dolphins Water Polo Club 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,980 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Dunsborough Bay Yacht Club 
Inc 

2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 900 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 

ECU Chequers Volleyball Club 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 900 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
East Fremantle Cricket Club 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 800 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
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Health Promotion (continued) 
East Fremantle Football Club 
Inc 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,100 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Eastern Goldfields Cycle Club 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 800 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Eaton Junior Football Club Inc 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Ellenbrook Senior Football Club 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Esperance Amateur Swimming 
Club 

2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 340 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 

Esperance Pony Club 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Esperance Squash Club Inc 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Esperance Triathlon Club Inc 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 800 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Excalibur Community Fencing 
Club (Inc) 

2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 900 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 

Floreat Park Tennis Club 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,600 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Floreat Surf Life Saving Club 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Forrest Park Croquet Club Inc 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 600 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Forrestfield Junior Football Club 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Fremantle & Dist Rugby League 
Football Club Inc 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Fremantle Hawks Junior 
Football Club Inc 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,190 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Fremantle Hockey Club Inc 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Fremantle Masters Swimming 
Club Inc 

2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 900 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 

Fremantle Port Swimming Club 
Inc 

2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,300 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 

Fremantle Soccer Club Inc 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Fremantle Surf Lifesaving Club 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,790 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Garnduwa Amboorny Wirnan 
Aboriginal Corporation 

Sponsorship Incentive Scheme 60,000 Kimberley Population Health Unit Various Health 
Messages 

  

Geraldton Aussi Masters Inc 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 500 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Geraldton Water Polo 
Association Inc 

2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 

Gidgegannup Junior Football 
Club Inc 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Goldfields Oh Do Kwan Tae 
Kwon Do Academy Inc 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,100 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Goldfields Touch Association 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,820 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Gosnells Aussi Masters 
Swimming Club Inc 

2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 890 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
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Health Promotion (continued) 
Gosnells Cricket Club 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Gosnells Junior Football Club 
Inc 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Greenough Archery Club Inc 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 800 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Greenwood Gaelic Football 
Club  

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 800 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Hamersley Carine Amateur 
Football Club 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,600 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Harlequins Netball Club Inc 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,500 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Hedland Junior Football 
Association Inc 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Heirisson Island Tournament 
Water Ski Club  

2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 900 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 

High Wycombe Cricket Club Inc 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,340 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Hillarys Yacht Club 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,395 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Hilton Park Junior Cricket Club 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Hilton Squashway Squash Club 
Inc 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship  600 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Huntingdale Junior Football 
Club Inc 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Jets Basketball Club Inc 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,500 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Joondalup Kinross Junior 
Football Club Inc 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,930 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Joondalup Little Athletics Centre  2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,950 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Joondalup Touch Football 
Association 

2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 

Jurien Bay Football Club 
Incorporated 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,300 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Jurien Bowling Club Inc 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,100 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Kalamunda Tennis Club Inc 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 859 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Kalgoorlie Celtic Soccer Club 
Inc 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 900 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Kalgoorlie City Football Club 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Kalgoorlie District Pony Club 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 600 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Kalgoorlie Tri Club Inc 
(previously Goldfields Triathlon 
Club) 

2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 

Kardinya Junior Football Club 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Karratha Amateur Swimming 
Club Inc 

2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,400 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 

Kellerberrin Cricket Club 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 800 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
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Health Promotion (continued) 
Kellerberrin Riding and Pony 
Club 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 800 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Kellerberrin Squash Club 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 800 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Kellerberrin Tammin Football 
Club 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 900 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Kelmscott Baseball Club 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 600 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Kenwick Football Club Inc 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,400 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
King River Horse and Pony 
Club Inc 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 900 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Kingsley Junior Football Club 
Inc 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Kingsley Woodvale Cricket Club 
Inc 

2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,200 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 

Kinross Netball Club Inc 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Kojonup Cricket Club 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,200 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Kojonup Squash Rackets Club 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 800 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Kojonup Tennis Club Inc 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,139 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Kulin Hockey Club Inc. 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,100 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Kulin Netball Club 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 800 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Kununurra Swimming Club Inc 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 800 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Kwinana Districts Football Club 
Inc 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 800 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Kwinana Tigers Hockey Club 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 900 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Lakes Junior Football Club Inc 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,990 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Landsdale Junior Cricket Club 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Langford Titans Little Athletics 
Club Inc 

2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 800 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 

Lansdale Cricket Club 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 800 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Leda Junior Football Club 
Incorporated 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,875 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Leederville Tennis Club Inc 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,690 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Leeman Country and Sporting 
Club 

2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 950 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 

Leeman Country and Sporting 
Club 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,300 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Leeming Rugby Union Football 
Club Inc (Southern Lions) 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Lesmurdie Saints Junior 
Football Club  

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,470 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
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Health Promotion (continued) 
Lynwood Ferndale Football 
Club 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Maida Vale Aussi Masters (Inc) 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 600 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Mandurah Bowling & Recreation 
Club Inc 

2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,800 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 

Mandurah Junior Baseball Club 
Inc 

2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 700 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 

Mandurah Offshore Fishing & 
Sailing Club 

2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 950 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 

Mandurah Pirates Rugby Union 
Football Club 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Margaret River Tennis Club 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,140 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Melville Districts Tee Ball Club 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,850 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Melville Lakers Netball Club Inc 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 620 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Melville Suburban Turf Cricket 
Club 

2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,100 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 

Melville Swimming Club Inc 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,400 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Melville Women's Football Club 
In 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship  800 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Melville-Palmyra Amateur 
Football Club 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Merredin Squash Club Inc 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 800 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Merredin Women's Hockey Club 
Inc 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 800 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Mingenew Cricket Club Inc 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 850 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Mingenew Hockey Club  2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 800 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Moodiarup Sports Complex 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 800 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Moora Bowling Club 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 800 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Moora District Tennis Club Inc 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 900 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Moora and Districts Horsemans 
Association Inc 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 800 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Moorine Rock Tennis Club Inc 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Morley / Noranda Recreation 
Club Inc 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Mosman Park Golf Club Inc 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,300 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Mount Lawley Tennis Club 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Mounts Bay Sailing Club (Inc.) 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Mullaloo Surf Life Saving Club 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Murdoch University Rowing 
Club Inc 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 600 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
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Health Promotion (continued) 
Narrogin Olympics Hockey Club 
Incorporated 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 800 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Nedlands Croquet Club 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 800 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Nedlands Football Club Inc 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Newman Hockey Club Inc 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Nickol Bay Triathlon Club Inc 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 800 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
North Beach & Districts Rugby 
League Football Club  

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

North Beach Junior Football 
Club Inc 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship  2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

North Cottesloe Surf Life Saving 
Club 

2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 

North Kalgoorlie Cricket Club 
Inc 

2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,300 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 

North Murray Diamond Sports 
Association 

2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,800 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 

Northern Cobras Junior Football 
Club 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,400 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Ocean Ridge Junior Cricket 
Club Inc 

2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 

Parents & Friends of Swan 
Districts Gymnastics Inc 

2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 

Peel District Cycling Club Inc 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 900 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Perth Horse & Pony Club 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 600 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Perth Lever Action Rifle Club 
Inc 

2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 944 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 

Perth Soccer Club Inc 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Phoenix Knights Football Club 
Inc 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,600 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Pinjarra Cricket Club Inc 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,600 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Pinjarra Hockey Club Inc 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,600 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Pinjarra Junior Football Club 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship  2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Port Hedland Tennis Club 
Incorporated 

2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 400 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 

Quairading Ladies Hockey Club 
Inc 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 400 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Rangers Triathlon Club Inc 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 800 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Reabold Tennis Club Inc 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Rockingham Aussi Masters Inc 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 680 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
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Health Promotion (continued) 
Rockingham Coastal Sharks 
Rugby League and Sporting 
Club Inc 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Rockingham District Hockey 
Club 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Rockingham Rugby Union 
Football Club 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Rockingham Womens and Girls 
Football (Soccer) Club 
Incorporated 

2007 Healthy Club Sposnorship  1,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Roleystone Sporting Club Inc 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 600 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Roleystone Tennis Club 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,230 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Roller Sports Association of WA 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 800 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Saints Hockey Club Inc 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,200 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Scarboro Surf Life Saving Club 
Inc 

2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 

Scarborough Junior Football 
Club  

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Sea View Golf Club 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,737 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Secret Harbour Pirates District 
Tee-Ball Assn Inc 

2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 

Shenton Park Cricket Club Inc 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,700 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Shoalwater Bay Cricket Club Inc 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,600 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Somerset Aussi Inc 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 800 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Sorrento Duncraig Junior 
Football Club Inc 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Sorrento Surf Life Saving Club 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
South Mandurah Cricket Club 
Incorporated 

2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,900 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 

South Perth Junior Cricket Club 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
South Perth Rugby League 
Football Club Inc 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

South Perth Soccer Club Inc 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,740 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
South-West Rugby Union 
Association (The) 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,200 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Southern Cross Football Club 
Inc 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,300 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Southern Districts Touch 
Association Inc 

2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 

Southern River Cricket Club 
(Inc) 

2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 800 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
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Health Promotion (continued) 
Southside BMX Club 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,500 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Southside Wesley Swimming 
club 

2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,200 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 

Spalding Olympic Junior Soccer 
Club Inc 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,570 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Spearwood Little Athletics Club 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 600 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Special Olympics WA Inc 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Sports Medicine Australia WA 
Branch 

Management of Healthy Club Program 46,867 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit   

Sportsman Cricket Club (Inc) 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Subiaco Basketball Club 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,550 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Subiaco Marist Cricket Club Inc 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Supa Roos Aboriginal Sports 
Inc 

2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 800 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 

Swan River Rowing Club 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,700 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Swan View Football Club - 
Junior/Senior Inc 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Swanbourne Cricket Club 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 900 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Swanbourne Nedlands Surf Life 
Saving Club 

2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 750 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 

Swanbourne Tigers Junior 
Football Club Inc 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Swanleigh 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 850 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Tammin Bowling Club Inc 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Tammin Cricket Club 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 800 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Thornlie Football & Sports Club 
Inc 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,695 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Thornlie Kenwick Harriers Little 
Athletics Club 

2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 800 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 

Tigers Football & Sporting Club 
Inc 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Tom Price Junior Soccer 
Association 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Tompkins Park Touch 
Association 

2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 

Toodyay Cricket Club (Inc) 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,100 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Towns Cricket Club Inc 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 900 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Triton Water Polo Club 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,820 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Tuart Hill Cricket Club 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,200 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
UWA Volleyball Club Inc 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship  1,300 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
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Health Promotion (continued) 
University Football Club 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,900 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
University of Western Australia 
Cricket Club 

2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 800 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 

Victoria Park Belmont Baseball 
Club 

2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,450 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 

Victoria Park Cricket Club 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,400 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Vietnamese Soccer Club of WA 
Inc 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 600 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Wanneroo Baseball Club 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Wanneroo Districts Hockey 
Association 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,950 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Wanneroo Districts Rugby 
Union Football Club Inc 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Wanneroo Kingsway Football & 
Sporting Club 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Waratahs Hockey Club Inc 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 900 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Waroona Football Club 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,400 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Warwick Greenwood Junior 
Cricket Club Inc 

2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 

Wembley Junior Football Club 
Inc 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,300 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

West Australian Rowing Club 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,400 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
West Coast Amateur Football 
Club 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,200 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

West Coast Junior Football Club 
Inc 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

West Coast Swimming and 
Lifesaving Club Inc 

2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,400 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 

West Kimberley Football 
League Inc 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

West Plantagenet Pony Club 
Inc 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 800 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

West Stirling Baseball Club 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,300 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Westonia Senior Cricket Club 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 800 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Westonia Tennis Club Inc 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 800 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Wests Subiaco Rugby Union 
Club Inc 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Westside BMX Club 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,100 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Willetton Baseball Club Inc 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Willetton Hockey Club Inc 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Willetton Sports Club Inc 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,600 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
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Health Promotion (continued) 
Winnacott Kats Junior Football 
Club Inc 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Wooroloo Swimming Club Inc 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 800 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Woorree Park BMX Club Inc 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 900 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
Wyalkatchem Tennis Club 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 800 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Yanchep Districts Junior 
Football Club 

2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 2,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

Yanchep Sports Club Inc 2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 600 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 
Yangebup Lakes Little Athletics 
Club 

2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,100 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 

Yilgarn Amateur Swimming 
Club 

2006/2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 800 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 243 

Yinmar Corporation 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,300 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 
York Junior Netball Club 2007 Healthy Club Sponsorship 1,100 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Healthy Club Kit 230 

      
Injury Prevention      
Sports Medicine Australia WA 
Branch 

'Sport Safe' Community Education Program 90,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Sport Safe 2,000 

Sports Medicine Australia WA 
Branch 

Sport Safe Community Education Program 90,000 Sports Medicine Australia (WA Branch) Sport Safe 2,000 

      
Mental Health Promotion      
Albany Injury Prevention 
Association Inc 

The Inaugural Albany Bicycle Treasure 
Hunt 

2,500 Curtin University of Technology Act Belong Commit Kit 400 

Men's Resource Centre (Inc) Fun Run and Family Walk 2,500 Curtin University of Technology Act Belong Commit Kit 400 
Over 50's Recreation 
Association Albany Inc 

Have a Go Day 1,500 Curtin University of Technology Act Belong Commit Kit 300 

      
Physical Activity Promotion     
Ability Solutions Inc Physical Activity for People with a Mental 

Illness 
45,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 

Division) 
Be Active 3,000 

Aussi Masters Swimming - 
Carine Club (Inc) 

Australia Day Swim 1,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active Kit 300 

Aussi Masters Swimming WA 
Branch Inc 

Sponsorship Incentive Scheme 7,000 Healthway Kit Be Active   

Aussi Masters Swimming WA 
Branch Inc 

Swim for your Life 2006-2007 12,000 Healthway Kit Be Active 1,000 

Badminton Association of WA 
Inc 

2007 Annual Program 30,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active 3,000 

Birds Australia Western 
Australia Inc 

Bird Australia Bushwalks in Albany Region 1,500 Healthway Kit Be Active 400 
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Physical Activity Promotion (continued) 
Broome Barracudas Swimming 
Club Inc  

2007 Kimberley Open Short Course 3,000 Kimberley Population Health Unit Be Active Kit 400 

Broome Surf Life Saving Club 
Inc 

2007 Broome Sunset Challenge 10,000 Kimberley Population Health Unit Be Active 1,400 

Bruce Rock - Narembeen 
Cricket Association Inc 

Central and Eastern Wheatbelt 'Be Active' 
Cricket Carnival 

2,500 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active Kit 300 

Canoeing Western Australia Inc Development Projects - Be Active Paddle 
Academy 

40,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active 5,000 

Churches of Christ in Western 
Australia Inc 

State Youth Games 2007 2,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active Kit 350 

City of Fremantle 2007 Fremantle Masters Games 3,500 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active Kit 350 

Cyclo Sportif Club of Australia 
Inc 

Cyclo Sportif - Make the Leap 10,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active 1,400 

Cyclo Sportif Club of Australia 
Inc 

Cyclo Sportif Events at Northam and 
Dardanup 

2,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active - Cycle Instead 
Kit 

300 

Dennis Lillee Sports Foundation 
for People with Disabilities 

Be Active Ability Challenge 2,720 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active Kit 350 

Department of Sport and 
Recreation WA 

Coordinator - Physical Activity Projects 68,750 Healthway - SAR Special Project Not applicable   

Djarindjin Aboriginal Community Lombadina/Djarindjin Community Physical 
Activity Program 

20,000 Kimberley Population Health Unit Be Active   

Federation of Western 
Australian Police and 
Community Youth Centres  

Broome PCYC Social Basketball 5,000 Kimberley Population Health Unit Be Active Kit 350 

Fremantle Triathlon Club Inc Tour de Perth and Peoples Cycle 
Participation Race 

3,500 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active Kit 350 

French Festivals and 14 July 
Incorporated 

Sporting Events 2,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active Kit 350 

Garnduwa Amboorny Wirnan 
Aboriginal Corporation 

2006 Sport Development Programs 25,000 Kimberley Population Health Unit Be Active 10,000 

Healthway Enhancing Community Access Through 
Physical Activity 

200,000 Healthway - SAR Special Project Not applicable   

Inglewood Aussi Masters 
Swimming Club 

Sorrento Supa Swim 1,000 Healthway Kit Be Active 350 

Marra Worra Worra Aboriginal 
Corporation 

Fitzroy Crossing Run 2,500 Kimberley Population Health Unit Be Active Kit 400 

National Trust of Australia (WA) Kep Track Challenge 2007 5,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active 800 

Northam Avon Descent 
Association Inc 

Multiplex Avon Descent 15,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active 2,500 

Northcliffe Visitor Centre Inc Cycle Instead Karri Kids and Medibank 
Great Karri Ride 

2,500 Healthway Kit Be Active 350 
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Physical Activity Promotion (continued) 
Orienteering Association of WA 
Inc 

Orienteering in Schools & the Community 40,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active 3,000 

Pemberton Community 
Telecentre (Inc) 

Be Active Cycle Instead 'Pemberton 
Classic' 

2,500 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active Kit 350 

Riding for the Disabled 
Association WA Inc 

Be Active - Get Involved 2007-2009 20,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active 2,000 

Sailability W.A. Inc Be Active Sailing 8,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active 1,000 

Seniors Recreation Council of 
WA (Inc) 

Seniors Recreation Council of WA 2007 
Program 

25,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active 3,500 

Shire of Bruce Rock 'Be Active' Coordinator 2006-2009 25,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active 3,000 

Shire of East Pilbara North West Games 2007 15,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active 2,000 

Shire of Goomalling Avon Be Active Coordinator Scheme 25,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active 3,000 

Shire of Kalamunda Walk the Zig Zag 3,000 Healthway Kit Be Active 300 
Shire of Kondinin 'Be Active' Coordinator 2006-2009 25,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 

Division) 
Be Active 3,000 

Shire of Kondinin Wheatbelt Youth Skate It Out 3,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active Kit 300 

Shire of Moora Midlands District Be Active Sport and 
Recreation Coordinator 

25,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active 2,000 

Shire of Mt Marshall Mt Marshall Fun Run 1,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active Kit 350 

Shire of Mundaring Trek the Trail 2006: Mundaring to 
Darlington 

6,500 Healthway Kit Be Active 400 

Shire of Mundaring Trek the Trail 2007 6,500 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active Kit 350 

South West Cycle Club Inc 
(previously Bunbury Cycle 
Club) 

Be Active Cycle Instead SW Challenge 3,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active - Cycle Instead 
Kit 

300 

South West Games Inc  South West Games Bunbury 2007 12,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active 2,000 

The Community Development 
Foundation 

Youth Fitness Challenge Programmes 30,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active 4,000 

The Rink Pty Ltd Be Active Skate Program 2007 5,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active Kit 350 

WA Cycling Federation Inc Cycle Skills Program 2006-2008 40,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active - Cycle Instead 5,000 

WA Disabled Sports 
Association 

Engagement Concept (Sponsorship 
Incentive Scheme) 

28,500 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active   

WA Disabled Sports 
Association 

Sponsorship 2007-2010 140,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active 9,000 
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Physical Activity Promotion (continued) 
WA State Masters Games 
Association Inc 

WA State Masters Games (10th Bi-Annual 
Games) 

2,500 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active Kit 350 

WA Touch Association Inc Development & Growth of Touch Football 
in WA 

51,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active 6,500 

Wheatbelt Triathlon Association Triathlon Series 2006/2007 2,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active Kit 350 

Wheelchair Sports WA 
Association Inc 

Development Program 2007-2009 45,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active 4,000 

     
Tobacco Smoking Control     
Allia Venue Management Pty 
Ltd 

Members Equity Stadium Healthy Lifestyle 
Initiative 

25,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Smoke Free WA 3,500 

Archery Society of Western 
Australia 

60th Australian National Archery Target 
Championships 

3,500 The Cancer Council Western Australia Smoke Free WA Kit 350 

Avon Valley Ladies Golf 
Association 

Junior Promotion Camp and Coaching 2,500 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Smarter than Smoking 
Kit 

350 

Broome Golf Club Inc Junior Development Program 2,000 Kimberley Population Health Unit Smarter than Smoking 
Kit 

350 

Broome Soccer Association Soccer Program 2007/08 15,000 Kimberley Population Health Unit Smarter than Smoking 2,000 
Cecil Andrews Senior High 
School 

Tri Line Rugby Pilot Program 2,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Smarter than Smoking 
Kit 

350 

City of Perth Recreation Variety Days 10,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Smarter than Smoking 1,500 

Clackline/Toodyay Karate Club 
Inc 

Toodyay Invitational Karate Tournament 2,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Smarter than Smoking 
Kit 

350 

Department of Sport and 
Recreation WA 

Country Sport Scholarship Program 2007 - 
2009 

160,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Smarter than Smoking 10,000 

Department of Sport and 
Recreation WA 

Indigenous Sport Program 85,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Smarter than Smoking 8,000 

FOOTBALL WEST LIMITED World Cup Grassroots Program 170,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Smarter than Smoking 25,000 

Gwaba Enterprises Aboriginal 
Corporation 

Annual Indigenous Football Event 2,500 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Smarter than Smoking 
Kit 

300 

Hockey WA Active Participation and Promotional 
Development Program 

220,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Smoke Free WA/Smarter 
than Smoking 

20,000 

Karingal Neighbourhood 
Centre 

Men's Softball Championships 2007 3,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Smoke Free WA Kit 350 

Kellerberrin Bowling Club Inc Golden Grain Bowling Carnival 1,255 The Cancer Council Western Australia Smoke Free WA Kit 300 
Lacrosse West Inc Lacrosse West 'Check it Out' 25,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 

Division) 
Smarter than Smoking 2,500 

Mullaloo Squash Club Inc City of Joondalup 2007 Squash Open 2,000 Healthway Kit Smarter than Smoking 350 
North Murray Diamond Sports 
Association 

Establishment of a Softball Competition in 
the Shire of Serpentine-Jarrahdale 

4,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Smoke Free WA Kit 350 
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Tobacco Smoking Control (continued)     
Preston Beach Golf Club 
Incorporated 

Spring Cup 2007 1,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Smoke Free WA Kit 350 

Professional Golfers 
Association of Australia Ltd 

WA Division PGA Australia & Associated 
Programs 

15,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Smoke Free WA/ 
Smarter than Smoking 

1,000 

Quairading Bowling Club Quairading Ladies Bowling Club Gala Day 
2006 

800 The Cancer Council Western Australia Smoke Free WA Kit 300 

Somali Community Association 
Inc 

Somali Youth Sport Project 4,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Smarter than Smoking 
Kit 

350 

South West Goju Ryu Karate 
Do Association Inc 

South West Open Championships 2007 3,500 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Smoke Free WA/Smarter 
than Smoking Kit 

350 

Spalding Park Golf Club Inc Smoke Free Spalding Park Open 2005-
2007 

10,000 Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA 400 

The Dardanup Bull and Barrel 
Festival Inc 

The Dardanup Gift Primary Schools 
Challenge 

2,500 Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA 300 

WA Lacrosse Association New Futures 2006-2007 40,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Smoke Free WA 4,500 
WA Netball Inc Active Netball 2007-2009 285,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 

Division) 
Smarter than Smoking 32,000 

WA Rugby League Sponsorship Proposal 2007 45,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Smoke Free WA/Smarter 
than Smoking 

6,000 

WA Rugby Union Inc Rugby WA Development Program 2006-
2007 

90,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Smoke Free WA 16,000 

WA Softball Association Inc Partnership Proposal 2006-2007 15,475 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Smoke Free WA   

WA Sports Federation Smarter Than Smoking Junior Sports Star 
of the Year 

15,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Smarter than Smoking 
Kit 

900 

WA Squash 2007 Smarter Than Smoking Development 
Program 

50,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Smarter than Smoking 6,000 

WA Squash The Australian Masters National Squash 
Championships 2007 

5,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Smoke Free WA Kit 700 

Warren District Agricultural, 
Horticultural and Industrial 
Society Inc 

Warren District 100m Dash 2,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Smoke Free WA/Smarter 
than Smoking Kit 

350 

West Australian Football 
Commission Inc 

Sponsorship Program 2005/2007 400,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Smarter than Smoking 37,250 

West Coast Rodeo Circuit Inc 
(The) 

Junior Summer Series Rodeo's 1,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Smarter than Smoking 
Kit 

350 

Western Australian Golf 
Association Inc 

Golf Sponsorship 2007 60,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Smarter than Smoking 5,000 

Western Australian Table 
Tennis Association Inc 

Table Tennis Development Program 12,000 Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA 400 

Western Australian Volunteer 
Fire and Rescue Services 
Association Inc 

2007 WA State Junior Fire Brigade 
Championships 

1,500 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Smarter than Smoking 
Kit 

350 
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Tobacco Smoking Control (continued)     
Women's Golf WA Inc Women's Golf Development  - Annual 

Programs 2007 
30,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 

Division) 
Smoke Free WA 3,500 

Yanchep Sports Club Inc Bowls Junior Academy 2,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Smarter than Smoking 
Kit 

350 
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Organisation Project Title Project 
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$ 

Health Agency Health Message Support 
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$ 
Alcohol and other drug misuse 
Abmusic Aboriginal Corporation Abmusic's 20th Anniversary Celebration 2,000 Healthway Kit Respect Yourself 

Respect Your Culture 
400 

Armadale Noongar Corporation Armadale Noongar Circus 10,000 Healthway Kit Respect Yourself 
Respect Your Culture 

600 

Artatac - Busselton Beach 
Festival Inc 

Southern Rip's Invent Programme 2007 10,000 Drug and Alcohol Office Drug Aware 1,200 

Artrage Inc (Formerly Festival 
Fringe Society of Perth) 

Drug Aware MICROWAVE Program 45,000 Drug and Alcohol Office Drug Aware 5,000 

Arts Radio Ltd  Fresh Blast 2007 47,000 Drug and Alcohol Office Drug Aware 6,000 
Bunbury Regional Arts 
Management Board Inc 

Opening Night for the South Western 
Times Survey 

2,000 Drug and Alcohol Office Enough is Enough Kit 350 

City of Armadale Aboriginal Children's Drama Project 5,000 Healthway Kit Respect Yourself 
Respect Your Culture 

400 

City of Kalgoorlie Boulder Youth Fest 2007 8,000 Drug and Alcohol Office Drug Aware Kit 350 
City of Stirling Youth Festival 2007 5,000 Drug and Alcohol Office Drug Aware Kit 350 
City of Swan Hyper Fest Series 2006 10,000 Drug and Alcohol Office Drug Aware 1,300 
Country Arts WA Inc YCulture Regional 65,000 Drug and Alcohol Office Drug Aware 7,600 
Cunderdin Shire Council Concert in the Park 2007 2,000 Drug and Alcohol Office Enough is Enough Kit 350 
Dunsborough and Districts 
Progress Assoc Inc 

Dunsborough Art Festival and Jazz by the 
Bay 

4,545 Drug and Alcohol Office Enough is Enough Kit 350 

Fly By Night Musicians Club Inc Annual Program 2007 40,000 Drug and Alcohol Office Enough is Enough 5,000 
Holyoake the Australian 
Institute on Alcohol and 
Addictions 

DRUMBEAT 30,000 Drug and Alcohol Office Drug Aware 4,000 

Lions Club of Boddington Lions Family Australia Day Concert 2,000 Drug and Alcohol Office Enough is Enough Kit 300 
Lions Club of Collie Inc Lions Collie Christmas Pageant 3,685 Drug and Alcohol Office Drug Aware Kit 350 
Local Drug Action Groups Inc Denmark Urban Art Project 1,500 Drug and Alcohol Office Drug Aware Kit 350 
Manjimup Chamber of 
Commerce and Industry 

Manjimup Cherry Harmony Festival 5,000 Drug and Alcohol Office Drug Aware Kit 300 

Mundaring Arts Centre Inc Youth Arts Program 2007 20,000 Drug and Alcohol Office Drug Aware 2,500 
NBT WA Music Inc The Next Big Thing (WA) 50,000 Drug and Alcohol Office Drug Aware 5,000 
Propelarts YCulture Metro: Presented by Drug Aware 35,800 Drug and Alcohol Office Drug Aware 5,000 
SWERVE Assn Inc The Messenger Project Phase Four 'Tasty 

Beatz - Get Animated' 
15,600 Healthway Kit Respect Yourself 

Respect Your Culture 
800 

Shire of Wongan Ballidu  Wongan Hills Hip Hop 2,500 Drug and Alcohol Office Drug Aware Kit 350 
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Alcohol and Other Drug Misuse (continued) 
South Fremantle Football Club Adwert Djuripin Jinna Ball at the Port 5,000 Healthway Kit Respect Yourself 

Respect Your Culture 
400 

Southern Forest Arts The Inaugural Southern Forest Arts 
Festival 

12,000 Drug and Alcohol Office Drug Aware Kit 900 

Southside Christian Centre 
AOG Inc 

Slingshot Festival 2007 2,500 Drug and Alcohol Office Drug Aware Kit 350 

The Federation of WA Police 
and Community Youth Centres 
- Carnarvon 

Carnarvon 2007 Extreme Festival 10,000 Drug and Alcohol Office Drug Aware 1,200 

Town of Mosman Park AmpFest - Clash of the Bands 2007 12,000 Drug and Alcohol Office Drug Aware 1,700 
Waugal Aboriginal Corporation 
(The) 

South West Legends 4,100 Healthway Kit Respect Yourself 
Respect Your Culture 

400 

West Australian Music Industry 
Association 

The WAMi Festival 2007 34,000 Drug and Alcohol Office Enough is Enough 4,000 

Yirra Yaakin Noongar Theatre Annual Program 2006-2008 50,000 Healthway Kit Respect Yourself 
Respect Your Culture 

6,000 

Youth Alive Western Australia 
Inc 

ExoFest 2007 3,500 Drug and Alcohol Office Drug Aware Kit 350 

      
Cancer Prevention      
City of Mandurah Art in the Sand Festival 2007 3,500 The Cancer Council Western Australia SunSmart Kit 350 
Mt Marshall and Districts 
Agricultural Society 

The 76th Mt Marshall Agricultural Show 2,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia SunSmart Kit 350 

Nannup Music Club  2007 Nannup Music Festival 12,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia SunSmart 1,600 
Shire of Kalamunda Corymbia Foothills Funday 4,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia SunSmart Kit 350 
      
Good Nutrition Promotion           
All Saints College Anglican Co-
Educational School Inc 

Kids' Lit 2007 4,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Go For 2 'n' 5 Kit 350 

Araluen Botanic Park 
Foundation Inc 

Perth Chilli Festival 2007 10,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Go For 2 'n' 5 1,500 

Boddington Old School Inc 2007 Healthy Art Choices 6,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Go For 2 'n' 5 Kit 350 
Boyup Brook Tourism 
Association 

Boyup Brook Book Bonanza 2007 3,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Go For 2 'n' 5 Kit 350 

Bunbury Agricultural Society Bunbury on Show - Water for Life 5,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Go For 2 'n' 5 Kit 350 
Children's Book Council of 
Australia (WA Branch)  

Children's Book Week 2006 - 2008 11,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Go For 2 'n' 5 3,000 

Curtin University of Technology Curtin's Big Event - 'Bean Aid' 5,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Go For 2 'n' 5 Kit 400 
Fairbridge Festival Inc Fairbridge Festival 2007-2009 20,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Go For 2 'n' 5 2,500 
Fremantle Children's Literature 
Centre  

Annual Schools Programme 2007-2009 35,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Go For 2 'n' 5 5,650 

Jazz Fremantle Inc Jazz Fremantle Concert Programme 2,500 The Cancer Council Western Australia Go For 2 'n' 5 Kit 300 
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Good Nutrition Promotion (continued) 
Kellerberrin Aboriginal Progress 
Association Inc 

Keela Dreaming Cultural Festival 2007 14,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Go For 2 'n' 5 800 

Kimberley Stolen Generation 
Aboriginal Corporation 

Healthy Eating Family Concert 12,000 Kimberley Population Health Unit Enjoy Healthy Eating 2,400 

Kununurra Arts Council Inc Kununurra Street Party 3,000 Kimberley Population Health Unit Enjoy Healthy Eating Kit 350 
Men of the Trees 2007 City Farm Perth Community Festival 15,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Go For 2 'n' 5 2,000 
Men of the Trees City Farm Kamberang Festival, 

Community Workshops, and Harvest 
Festival 

11,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Go For 2 'n' 5 1,300 

Rotary Club of North Perth Hyde Park Community Fair 2007 5,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Go For 2 'n' 5 Kit 300 
Sacred Heart Primary School 
(Mundaring) 

Mundaring Community Fair 2007 2,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Go For 2 'n' 5 Kit 350 

Shark Bay Arts Council Inc Shark Bay Arts Council's 21st Anniversary 
Celebration 

3,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Go For 2 'n' 5 Kit 300 

Shire of Pingelly Summer Series Community Concert 2007 6,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Go For 2 'n' 5 1,000 
Shire of Tammin Tammin Art Prize - 20th Anniversary 2,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Go For 2 'n' 5 Kit 300 
Shire of Upper Gascoyne Gascoyne Junction Centenary 

Celebrations 
5,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Go For 2 'n' 5 Kit 350 

Shire of Wyndham East 
Kimberley 

The Kimberley Writers Festival 2007 11,500 Kimberley Population Health Unit Enjoy Healthy Eating 1,500 

Tamil Association of WA Festival of Lights 2006 1,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Go For 2 'n' 5 Kit 300 
The Afrikan Community in WA 
Incorporated 

African Cultural Memory Youth Arts 
Festival 

6,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Go For 2 'n' 5 1,000 

West Australian Medieval 
Alliance Inc 

All Fools Medieval Fayre 5,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Go For 2 'n' 5 Kit 350 

Wongutha Birni Aboriginal 
Corporation 

2007 Arts Activity Program 21,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Go For 2 'n' 5 3,000 

Writing WA Inc (Formally WA 
State Literature Centre Inc) 

Writers on the Road 2007 17,500 The Cancer Council Western Australia Go For 2 'n' 5 2,200 

Zig Zag Community Arts Inc Zig Zag Community Arts Festival 2006 - 
'Zig Zag Zestival' 

5,000 Healthway Kit Enjoy Healthy Eating 400 

      
Injury Prevention      
Musica Viva Australia Musica Viva-Core Program/South West 

Tour/Across the Top Tour 
52,000 KIDSAFE WA Safety Rules OK 6,400 

Spare Parts Theatre Inc Spare Parts Puppet Theatre Annual 
Program 

42,000 KIDSAFE WA Safety Rules OK 4,200 

The Kaleidoscope Ensemble The Kaleidoscope Ensemble Regional 
Tours 2006/07 and Metropolitan School 
Gala 2007 

15,500 KIDSAFE WA Safety Rules OK 2,000 
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Mental Health Promotion      
Albany Eisteddfod (Inc.) Albany Music Eisteddfod 2007 1,500 Curtin University of Technology Act Belong Commit Kit 350 
Albany Volunteer Centre Inc The 'V' Project 3,000 Curtin University of Technology Act Belong Commit Kit 400 
Art and Cultural Dev Council of 
Geraldton Inc 

 Capacity Building Scholarships - 
International Mental Health Promotion 
Conference  

1,000   Not applicable   

Art and Cultural Dev Council of 
Geraldton Inc 

Youth Arts Program 2007 24,000 Curtin University of Technology Act Belong Commit 3,500 

Artists Foundation of WA 
Limited (The) 

'Make Time to Talk' Skills Development 
Program 

15,000 Relationships Australia Make time to talk 3,000 

Avon Valley Arts Society Annual Arts Program 2007 24,000 Curtin University of Technology Act Belong Commit 3,000 
Borden Development Group 
Inc (The) 

Magpie Flightpath 8,000 Relationships Australia Make time to talk 800 

City of Albany Vancouver Arts Centre Multi Events 
Program 2007 

17,000 Great Southern Population Health Act Belong Commit 3,000 

City of Geraldton Big Sky Writers Festival 2007 4,000 Curtin University of Technology Act Belong Commit Kit 400 
Comedy Lounge Pty Ltd (see 
also Werzel's) 

Comedy Lounge 2007 Season 18,000 Relationships Australia Make time to talk 3,000 

Curtin University of 
Technology 

Photo Voice: Act Belong Commit 19,960 Curtin University of Technology Act Belong Commit Kit 400 

Esperance Community Arts 
(Inc.) 

Youth Arts Development Program 2007 30,000 Curtin University of Technology Act Belong Commit 6,000 

Festival of the Wind 2007 Festival of the Wind 11,000 Curtin University of Technology Act Belong Commit 1,500 
Freefall Youth Arts (Inc) Freefall Youth Arts Projects 18,000 Curtin University of Technology Act Belong Commit 3,500 
Fusion Australia Limited Awakening Australia Toodyay Family 

Festival 
1,000 Curtin University of Technology Act Belong Commit Kit 400 

Gnowangerup Family Support 
Association Inc 

Celebration of Mallee to Mountains Artist in 
Residency Project 

4,000 Curtin University of Technology Act Belong Commit Kit 400 

Jazz Club of WA Inc 22nd WA Jazz Festival 2,000 Curtin University of Technology Act Belong Commit Kit 400 
Karratha Youth Theatre Stereowhat?! 2007 20,000 Curtin University of Technology Act Belong Commit 4,000 
Kimberley Stolen Generation 
Aboriginal Corporation 

 Capacity Building Scholarships - 
International Mental Health Promotion 
Conference  

1,000   Not applicable   

Mulark Aboriginal Corporation Oolaman Nyininy Mosaic Project 2,300 Curtin University of Technology Act Belong Commit Kit 350 
Multicultural Services Centre of 
Western Australia 

Ola! Viva Sudan 12,000 Relationships Australia Make time to talk 2,400 

Northam Over 60's Group (Inc) Northam Over 60's 'Act-Belong-Commit' 
Event Series 

4,400 Curtin University of Technology Act Belong Commit Kit 400 

Performing Arts Centre Society 
of WA Inc 

Fragmented 3,000 Relationships Australia Make time to talk Kit 350 

Shire of Roebourne True-L Music Workshops and Youth Week 
Activities 

10,000 Curtin University of Technology Act Belong Commit 2,000 
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Mental Health Promotion (continued)     
Shire of Wyalkatchem  Capacity Building Scholarships - 

International Mental Health Promotion 
Conference  

595   Not applicable   

Southern Edge Arts Southern Edge Arts Program 2006 - 2008 40,000 Great Southern Regional Health Service Act Belong Commit 7,250 
Stark Raven Theatre Company of 
WA Inc 

Jesus of Montreal 2,000 Relationships Australia Make time to talk Kit 350 

Toodyay Agricultural Society Inc Toodyay Agricultural Show 2007 2,000 Curtin University of Technology Act Belong Commit Kit 400 
Town of Northam Bring it on - Northam Youth Festival 7,000 Curtin University of Technology Act Belong Commit 1,400 
WA Festival of Health, Healing 
and Harmony Inc 

Healing Tree of Life Mosaic Project 3,400 Curtin University of Technology Act Belong Commit Kit 400 

WA Festival of Health, Healing 
and Harmony Inc 

Health, Healing and Art 4,500 Curtin University of Technology Act Belong Commit Kit 400 

Warawarni-gu (Healing) Art 
Centre Inc 

 Capacity Building Scholarships - 
International Mental Health Promotion 
Conference  

4,000   Not applicable   

York Society Inc (The) Art and Crafts Awards 2007 1,500 Curtin University of Technology Act Belong Commit Kit 400 
      
Physical Activity Promotion     
ACHPER 'Gala Dance Festivals' 1,500 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 

Division) 
Be Active Kit 300 

Artatac - Busselton Beach 
Festival Inc 

2007 Festival of Busselton 12,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active 2,500 

Augusta River Festival Augusta River Festival 2007 2,500 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active Kit 350 

Australian Dance Council WA 
Branch (Ausdance) Inc 

Dance Around 35,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active 4,000 

Australian-Asian Association 
of WA Inc 

Harmony International FolkFest 2007 7,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active Kit 350 

Ballet Workshop Incorporated Be Active with Prompt Corner 2007 17,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active 2,000 

Black Swan Theatre Be Active BSX Theatre 2007 Program  23,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active 3,000 

Buzz Dance Theatre Buzz Dance Theatre Program 2006-2008 55,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active 7,500 

Central South Eisteddfod (Inc) 2007 Central South Eisteddfod and Talent 
Expo 

2,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active Kit 350 

Cervantes Community 
Recreation Centre Inc 

Celebrating Cervantes Culture 3,000 Healthway Kit Be Active 400 

City of Bayswater Community Events 2007 15,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active 700 

City of Belmont Annual Calendar of Art and Cultural Events & 
Projects 2007 

18,500 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active 2,000 

 



 

Annual Report 2006/07        136 

ARTS SPONSORSHIP PROJECTS APPROVED FOR FUNDING IN 2006/07 (continued) 
 
Organisation Project Title Project 
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$ 

Health Agency Health Message Support 
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$ 
Physical Activity Promotion (continued) 
City of Geraldton Be Active Big Sky Writer's Festival 2006 5,000 Healthway Kit Be Active 400 
City of Mandurah Annual Program 2007 25,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 

Division) 
Be Active 3,500 

Creative and Therapy 
Activities (C.A.T.A.) Disabled 
Group Inc 

As We Are 2006 and 2007 Art Exhibition2 9,300 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active Kit 750 

Cultural Club Inc (The) City of Melville 2007 Chinese New Year 
Concert 

1,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active Kit 300 

DADAA Incorporated Arts and Health Programs 2007-2009 40,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active 5,000 

DADAA Incorporated Including You, Including Me 3,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active Kit 350 

DADAA Incorporated Open Minds Open Doors Exhibition 2006 5,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Disability No Limits - Be 
Active Kit 

300 

Dumbleyung Events 
Committee Inc 

Dumbleyung Bluebird Festival: Taking art to 
the community  

2,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active Kit 300 

Friends of the Porongurup 
Range Inc 

Art in the Park 2007 1,500 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active Kit 350 

Garnduwa Amboorny Wirnan 
Aboriginal Corporation 

Garnduwa Festival 2006-2008 23,000 Kimberley Population Health Unit Be Active 5,000 

High Performance Ltd 
(skadada) 

SYRC Boost 2007 25,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active 3,500 

Hills Peace Festival 
Association Inc 

August Peace Festival 2007 4,880 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active Kit 350 

Lions Club of Rockingham Inc Music in the Park 2007 2,500 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active Kit 350 

Lunar Circus School Inc Lunar Circus School 2007 18,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active 2,400 

Mingenew Community 
Telecentre Inc 

Colours of Mingenew 1,250 Healthway Kit Be Active 400 

Mukinbudin Planning and 
Development Group 

Mukinbudin Spring Festival 2006 3,000 Healthway Kit Be Active 400 

Mulan Aboriginal Corporation Mulan 30-30-30 Project 8,000 Kimberley Population Health Unit Be Active 1,500 
Multicultural Arts of WA 
(Kulcha) 

Arts Activity Program 2007-2009 40,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active 5,000 

Nannup Tourism Association 
Inc 

Nannup Rose Festival 5,000 Healthway Kit Be Active 400 

Pulse Music World Pty Ltd WA Middle Eastern Dance Festival 2007 6,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active Kit 350 

Russian Ethnic Community & 
Youth Development Assn  

Russian Seasons 1,500 Healthway Kit Be Active 350 

STRUT DANCE INC Metadances - Being 'Inter' Active 5,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active Kit 350 
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Physical Activity Promotion (continued) 
Scitech Discovery Centre Nerdstock 3,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 

Division) 
Be Active Kit 350 

Shire of Cranbrook Cranbrook Shire on Show 2007 2,500 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active Kit 350 

Shire of Mount Magnet Pulse Circus Workshop 2,300 Healthway Kit Be Active 400 
Shire of Nannup Art in the Skate Park 1,550 Healthway Kit Be Active 350 
South West Opera Company A Production of 'The Gipsy Baron' 2,700 Healthway Kit Be Active 400 
Steps Youth Dance Company Annual Program 2007 32,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 

Division) 
Be Active 5,700 

Stirling Street Arts Centre 
Management Committee Inc 

'Art to Wear Challenge' and Christmas Craft 
Fair 

2,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active Kit 300 

The WA Circus School 
Incorporated 

2007 Annual Program 17,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active 2,000 

Theatre Kimberley Theatre Kimberley 2006-2008 Annual Program 20,000 Kimberley Population Health Unit Be Active 4,000 
Town of Bassendean Public Events Program 2007 20,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 

Division) 
Be Active 2,500 

Tura New Music Inc Tura New Music Regional Program 15,000 Kimberley Population Health Unit Be Active 1,000 
Victoria Park Centre for the 
Arts Inc 

Victoria Park Art Walk 2007 - Stages 1 & 2 2,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active Kit 350 

WA Youth Jazz Orchestra 
Association 

Core Program and Annual Concerts for 
Schools 2007-2009 

30,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active 6,000 

WA Youth Theatre Company Annual Program 2007 20,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active 3,000 

West Australian Ballet Youth Education and Access Program 2007-
2009 

45,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active 6,000 

      
Sexual Health      
Western Australian Aids 
Council (Inc) 

 Design for Life Poster and Exhibition Project 
2006  

2,000 Healthway - SAR Special Project   

 
Tobacco Smoking Control 
Apex Club of Katanning Katanning Apex Caboodle A Smoke Free 

Event 
4,330 The Cancer Council Western Australia Smoke Free WA Kit 350 

Art On The Move NETS Education Events 2007-2009 30,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Smarter than Smoking 4,000 

Australian Band & Orchestra 
Directors Assoc (WA Branch) 
Inc 

WA Schools Orchestra and Concert Band 
Festivals 

3,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Smarter than Smoking 
Kit 

350 

Awesome Arts Australia Ltd Cre8tive Challenge & Cre8tive Challenge at 
Awesome Festival 

60,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Smarter than Smoking 8,000 

Barking Gecko Theatre 
Company 

Barking Gecko Annual Program 2005 - 2007 58,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Smarter than Smoking 6,600 
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Tobacco Smoking Control (continued) 
Binningup Community 
Association Incorporated 

Binningup Spring Festival 1,435 Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA 400 

Bridgetown Telecentre Inc Regional Art Scholarship 1,500 Healthway Kit Smarter than Smoking 400 
Briggs Park Community Group 
Incorporated 

Centenary of Byford Country Fair 4,000 Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA 400 

Bunbury & Districts Combined 
Schools Music Festival Inc 

Combined Schools Music Festival 2,000 Healthway Kit Smarter than Smoking 400 

Bunbury Musical Comedy 
Group 

'Full Monty' and Workshops 4,700 Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA 400 

Chidlow Progress Association 
Inc 

Chidlow & District Country Show 1,500 The Cancer Council Western Australia Smoke Free WA Kit 300 

Christian Brothers Agricultural 
School 

Tardun Under the Stars 5,000 Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA 400 

City of Bunbury Australia Day Event & International Jazz 
Festival 

15,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Smoke Free WA 2,500 

City of Fremantle Annual Program 2007 5,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Smoke Free WA 1,500 
City of Joondalup Summer in the City Program 2007 30,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 

Division) 
Smarter than Smoking 4,000 

City of Melville Sunset Family Concert and Fireworks 
Spectacular 

4,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Smoke Free WA Kit 350 

City of Rockingham 'Living Cultures' 22,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Smarter than Smoking 3,000 

City of South Perth City of South Perth Fiesta 2007 20,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Smarter than Smoking 1,000 

Collie Country Music Club Collie Country Music Roundup 2007 1,500 The Cancer Council Western Australia Smoke Free WA Kit 350 
Collie River Valley Marketing 
Incorporated 

Collie Rock and Coal Music Festival 2007 4,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Smoke Free WA Kit 350 

Country Arts WA Inc Shows on the Go & Across the Top 2007-2009 62,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Smoke Free WA 9,000 
Country Music Club of Boyup 
Brook 

'You and Me - Smoke Free' 10,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Smarter than Smoking 600 

Department of Sport and 
Recreation WA 

Green Light Disco 12,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Smarter than Smoking 1,000 

Event Assist Inc 'All Australian Car Day IV' & 'The British Auto 
Classic 2007' 

5,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Smoke Free WA Kit 350 

Festival of Youth Inc Youth on Health Festival 70,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Smarter than Smoking 9,000 

Geraldton and Regional 
Schools Arts Festival Inc 

Iluka Showcase 2006 2,000 Healthway Kit Smarter than Smoking 400 

Green Skills Inc (previously 
APACE Green Skills) 

Public Art Project 3,000 Healthway Kit Smarter than Smoking 400 

Kalamunda Youth Swing Band Jazz in the Park 2,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Smoke Free WA Kit 350 
Kojonup District High School Great Southern Youth Theatre 4,500 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 

Division) 
Smarter than Smoking 
Kit 

350 
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Tobacco Smoking Control (continued) 
Mandurah Little Theatre Inc We Will Rock You 5,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 

Division) 
Smarter than Smoking 
Kit 

350 

Mandurah Short Film 
Association Incorporated 

Mandurah Short Film Festival 2006 7,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Smarter than Smoking 1,000 

Merredin and Districts 
Agricultural Society Inc 

Merredin and Districts Agricultural Show 2,500 Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA 400 

Monkey Baa Theatre for 
Young People Ltd 

Wendy Harmer's Pearlie in the Park 4,500 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Smarter than Smoking 
Kit 

350 

Mowanjum Artists Spirit of the 
Wandjina Aboriginal 
Corporation 

Mowanjum Cultural Festival 5,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Smoke Free WA Kit 350 

Narrogin Agricultural Society 
Inc. 

The Narrogin Show and Big Bash Music 
Festival 

3,000 Healthway Kit Smarter than Smoking 300 

Narrogin Spring Festival Inc Narrogin Spring Festival 2006 2,000 Healthway Kit Smarter than Smoking 300 
Ningaloo Whaleshark Festival 
Inc 

Ningaloo Whaleshark Festival 2007 12,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Smoke Free WA 1,500 

Oz Concert Inc Oz Concert 2007 5,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Smoke Free WA 700 
Perth Jazz Society Fire Without Smoke 15,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 

Division) 
Smarter than Smoking 2,000 

Perth Male Voice Choir 
Association (Inc) 

Perth Male Voice Choir 80th Anniversary 
Concert 

1,000 Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA 400 

Pinjarra Visitor Centre Inc Pinjarra Festival 4,895 The Cancer Council Western Australia Smoke Free WA Kit 350 
Ravensthorpe Community 
Centre Inc 

Centenary Celebration New Years Day 2007 2,500 The Cancer Council Western Australia Smoke Free WA Kit 350 

Rockingham City Pipe Band Rockingham City Pipe Band Members Solo 
Piping and Drumming Contest 

1,500 Healthway Kit Smarter than Smoking 300 

Rotary Club of Cannington Storm the Stage 2007 12,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Smoke Free WA 1,000 
Royal Agricultural Society of 
WA 

Perth Royal Show 2007 45,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Smoke Free WA 6,000 

Shire of Bruce Rock Back to the Bush Reunion 2006 3,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Smoke Free WA Kit 300 
Shire of Meekatharra  Battle of the Bands and the Meekatharra 

Festival 
5,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Smoke Free WA Kit 350 

Shire of West Arthur Darkan Pioneer Day 2,800 The Cancer Council Western Australia Smoke Free WA Kit 300 
South Fremantle Senior High 
School 

South Freo 'On Parade in Spring' 2,500 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Smarter than Smoking 
Kit 

300 

Southern Cross Region of 
Sweet Adelines International 
Incorporated 

Big Barbershop Day Out Festival 2006 4,000 Healthway Kit Smarter than Smoking 400 

Toodyay Agricultural Society 
Inc 

Annual Toodyay Agricultural Show 2,000 Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA 400 

Tourism Rockingham 
Incorporated 

Summerfun - 'Beat the Sun' 2007 2,500 The Cancer Council Western Australia Smarter than Smoking 
Kit 

350 
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Tobacco Smoking Control (continued) 
Town of Kwinana Multi Events Art Program 2007 30,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 

Division) 
Smarter than Smoking 4,000 

Regional Arts Scholarships Regional Arts Incentive Scholarships 60,000 Healthway Kit Smarter than Smoking   
VOCES Arts Networking 
Group 

Annual Programs 2007 15,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Smarter than Smoking 2,000 

Visual Arts Foundation of WA 
Inc 

2005 Artist-in-Residence Program Schools & 
Communities 

25,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Smarter than Smoking 1,250 

WA Poets Inc WA Spring Poetry Festival 2006 3,000 Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA 400 
WA Youth Music Association Education, Outreach, Indigenous and Choral 

Program 2007-2009 
45,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 

Division) 
Smarter than Smoking 6,000 

Wakakirri Story-Dance 
Association Incorporated 

National Story Festival 2007 15,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Smarter than Smoking 2,500 

Waroona Agricultural Society Waroona Agricultural Show 2,000 Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA 400 
West Australian Music 
Industry Association 

Contemporary Music in Schools 2007-2009 40,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Smarter than Smoking 5,000 

West Australian Opera Smarter Than Smoking Opera in Education 
Workshops 2007-2009 

25,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Smarter than Smoking 3,000 

West Australian Symphony 
Orchestra 

Education Chamber Orchestra - EChO 40,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Smarter than Smoking 4,000 

Williams Arts and Craft Centre 
Inc 

Williams Art and Craft Centre Inc Art Exhibition 
and Open Day 

1,500 Healthway Kit Smarter than Smoking 300 

Williams Gateway Expo (Inc) Williams Gateway Expo 2007 2,700 The Cancer Council Western Australia Smoke Free WA Kit 350 
Wongan Arts Society Wongan Arts Society Biennial Art/Craft 

Exhibition 
2,500 Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA 400 

Writing WA Inc (Formally WA 
State Literature Centre Inc) 

Writers on the Road 2006 17,500 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Smarter than Smoking 1,000 

Yarloop Progress Group Inc British Auto Classic 2,500 Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA 400 
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Good Nutrition Promotion     
Albany Racing Club Inc 2006/07 Race Season 8,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Go For 2 'n' 5 Kit   
Bunbury Turf Club Go For 2 & 5 Race Day 2006/07 10,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Go For 2 'n' 5 Kit   
Carnarvon Race Club Growers and Family Race Day 3,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Go For 2 'n' 5 Kit   
Carnarvon Race Club Growers and Family Race Day 2007 3,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Go For 2 'n' 5 Kit   
Collie Race Club Inc Collie Cup 2006 2,500 The Cancer Council Western Australia Go For 2 'n' 5 Kit   
East Pilbara Race Club Inc Newman Cup Day 1,750 The Cancer Council Western Australia Go For 2 'n' 5 Kit   
East Pilbara Race Club Inc Newman Cup Day 2007 1,750 The Cancer Council Western Australia Go For 2 'n' 5 Kit  
Eastern Gascoyne Race Club Eastern Gascoyne Race Club Annual Race 

Meeting 
3,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Go For 2 'n' 5 Kit   

Esperance Bay Turf Club 2007 Race Season 2,500 The Cancer Council Western Australia Go For 2 'n' 5 Kit   
Geraldton Turf Club Inc Geraldton Turf Club Healthway Sponsorship 

Proposal 
7,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Go For 2 'n' 5 Kit   

Moora Race Club Inc Healthway Sponsorship 2007-2008 3,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Go For 2 'n' 5 Kit   
Moora Race Club Inc Moora Race Club Healthway Sponsorship 

Proposal 
3,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Go For 2 'n' 5 Kit   

Mount Barker Turf Club Healthway Race Day 2007 3,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Go For 2 'n' 5 Kit   
Nor-West Jockey Club (The) 2007 Race Round - Family Day 4,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Go For 2 'n' 5 Kit  
Northam Race Club Inc 2007 Race Season 8,500 The Cancer Council Western Australia Go For 2 'n' 5 Kit  
Pinjarra Race Club Inc 2006/2007 Pinjarra Park Go For 2 & 5 

Healthway Race Day 
10,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Go For 2 'n' 5 Kit   

Port Hedland Turf Club Healthway Race Day 2006 5,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Go For 2 'n' 5 Kit   
Port Hedland Turf Club Healthway Race Day 2007 5,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Go For 2 'n' 5 Kit  
Shire of Leonora Leonora Golden Gift Horse Race Meetings 4,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Go For 2 'n' 5 Kit   
Toodyay Race Club Inc 2007 Toodyay Picnic Race Meeting 1,500 The Cancer Council Western Australia Go For 2 'n' 5 Kit   
Toodyay Race Club Inc Toodyay Picnic Race Day 1,500 The Cancer Council Western Australia Go For 2 'n' 5 Kit   
WA School Canteen 
Association 

Adressing Healthier Food in Racing Canteens 15,000 Healthway - SAR Special Project Not applicable   

WA Turf Club Annual Program 2005-2007 225,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Go For 2 'n' 5   
Wyndham Turf Club Annual Race Round 2007 3,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Go For 2 'n' 5 Kit  
      
Health Promotion      
Eastern Goldfields Karters 
(Inc) 

Healthy Karting Club Project 1,500 Healthway Kit Healthy Club 136 

Hurricane Kart Club  Healthy Karting Club Project 1,500 Healthway Kit Healthy Club 136 
Karratha Kart Club 
Incorporated 

Healthy Karting Club Project 1,500 Healthway Kit Healthy Club 136 
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Health Promotion (continued) 
Midwest Kart Club Healthy Karting Club Project 1,500 Healthway Kit Healthy Club 136 
Tiger Kart Club Inc Healthy Karting Club Project 1,500 Healthway Kit Healthy Club 136 
Tiger Kart Club Inc Healthy Karting Club Project 1,500 Healthway Kit Healthy Club 136 
       
Physical Activity Promotion     
Western Australian Trotting 
Association 

Sponsorship Proposal 2005-2007 170,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Be Active 35,000 

A.J.S. Motor Cycle Club of 
WA Incorporated 

2006 Australian Quad Motocross 
Championship 

2,500 Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA 300 

Albany Speedway Club Inc. Junior Sedan Series 4,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Smoke Free WA/ 
Smarter than Smoking 
Kit 

350 

Augusta Margaret River Hot 
Rod Club 

Junior Sedan Programme 2007 4,500 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Smoke Free 
WA/Smarter than 
Smoking Kit 

350 

Australian Karting Association 
of WA 

Smoke Free WA Sponsorship 2007 20,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Smoke Free WA/ 
Smarter than Smoking 

1,500 

Carnarvon Speedway Club Carnarvon Speedway 2007 Race Season 5,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Smoke Free WA/ 
Smarter than Smoking 
Kit 

350 

Collie Racing Drivers 
Association Inc 

2006/2007 Season 9,000 Healthway Kit Smoke Free WA 300 

Gascoyne Off Road Racing 
Club Inc 

The Gascoyne Dash 2007 3,500 The Cancer Council Western Australia Smoke Free WA Kit 350 

Junior Speedway Racing 
Association of WA Inc 

Smarter Than Smoking Junior Sedan Racing 10,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Smarter than Smoking 1,400 

Kellerberrin Speedway Club 
Inc 

Kellerberrin Speedway 2007 Racing Round 3,200 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Smarter than Smoking 
Kit 

350 

Motorcycling Western 
Australia Inc 

2007 Motorcycle Racing - Selected Events 40,000 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Smoke Free WA/ 
Smarter than Smoking 

4,000 

Octagon Australia Pty Ltd Australian Safari 35,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Smoke Free WA 4,000 
Shark Bay Speedway Club 
(Inc) 

Far Western Championships 2,500 National Heart Foundation of Australia (WA 
Division) 

Smoke Free WA/ 
Smarter than Smoking 
Kit 

350 

Targa West Pty Ltd QUIT Targa West 100,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Quit 15,000 
Vintage Sports Car Club of 
WA Inc 

Vintage Sport Car Club - 2007 23,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Smoke Free WA 3,000 

WA Sporting Car Club SmokeFree WA Nightmasters and WA State 
Championships  

18,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Smoke Free WA 3,000 

West Australian Car Club Inc Quit Forest Rally 2007-2008 90,000 The Cancer Council Western Australia Quit 15,000 
 
 


